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October 22, 20 13 

County of Brunswick 
Finance Department 

Post Office Box 249 
Bolivia, North Carolina 28422 

Telephone (91 0) 253-2070 
Telecopy (9 1 0) 253-2068 

Honorable Members of the Brunswick County Board ofCommissioners and Citizens of Brunswick 
County, North Carolina: 

State law requires that aJI local governments publish within four months of the close of each fiscal 
year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
by a fmn of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the 
comprehensive annual financial report of Brunswick County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20 13. 

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of Brunswick County. 
Consequently, management assumes full responsibili ty for the completeness and reliability of all of 
the infonnation presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these 
representations, management uf Brunswick County has established a comprehensive internal control 
framework tl1at is designed both to protect tl1e government's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to 
compile sufficient reliable inionnation for the preparation of Brunswick County's financial statements 
in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, 
Brunswick County's comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide 
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be !Tee from material 
misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial 
report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPA's, P.A., a fim1 of licensed certified public accountants, has 
independently audited Brunswick County's financial statements. The goal of the independent audi t 
was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of Brunswick County for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2013, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
and evaluating the overall financial presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the 
audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an urunodi:fied opinion that Brunswick County's 
financial statements for the tiscal year ended June 30, 2013, are fairly presented in conformity with 
GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of the financial section of 
rhe report. 

The independent audit of the financial statements of Brunswick County was part of a broader, 
federally mandated "Single Audit" designed lo meet the special needs of federal and state grantor 
agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report 
not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government's 
internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls 
and legal requirements involving the administrat1on of federal and state awards. These repons are 
available in ilie County's separately issued Compliance Letters. 



GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to 
accompany the basic fmancial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in 
conjunction with it. Brunswick County's MD&A can be found immediately following the independent 
auditor's report. 

Profile of the Government 
Brunswick County, founded in 1764 by the North Carolina General Assembly. is located in the 
southeastern comer of the State in the coastal plains region . As is typical of coastal plains, the 
topography is characterized by flatlands with soi l composition of sand and sand loam. Fonning a 
natural boundary on the southeast, the Atlantic Ocean gives the County approximately 47 miles of 
beachfront. It has an estimated population of 114,882, which is an increase of approximately 56% 
since 2000. It is tl1e third largest county in the State, having a land area of896 square miles. 

Though historically rural in nature, t11e County has become increasingly more developed in recent 
years, largely as a tourism and retirement destination. There are 19 small municipalities and two 
sanitary districts. The County seat is located ncar the Town of Bolivia, in the approximate geograpruc 
center of the County. 

The County is governed by a Board of Commissioners (the ''Board'') consisting of five members 
elected on a partisan basis, with Commissioners running from and representing districts, but being 
elected at large for four-year staggered terms in November of even numbered years. The Board takes 
office on the first Monday in December following each election. The Board elects a chairman and 
vice-chairman from among its members. 

The major duties of the Board include adoption of the annual budget, setting of the annual property 
tax rate, and appointment of various officials (County Manager, County Attorney, Clerk to the Board, 
and members of Counry boards and commissions). In addition, the Board can adopt policies 
concerning the operation of the county, plan for county needs and enact local ordinances. The Board 
also has authority to call bond referenda, enter into contracts and establish new programs and 
departments. 

Brunswick County, like most counties in the State, has a Commissioner/Manager fonn of government. 
The manager is appointed by the Board, and serves at its pleasure. 

Brunswick County provides a broad range of services that include public safety, environmental 
protection, health and social services, cultural and recreational programs, community and economic 
development, and education. The County also operates a water and wastewater utility system. This 
report encompasses the County's activities in maintaining these services and includes its financial 
support to certain separate agencies. boards, and commissions to assist their eiTorts in serving citizens. 
Among these are the Brunswick County Schools and Brunswick Community College. 

The financial reporting entity includes all funds of the primary government {Brunswick County), as 
well as all of its component units. Component units are legally separate entities for which rhe primary 
government is financially accountable. Discretely presented component units, if applicable, are 
reported in a separate column in the general purpose financial statements to emphasize that they are 
legally separate from the primary government and to distinguish their financial positions, results of 
operations, and cash tlows from those of the primary government. The Brunswick County Board of 
Alcoholic Beverage Control, the Brunswick County Economic Development Commission, the 
Brunswick County Tourism Development Authority and the Brunswick County Airport Commission 
are reported as discretely presented component units in the financial statements. The Brunswick 
County Lndustnal Facility and Pollution Control Financing Authority is also a component unit of 
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Brunswick County however, this Authority has no financial rransactions or account balances and is 
therefore not reported in the financial statements. 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for Brunswick County's financial planning and control. 
Each year all County departments are required to submit requests for appropriation to the County 
Manager, who then compiles a proposed budget and presents it to the Board of Commissioners for 
review. The board is required to hold public bearings on the proposed budget and to adopt a final 
budget by July I of the fiscal year, or the Board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time 
until the annual ordinance can be adopted. The annual ordinance includes appropriations for the 
Ueneral, the Special Revenue (excluding the grant projects) and the Enterprise funds. Note I provides 
additional information on budgetary data. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for 
each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the 
General Fund, this comparison is presented on page 21 as part of the basic financial statements for the 
governmental funds. For annually budgeted special revenue funds, this comparison is presented in the 
non-major governmental fund subsection of this report, which starts on page 78. Also included in the 
governmental fund subsection are project-length budget-to-actual comparisons for each governmental 
fund for which a project-length budget has been adopted (i.e., capital project funds). 

Factors Affecting F inancial Condition 
The infonnation presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered 
from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which Brunswick County operates. 

Local economy. Brunswick County in recent years has been one of the fastest growing counties m 
North Carolina and in the United States. The permanent population grew at an average rate of 
approximately 4 percent annually over the last ten years. Ln the past year Brunswick County has 
experienced an increase in retail sales and tourism dollars as the economy improved. Since 2004, 
Brunswick County has bad forty-five plant announcements, creating I ,545 new jobs and over $271 
million in new capital investment. Brunswick County has four improved industrial parks and three 
planned industrial parks with great potential for future development. 

Brunswick County is currently marketing two large industrial parks. The International Logistics Park 
of North Carolina and the Mid Atlantic Industrial Rail Park are both located adjacent to US Highway 
74/76 at the Brunswick/Columbus County line and have over I ,000 acres of land each. The TLPNC, a 

tale Tier I identitied s ite, provides services for water, wastewater and fiber optics. ln December of 
2012, it was recognized as a North Carolina Certified Industrial Park. The Mid Atlantic site also has 
sewer and water service and can provide natural gas. CSXT can serve the park with rail and CSXT has 
recognized the Mid Atlantic Industrial Park as one of the few Certified Industrial Parks in their service 
area. 

The County's diversified economy is based primarily upon tourism. manufacturing. retail. and 
construction. Our existing industries continue to expand as they have added 123 new jobs in the last 
nine months. Three new industrial announcements will be made in September adding 87 new jobs for 
the county. Tourism contributions include permanent, as weiJ as secondary housing development, 
increased retail sales, increased employment opportunities and increased demand for potable water 
and wastewater collection and treatment services. Retail development has picked up again with new 
shopping centers planned near St. James, Supply, and Leland and the in !ill of stores within centers in 
the southern part of the county. In the past year, residential construction has matched what was being 
experienced prior to the recession with hundreds of new homes now under construction. 

Retail trade is the largest employment sector in Brunswick County, accounting for 16% of 
employment, while accommodation and food services represent 14%, government 8%, health care and 
social assistance 12%, public administration 8%, arts, entertainment, and recreation 6%, 
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administrative and waste services 5%, construction 6%, real estate 3%, utilities 4%, wholesale trade 
4% and manufacturing 5%. Various other employment sectors make up the remaining 9%. 

There are two hospitals located in the County. Brunswick Community Hospital, a 62-bed acute-care 
facility, is owned by Novant, a non-profit corporation. The hospital opened in November, 1977. ln 
March 2006, the Authority leased the Brunswick Community Hospital to Novant Health. On April 
29, 2007, Brunswick Community Hospital, affiliated with Novant Health received conditional State 
approval to build a 74 bed replacement hospital with all private rooms and construction began in 2008. 
The cost of the replacement hospital is more than $100 million with 200,000 square feet. The new 
hospital facility opened in July 2011 and is located approximately 3 miles from the prior facility on 
Hwy. 17 near Brunswick Community College. The replacement hospital contains 74 private rooms, 5 
operat1ng rooms, I Gl endoscopy room, pharmacy, lab and emergency room. 

The County and State's unemployment rates at June 20 13 were 9.8 and 9.3 percent, respectively. The 
State's seasonally adjusted unemployment rate at June 2013 is 8.8. The County's high growth rate in 
prior recent years was due to many people moving to Brunswick County for its quality of ljfe. As 
with the nation, the County's hjgh growth rate, in residential and commercial development has 
recently subsided. 

Brunswick County is becoming the golf capital of the State of North Carolina. Thirty-nine state of the 
art golf courses with most having residentiaVcommercial development associated with them are 
located in the County. 

Brunswick County's economic future looks bright as the new industrial parks expand, new retail 
shopping centers develop, new tourist attTUctions are completed and new residential growth continues. 

Long-term f'mancial planning. The County's Capital Improvement Plan through the year 2018 
provides a plan, based on need, to fund and acquire various projects. 

The Capital lmprovement Plan for general government in FY 2014 totals $12.3 million. General 
government projects include $0.4 million for renovations to government complex facilities, $0.6 
million for design fees associated with the construction of a new cell at the county 
construction/demolition landfill and transfer station floor replacement, 5.3 million in park 
unprovements, $2.2 million for sheritrs firing range and 911 Center expansion, and which are funded 
from county general revenues, $2.0 million grant for the 911 Center expansion and a $.5 million for 
park improvements. The general government plan includes $3.8 million from performance bonds tor 
developer infrastructure projects at various subdivisions within the county. Also included in the 
County Capital Improvement Plan are additional utility projects that total approximately $ 15.2 rnilljon 
for fiscal year 2014. Water system improvements total over $10.1 million and include waterline 
extensions. transmission improvements. 2'1<1 feeds to the City of Northwest and Sunset Beach, 21 I 
plant improvements and the design fees associated \vith the Northwest Water Plant expansion. 
Wastewater improvements for fiscal year 2014 total $5.1 milJjon and include construction of the 
Ocean Ridge and Ocean Isle Beach pump stations. The enterprise projects are anticipated to be 
funded with debt proceeds of approximately $4.0 million with the remaining provided from enterprise 
system generated reserve funds. 

The West Brunswick Reg1onal Water Reclamation Facility Phase 1, completed in February of 2006 at 
a cost of $60.5 million, provides tor the effiuent to be land-applied, either on tree farms or golf 
courses. There will not be any discharge of treated effiuent to any surface water from the West 
Brunswick Reg1onal Facility. The project is fully supported by user charges. Along with this effort, 
the County revised its sewer use ordinance to enhance the effectiveness of the reg1onal wastewater 
system concept. The county completed the expansion of the West Brunswick Regional Water 
Reclamation Facility Phase 2 from 3 mgd to 6 mgd in 2009 and provided a transmission line to serve 
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the Town of Oak Island at a cost of $54.0 million. The County acquired the Town of Shallotte 
Wastewater treatment plant July 1, 2007 incorporating that plant into the West Brunswick Regional 
Faci lity. The County issued revenue bonds in January of2008 for $52. million to fund the expansion 
of the West Brunswick Regional Water Reclamation Facility and the Southwest Area Pump Station 
and Force Main project. The West Brunswick Regional Water Reclamation Facility Phases 1 and 2 
serves the Town of Holden Beach, Town of Oak Island. Town of hallotte, City of Southport, large 
residential and commercial developments, and retail customers within the county residential service 
area. 

The County operates the Northeast Brunswick Regional Water Reclamation Facility which serves the 
Town of Leland, Navassa, City of Northwest and the H2GO (formerly North Brunswick Sanitary 
District) and is fully supported by user charges. The county has recently completed an expansion of 
the plant of .825 mgd to bring capacity to 2.475 mgd due to increased needs of the participants for a 
cost of $10.8 million with the debt to be serviced by the regional participant contributions and County 
retai l water fees. 

The County plans to make water transmission improvements over the next few years and expand the 
Northwest Water Treatment Plant in 2016 to provide potable water to meet the county's growmg 
demands for an estimated total cost of $3 . 9 million. 

Awards and Acknowledgements 
Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association ("GFOA") awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the County for its Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. This is the eleventh consecutive year that 
the County has received the prestigious award. ln order to be awarded a Certiticate of Achievement, 
the County must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual fmancial 
report. The report also must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal 
requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that this 
comprehensive armual report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's 
requirements, and are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

Acknowledgements. The preparation of the annual fmancial report was made possible by the 
dedicated service of the entire staff of the Finance Department. We would like to also acknowledge 
Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A., for its efTorts in the preparation of this report. 

Sincerely, 

fJuh't;,#?,~ 
/Ju;ie A. Miller, CPA 

Director of Fiscal Operations 
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MARTIN •!t STARNES 
& ASSOCIATES, CPAs. P.A. 

"A ProJ~siUiwl.~ssodmion ofCen ified P11blic .~cr::ollmcmrs ami .\Jmwgemcnr Co11mlt11111S" 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Commissioners 
Brunswick County 
Bolvia, North Carolina 

Report On the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of Brunswick County, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2013, and the related Notes to the Financial Statements, which collectively comprise Brunswick County' s 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accoun6ng principles generally aeeepteu in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance o f internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards genera lly accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Slandards, issued by the 
Comptroller GeneraJ of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the aud it to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fmancia l statements are free of material misstatement. The 
financial statements of the Brunswick Economic Development Commission and the Brunswick County 
Board of Alcoholic Control were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financia l statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparat ion 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit a lso includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting po lic ies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as eva luating the overa ll presentation of the financ iaJ statements. 

We believe that the audit ev idence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

730 13th Avenue Drive SE • Hickory, North Carolina 28602 t Phone 828-327-2727 • Fax 828-328-2324 
13 South Center Street + Taylorsville, North Carolina 2868 1 • Phone 828-632-9025 • Fax 828-632-9085 

Toll Free Both Locations l-800-948-0585 + Website: www.martinstarnes.com 
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Opinio11s 

ln our opinion, the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component un its, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Brunswick County, North Carolina, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position 
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund 
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

Otlter Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis, the Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance, and the other 
Post-Employment Benefits' Schedules of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such infonnation, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the infom1ation for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
frnancial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic fmancial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collective ly 
comprise the basic financial statements of Brunswick County, North Carolina. The introductory section, 
combining and individual fund financial statements, budget and actual schedules, supplemental ad 
valorem tax schedules, statistical section, as well as the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal and State Awards, as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits 
of Stales, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Implementation 
Act are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 

The combining and individual fund financial statements, budget and actual schedules, supplemental ad 
valorem ta'< schedules, and the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are 
the responsibility of management and were derived from, and relate directly to, the underly ing accounting 
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditjng procedures applied in the audit of the financia l statements and certain other procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underly ing accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards genera lly accepted in the United States of America. ln 
our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements, budget and actual schedules, 
supplementa l ad valorem tax schedules, and the accom panying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and 
State Awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as 
a whole. 
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The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic fmancia l statements and; accordingly, we do not express and opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have a lso issued our report dated October 22, 
2013 on our consideration of Brunswick County' s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financ ial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering Brunswick County's internal control over 
frnancial reporting and compliance. 

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A. 
Hickory, NC 
October 22, 2013 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As management of Brunswick County, we offer readers of Brunswick County' s financ ial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Brunswick County 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 . We encourage readers to consider the information 
presented here in conjunction w ith additional information furnished in the County' s financial 
statements, which follow this narrative. 

FINANCIAL fDGIILIGHTS 

• The assets and deferred outflows of resources of Brunswick County's governmental 
activities exceeded its liabili ties and deferred inflows of resources at the c lose of the most 
recent fiscal year by $88.4 million (net position). The County' s net position is impacted 
considerably by the genera l obligation debt the County has issued on the behalf of the 
school system and community college to fund capital outlay. Under North Caro lina law, 
the County is responsible for providing capital funding for the school system and college. 
The County has chosen to meet its lega l obligation to provide education capital funding 
by using a mixture of sales taxes, general obligation debt, and installment debt. A portion 
of the assets funded by the County are owned, utilized, and maintained by the school 
system and community college. Since the County, as the issuing government, acquires 
no capital assets, the County incurred a liability without a corresponding increase in 
assets. At the end of the fi scal year, the outstanding balance of the education general 
obl igation debt is approximately $61.5 million dollars. Furthermore, the entire amount of 
education general obl igat ion debt is collateralized by the full faith, credit and taxing 
power of the County. The County is authorized and required by State law to levy ad 
Valorem tax.es, without limit as to rate or amount, as may be necessary to pay the debt 
service on its general obligation bonds. Principal and interest requirements w ill be 
provided by an appropriation in the year in which they become due. Note 7F on page 5 I 
further explains the effect of education debt on net assets. 

• The County's net position of governmenta l activities increased by $8.4 million mainly 
due to increased net position in the Genera l Fund. 

• As of the close of the 201 3 fiscal year the County's general fund reported amounts 
restricted for Stabilization by State statute of $6.5 million and restrictions for public 
housing section 8 beneficiaries of $0.1 million, and $4.1 restricted for health and wellness 
programs totaling $4.2 million. The unrestricted fund balance totals $56.0 million of 
which $0.2 million is committed for revaluation purposes, $0.6 mill ion is assigned to 
ba lance the FY 2014 annual budget leaving $55. 1 miJlion available for spending. 

• The County bond rating with Fitch is AA for general obligation bonds, AA- for limited 
obligation bonds and revenue bonds which were adjusted upward due to recalibration 
from the agency. Moody' s Investor Services ratings were also recalibrated and improved 
to Aa2 for general obligat ion bonds, Aa3 for limited obligation and revenue bonds. The 
County maintained its general obligation bond rating of AA from Standard & Poor's 
bond rating agency, with limited obligation and revenue bonds both rated AA-. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Brunswick County's basic 
financial statements. Brunswick County's basic financial statements are comprised of three 
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes 
to the financial statements (Figure I). The basic financial statements present two different views 
of the County through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In 
addition to the basic financial statements, this report contajns other supplemental information that 
will enhance the reader's understanding of the fiscal condition o f Brunswick County. 

Required Components of Annual Financial Report 

Figure 1 

Management's Basic 
Discussion and Financial 

Analysis Statements 

I I 
Government-wide Fund Financial 

Notes to the 
Financial 

Financial Statements Statements Statements 

Summary Detail 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The ftrst two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial 
Statements. They provide both short and long-term information concerning the County's 
financial status. 

The next statements are the Fond Financial Statements. These statements focus on the 
activit ies of the indiv idual parts of the County's government, providing more detai l than the 
govemment-wide statements. There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: I) the 
governmental funds statements, 2) the budgetary comparison statements, 3) the proprietary fund 
statements, and 4) the fiduciary and agency fund statements. 
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The final section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial 
statements explain in detai l some of the data contained in those statements. Following the notes, 
supplemental information provides details of the County's non-major governmenta l funds and 
internal service funds, which are combined in one co lumn on the basic fmancial statements. 
Budgetary inforn1ation required by the North Carolina General Statutes can also be found in this 
part of the statements. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The government-wide fmancial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview 
of Brunswick County' s finances, in a manner s imilar to a private-sector business. 

The two government-wide statements report the County's net position and how they have 
changed. Net position is the difference between the County' s total assets and deferred outflows 
of resources and total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net pos ition is one 
way to gage the County' s financial condition. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the County's net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the statement for some items that will only result in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Botl1 of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of tl1e County that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from 
other functions tllat are intended to recover a ll or a significant portion of their costs through user 
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activit ies of Brunswick County 
include general government, public safety, public education, economic development, and general 
administration. The business-type activities of Brunswick County are water and wastewater 
services offered by the County along with internal services funds for the County's self-insured 
workers' compensation program and the employee health fund . 

The government-wide financial statements include not only Brunswick County itself (known as 
the primary government), but also the Brunswick County ABC Board, Economic Development 
Commission, Airport Commission, and Tourism Development Authority. Although legally 
separate from the County, these boards, commissions and authorities are impo1tant to the County 
because the County exercises contro l over their members by appointing them. Financia l 
information for these component units is reported separately from the fmancial infonnation 
presented for the primary government itself. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 15-17 of this report. 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The fund financia l statements provide a more deta iled look at the County' s most significant 
activi ties. A fund is a grouping of re lated accounts that is used to maintain control over resources 
that have been segregated for specific activities or obj ectives. The County, li ke all other 
governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compl iance 
(or non-compliance) with finance-related legal requ irements such as the General Statutes or the 
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County's budget ordinance. All of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: 
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and agency funds. 

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-w ide financial statements. Most of the County's basic 
services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily 
be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that wi ll be available 
for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method 
called modified accrual accounting which provides a cuJTent financial resources focus. As a 
result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that 
helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the 
County' s programs. The relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement of 
Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a 
reconci liation that is a part of the fund financial statements. 

The County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. 
The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the c itizens of the County, 
the management of the County, and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide 
and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the County to obtain funds from identified sources to 
finance tl1ese current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund 
demonstrates how well the County complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the 
County succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The 
budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the 
same fonnat, language, and classifications as the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in fund Balance. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted 
by the board; 2) the final budget as amended by the board; 3) the actual resources, charges to 
appropriations, and ending bala nces in the Genera l Fund; and 4) tl1e difference or variance 
between ilie final budget and ilie actual resources and charges. 

Proprietary Funds - The County maintains two types of proprietary fund . Enterprise Funds are 
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its water and wastewater 
activities. These funds are the same as those functions shown in the business-type activities in 
the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. The Internal Service Funds are 
used to report the activities for the financing of workers' compensation self-insurance cost 
incurred and the employee health insurance fund . 

Agency Funds - Agency funds are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of 
others. The County has eight agency funds. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements - The notes prov ide additional information that is 
essentia l to a fu ll understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial 
statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 26-64 of this report. 

Other Information - fn addition to tl1e basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report aJso presents certain required supplementary information concerning the County's progress 
in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its public safety employees and other post­
employment health benefits to em ployees. Required supplemental information can be found on 
pages 65-66 of this report. 
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Brunswick County's Net Position 
Figure 2 

Governmental Governmental Business-type Business-type 

Activities Activities Act ivities Act ivities Total Total 

20 13 2012 20 13 2012 2013 2012 

Current and other assets $ 107,522,927 $ 100,26 1,605 $ 74 ,383,331 s 65,354, 185 $ 18 1,906,258 s 165,615,790 

Capital asset (net ) 1 2 I .3 82,046 124 ,76 1,554 361 ,30 1,252 343,810,786 482 ,683 ,298 468,572,340 

Total assets 228.904,973 225 ,023.159 435 ,6 84,583 409, 164 ,971 664 ,589,556 634 , 188, 130 

Deferred Outtlows of 

Resources: 742,770 742,770 

Noncurren t liabilities 126,604,439 130,757,441 149,169,584 156.2 11 ,779 275,774 ,023 286,969,220 

Other liabilities 14,538,843 14,236,086 15,664,407 13,342,753 30,203,250 27,578,839 

Total L~abilities 141 , 143 ,282 144,993,527 164,833 ,991 169,554 ,532 305,977,273 3 14,548,059 

Deferred lntlows of 

Resources: 92,077 92,077 

Net positon : 

Net investment in 

capital assets 82 .982,620 83,875.530 2 15.460,422 207,222,01 2 298 ,443,042 291 ,097 ,54 2 

Restricted 12 ,788,396 14 ,349,327 12,788,396 14,349,327 

Unrestncted (7 ,358,632) (1 S, l95,225 ) 55,390, 170 32,388.427 48 ,031 ,538 14, 193 ,202 

T otal net positon s 88,4 12,384 $ 80,029,632 $ 270,850,592 s 239,6 10,439 $ 359,262,976 s 3 19,640,071 

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of Brunswick County governmental acttv1t1es 
exceeded its liabilitjes and deferred outflows of resources by $88.4 mi ltion as of June 30, 2013 . 
Net position is reported as follows: net investment in capital assets of$83.0 mi llion, restricted for 
stabilization by State statute $7.0 million, restricted for other purposes $5.8 million and 
unrestricted net assets of ($7 .4) million. 

The invested in capital assets, net of related debt category is defined as the County's investments 
in County-owned capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equjpment), Jess any related 
debt used to acquire those assets. Brunswjck County uses these capita l assets to provide services 
to citizens; consequently, these assets are not avajJable for future spending. A lthough the 
County 's investment in its capital assets is reported net of re lated debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be used to repay these liabilities. 

Total capital assets 
Less lo ng-term debt 
Capital re la ted defe rred o ut flows ofresources 
Less current maturities of long-tenn debt 
Land fill c losure included in lo ng-tenn debt 
Current portio n of compensated absences 
Educatio n genera l obligatio n debt payable 

Total invested in c apital assets, net of related debt 

8 

Amount (in 
millions) 

$ 12 1.4 
(97.5) 

0.7 
(9.7) 
6.3 
0.3 

61.5 

$ 83.0 



The final category of net position is unrestricted resources. This balance may be used to meet the 
government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At June 30, 2013, the unrestricted 
resources were ($7.4) million. Even though the debt issued has been issued to finance capital 
out lay, construction and renovation for the school system and the community college, the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board has determined that it is not capital debt for the 
County since it is not financing assets owned by the County. As a result the education debt is 
reportable within the unrestricted category of the net position rather that as part of the category 
invested in capital asset net of re lated debt. 

The impact of the inclusion of the education debt without the corresponding assets was offset by 
the continued low cost of debt due to Brunswick County's excellent bond ratings. 

Revenues= 

Program revenues. 

Changes for se.rvtcc:s 

Operat ing grants and 
contributions 

Capual grunts and 
cont ributions 

Gcn eraJ revenues:. 

Ad valorem ra~es 

Local option sales taxes 

Other taxes 

Sale of real property 
Invest ment eammgs 

Tot al revenues 

Expenses: 

General government 

Public safety 

Central services 

Human scrv1ces 

Transport at ton 

Environmental protect Jon 

Cultural ond recreation 
Economic and physical 
developm• nt 

Educat ion 

Interest o n long-term debt 
Water and "'astev•ater 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) m net 
pOSit on b. fore transfers 

Transfers 

Increase (decrease) in net 
posnon 

Net posnon. July I 

Net posit on June 30 

Brunswick County Changes in Net Position 
Figure 3 

Govemmc:ntaJ 
Activities 

1013 

s 16 , 142.527 $ 

19.487,824 

3,1 13,7 12 

109.152 ,892 

16.94 1.795 

3.484,388 

168.330 

168.79 1.468 

10.934,466 

35.303.805 

12.644.064 

26.348,700 

2 ,6 16,195 

13.394,236 

3.951 ,742 

7.6 16,623 

42 ,982.116 

4 .616.769 

160.408,7 16 

8 .382.7 52 

80,029.632 

Governmental 
Act 1vi1 u~s 

2012 

14,677.145 s 

20.269.505 

3.855.384 

I 06.878.322 

15 ,996,708 

3.163,720 

305,536 

165.146.320 

10.998.376 

34 ,715,586 

13,455,405 

26,325,541 

3,736,588 

13,876,612 

4, 169,2 18 

7.653,903 

39,852,618 

1.894,630 

156,678,477 

8.467.843 

71 ,56 1,789 

Bustness-type 
Act ivit ieS 

2013 

Business-type 
Activities 

2012 

62,287.665 s 38,2 17,799 s 

2,521,233 

75 1.218 

83,874 

65.643,990 

34,403,837 

34.403.837 

31.240.153 

239.610.439 

4 ,202,387 

127,494 

42,H7,680 

30.737,286 

30,737,286 

11.8 10.394 

227 ,800,045 

Total 

1013 

78,430, 192 s 

19,487 ,824 

5,934,945 

109.152,892 

16.941 ,795 

3 ,4 84 ,388 

151.218 

252,204 

234,435.458 

10,934.466 

35,303,805 

12 ,644,064 

26,348.700 

2,6 16 .195 

13 ,394 ,236 

3,95 1.742 

7,616,623 

42 .982. 116 

4 ,6 16,769 

3 4,403,837 

194,8 12,553 

39.622.905 

3 19,640.07 1 

T otal 

2012 

52,894,944 

20.269 ,505 

8.057.771 

106.878,322 

15,996.708 

3, 163,720 

433.030 

207,694.000 

10.998,376 

34,715,586 

13.455.405 

26,325,541 

3.736.58K 

13.876,612 

4. 169.2 1H 

7.653.903 

39,852,618 

1.894.630 

30.737,286 

187,4 15,763 

20.178,237 

299.361 ,834 

s 88.4 11 .384 s 80,029,632 s 270.850.592 s 239,610.439 s 359,262,976 s 319.640.071 
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities accounted for $88.4 million, which is 24.6 
percent of the total net position. Governmental revenues increased mainly due to increases in ad 
valorem tax collections, local option sales taxes and service fees. Operating grants funded $ J 9.5 
million of the county's governmental activities. Governmenta l expenses increased due to 
education operations and projects which are not recorded as assets on the county's records. 
Governmental net position increased $8.4 mi ll ion mainly due to principal debt retirements 
associated with education facilities for which the county does not own the underlying assets. 

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the County' s net position by $3 1.2 
million. Business-type revenues increased mainly due to an increase in wastewater user charges 
and assessment revenues. Business-type expenses increased slightly mainly due to increased 
expenditures associated with the new meter reading system. Business-type net position increased 
by $31.2 million due to the completion of capital projects and the principal retirement of the 
associated debt on the assets. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY'S FUNDS 

As noted earlier Brunswick County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance 
w ith finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds. The focus of the County's governmental funds is to provide information 
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of expendable resources. Such infonnation is useful 
in assessing the County' s financing requirements. [n particular, fu nd balance available for 
appropriation may serve as a usefu l measure of a County's net resources available for spending at 
the end of the fi scal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County' s governmenta l funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $90.2 million, wh ich is an increase of $5.1 mill ion over the prior year. 
Approximately $ 12.8 mi llion of the total fund balance is restricted by state stabilization or other 
restrictions and approximately $77.4 million is unrestricted. Of the unrestricted fund balance of 
$77.4 million at June 30, 2013, $21.8 million or approximately 28. 1 percent was committed for 
education and county capital projects and $0.6 m ill ion was assigned for subsequent year 
expenditures leaving $54.8 million of unassigned fund balance. The unassigned fund balance of 
$54.8 mill ion, which is approximately 60.7 percent of the total fund balance, is available for 
spending at the County's discretion. 

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal 
year, unassigned fund halance in the general fund was $55.1 million, while total fund balance for 
the general fund increased from $59.7 million to $66.7 million mainly due to in ad valorem tax 
collections, local option sa les taxes and service fees. Amounts in the General Fund balance 
assigned for subsequent year's expenditures totaled $0.6 million. The amount of restricted 
genera l fund balance was $6.5 mi llion for stabilization by state statute and $4.2 million for other 
restriction related to health and wellness and public housing section 8 programs. As a measure of 
the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare unassigned fund balance to total general 
fund expenditures. Unassigned general fund balance represents 35.8% of total general fund 
expend itures, while total general fund balance represents 43.3% of that same amount. The 
CoW1ty Capital Project fund balance decreased $0.9 million due to planned capital project 
expenditures. The Education Capital Project Fund balance decreased $1.3 million due to planned 
capital project expenditures. The Non-Major Governmental Funds balance increased $0.3 million 
due to a reduction in expenditures. 
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Enterprise Funds. The Water Fund' s net position increased $4.4 million to $145.7 million. The 
Wastewater Fund's net position increased $26.8 million to $ 125.2 million. The increases in the 
net position of the enterprise funds are from the completion of capital projects and the associated 
wastewater assessments charges and capital contributions. 

Internal service fund. The Health Insurance Internal service fu nd increased net position from 
$ 1.0 million to $ 1.7 million due to user charges in excess of claims. The Workers ' Compensation 
Internal service fund net position increased from $1.7 million to $2.2 million due to users charges 
in excess of claims. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights. During the fiscal year, the County revised the budget on 
several occasions. Genera lly, budget amendments faU into three categories: 1) amendments made 
to adjust estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information 
is available, 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such 
as federa l and State grants, and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain 
services. Tota l amendments to the Genera l Fund increased revenues by $5.1 million. The 
majority of the increase was comprised of $1.6 million increase in ad valorem taxes and $ 1.7 
million increase in restricted intergovernmental revenues. Total actual revenues exceeded 
amended budgeted amounts by $6.2 mill ion. Total actual expenditures were $4.8 million less 
than amended budgeted amounts, with the maj ority of that amount relating to expenditures lower 
than budgeted in central services, public safety and human services. 

Proprietary Funds. Brunswick County' s proprietary fund prov ides the same type of information 
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net position of Water/Wastewater Funds at the end of the year totaled $55.4 million. 
The primary factor affecting this amount was a net increase of $ 17.5 million in the County's 
capital assets. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets. Brunswick County' s investment in capita l assets for its governmental and 
business type activities as of June 30, 201 3 amounts to $482.7 million (net of accumulated 
depreciation) . This investment in capital assets includes land, bui ldings and systems, 
improvements, machinery and equipment. 

Brunswick County has experienced significant development and population growth over the past 
ten years. Growth occurred due to tourism and people re locating to the County. The County 
completed the first of two regional water reclamation fac ilities on February 12, 2003, located in 
the northeastern region of the County (referred to as Northeastern Brunswick Regional Water 
Reclamation Facility). For this regional water reclamation facility, the Board of County 
Commissioners entered into service agreements with four other jurisdict ions including the Town 
of Leland, Town of Navassa H2GO (formerly North Brunswick Sanitary District) and tl1e City of 
Northwest. The County owns and operates the reclamation facility, while the part ic ipants are 
responsible for their respective collection systems. Near completion is the expansion of the 
treatment plant from a 1.65 to a 2.475 mgd plant to serve the growing population in the northern 
region of the county. This joint venture allowed existing, less effective package treatment plants 
to be taken off line, therefore reducing the number of wastewater discharges into the Cape Fear 
River. Th rough an agreement with a local golf course development and industry, much of the 
treated wastewater may be land applied or reused for industrial purposes further reducing the 
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discharge into the river. The reclamation facility is fully supported by user charges. The County's 
investment in the capital asset is approximately $10.5 mill ion as of June 30, 2013. 

In addition to the Northeast Brunswick Regional Water Reclamation Facility, the County 
completed construction in February 2006 of the West Brunswick Regional Water Reclamation 
Facility. Participants in the system include Brunswick County, the Town of Holden Beach, Town 
of Oak Island and the Town of Shallotte. The treatment plant was expanded in 2011 from a 3 to 6 
mgd plant. Construction of transmission lines to serve the Towns of Oak Island and Shallotte 
a long with the southwest portions of the county was also completed in 20 I 1. Tht: treated effluent 
from the West Brunswick Regional Water Reclamation FaciJjty will be land-applied, either on 
tree farms or golf courses. There will not be any discharge of treated effluent to any surface water 
from the West Brunswick Regional facility. The facility is fully supported by user charges. Along 
with this effort, the County revised its sewer use ordinance and adopted a countywide storm water 
management ordinance and program to enhance the effectiveness of regional facilities. The 
County's investment in the capital asset, including construction-in-progress, is approximately 
$114.4 million as of June 30, 20 13. 

Land 
Operatmg plant s. buildings 
& improvements 

Equipment and vehocles 
Distnbut1on and collection 
systems 
Construct •on in progress 

Total cap11al assets, net 

Brunswick County's Capital Assets 
Figure 4 

Govern meDi al Governmental Busmess-type Busmess-type 
Activlth!S A ctivities Actavities Actavities Total 

2013 2012 20 13 2012 2013 

s II ,009.242 $ 11 .007,892 s 2,830.609 $ 2.830,609 s 13.839.851 

101 . 140.28 1 I 05.091.975 137.200.047 140.820,310 238,340,328 

6.409.779 6.074.553 8,314.041 6.158,992 14.723.820 

18 1,391.103 158,213,385 181.391 , 103 

2 ,822.744 2,587. 134 3 1,565,452 35,787.490 34 .388,196 

s 121.382,046 s 124.761.554 s 361.30 1,252 s 343,8 10.786 $ 482.683,298 

s 

Total 

20 12 

13,838,50 I 

245,9 12.285 

11,233.545 

158.213.385 

3 8,374 ,624 

s 468.572 ,340 

Additional information on Brunswick County's capital assets can be found in Note 4 on pages 42 
and 43 of this report. 

Long-term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, Brunswick County had total general 
obligation bonded debt outstanding of $67.7 million, which is backed by the full faith and credit 
of the County. 

General Obligation, Capital Leases a nd Installment Notes Payable 
Figure 5 

Governmental Governmental Business-type Business-ty pe 
Act1vit ics Activities Act ivilh!S Activities Total 

2013 2012 2013 2012 20 13 

General obligat oo n bonds s 63.91:5.000 $ 70.240,000 s 3.760,000 s 3.790.000 s 67,675,000 

L imited obl1gnt oon bonds 36.240,000 39.405,000 36.240.000 
Installment purchases & 
revolvmg loans 500,000 575.000 5:!.895.869 50.565,728 :53,395.869 

RevenUoO bond<; 97.936.222 102.529,141 9 7.936,222 

0 1her 35,65:5.001 30.676.767 3.887.-194 3, 150.77-1 39,542.495 

Total lo ng-term deb< s 136.310,00 I s 140.896,767 s 158,479.585 s 160.035.643 s 294.789.586 

Total 

20 12 

$ 74,030.000 

39,40:5.000 

51 , 140,7:!8 

102,529. 141 

33,827.54 1 

S 300,932.4 I 0 

The legal debt limit is $1.97 billion. The legal debt margin on June 30, 2013 was $ 1.86 billion. 
This lega l debt limit is detennined by the Municipal Finance Law of North Carolina, which limits 
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the amount of net bonded debt a County may have outstanding to 8 percent of the appraised value 
subject to taxation. The ratio of debt service expenditures to total general governmental 
expenditures is I 0.0% and to total general fund expenditures is I 0.7%. The County's 
governmental genera] obligation debt per capita is $556 as of June 30, 20 13. The County' s 
governmental activities gross debt per capita (excluding landfill c losure/post closure, accrued 
compensated absences and pension benefit obligations) is $876 made up of $556 of general 
obligation debt per capita, $3 16 in outstanding limited obligation bonds for construction and 
renovation of various county and education buildings and $4 for county building installment 
purchases. 

The County' s debt had a net decrease of $4.6 million in governmental and $] .6 in enterprise 
funds, for a total 2.0 percent decrease during the current fiscal year. The key factor in this 
decrease was the retirement of debt through principal payments. Additional information on 
Brunswick County's long-term debt can be found in Note 7 on pages 46-5 1 of this report. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES 

• The unemployment rate for Brunswick County is currently 8.7 percent and was 9.8 
percent at June 30, 201 3, compared to the state's seasona lly adjusted unemployment rate 
of 8.8 percent currently and 8.7 percent at June 30, 2013. 

• Inflationary trends in the region are similar to national indices. 
• Population estimation of 114,882 has grown nearly 56 percent since 2000. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing Brunswick County's budget for fiscal year 
2013-201 4. 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 

Governmental activities. The county maintained the tax. rate of $0.4425 cents. The last 
revaluation was for the 2011 levy. The next revaluation is scheduled for the 201 5 levy. 
Budgeted operating expenditures in the General Fund are expected to increase 5.3 percent to $159 
million. The largest increase was $3.0 million or 10.0% in public safety. 

Budgeted expenditures for education are expected to increase 0.1 percent or approximately $34 
thousand. Ed ucation funding includes a current expense appropriation to the Brunswick County 
School System that represents 36.5 percent of the ad Valorem tax base excluding any amount 
needed for annual genera l government debt service. The School System funds the majority of its 
local capital outlay needs from sales tax allocMions, bone! proceeds, lottery funds and ad valorem 
taxes. The County also includes an appropriation to the Brunswick Community College in its 
educational funding for current expense and capital outlay needs. 

Business-type activities. The water and wastewater enterprise fund is anticipated to increase 3 
percent due to normal growth and to cover increased costs associated with personnel, operation, 
and capital outlay. 
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REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Brunswick County's finances 
for all those with an interest in the government' s finances. Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial infonnation should be 
addressed to the Director of Fiscal Operations, Post Office Box 249, Bolivia, North Carolina 
28422. You can aJso visit our website: 

http://www.brunswickcountync.gov/Departments/GeneraiGovemment/Finance.aspx 
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Exhibit A 

COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Component 
Primary Gove rnment Units 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total Total 

Assets: 
Current Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents/investments $ 90,543,434 $ 46,461,852 $ !37,005,286 $ 1,076,461 
Restricted cash and investments 1,189,530 10,236,619 I 1,426,149 4,550 
Interest receivable 129,336 49,533 178,869 
Taxes receivable, net 8,257,984 8,257,984 
Receivables and special assessments, net 1,9 12, 11 9 14,638,459 16,550,578 18,695 
Other governmental agencies 5,490,524 1,072,565 6,563,089 326,057 
Inventories 1,924,303 1,924,303 204,852 
Prepaid items 20,816 

Total current assets 107,522,927 74,383,33 1 I 8 1 ,906,258 I ,651,43 I 

Capita l Assets: 
Non-depreciable capital assets 13,831 ,986 34,396,06 1 48,228,047 
Depreciable capital assets, net I 07,550,060 326,905,19 1 434,455,25 I 24,226,860 
Total capital assets 121 ,382,046 361,30 I ,252 482,683,298 24,226,860 

Total assets 228,904,973 435,684,583 664,589,556 25,878,291 

Deferred Outflows of Resources: 742 770 $ - $ 742,770 $ 

Lia bilities: 
C urrent Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 4,756,542 $ 3,004,508 $ 7,76 1,050 $ 172,808 
Advances from grantors 76,739 76,739 
Prepaid fees 1,864,540 1,864,540 
Current maturities of long-term debt 9,705,562 9,310,001 19,015,563 62,800 
Due other governmental agencies 134,3 17 
Payable From Restricted Assets: 
Customer Deposits 1,485,358 1,485,358 
Total current liabilities 14,538,843 15,664,407 30,203 ,250 369,925 
Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Compensated absences 2,874,683 4 10,670 3,285,353 
Law enforcement peusiuu obligation 1,298,804 1,298,804 
Other post employment benefits 24,923,255 3,444,824 28,368,079 
Long-term debt 97,507,697 145,314,090 242,821,787 341 ,479 
Total noncurrent liabilities 126,604,439 149,169,584 275,774,023 341,479 
Total liabilities 141 , 143,282 164,833,991 305,977,273 711 ,404 

Deferred lnflows ofResources: 92,077 92,077 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 82,982,620 215,460,422 298,443,042 23,828,460 
Restricted for Stabi lization by State Statute 7,003,93 1 7,003,93 1 393,407 
Restricted-other purposes 5,784,465 5,784,465 561 ,638 
Unrestricted (7,358,632) 55,390,170 48,031 ,538 383,382 

Total net position $ 88,412,384 $ 270,850,592 $ 359,262,976 $ 2 5, 166,887 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthejinancial statements. 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Program Revenues 

Operating 
Cbarges for Grants and 

Function/Programs ExEenses Services Contributions 
Primary Government: 
Government Activities: 
General government $ 10,934,466 $ 1,771,496 $ 7 13,544 
Public safety 35,303,805 8,077,465 1,579,854 
Central services 12,644,064 189,776 
Human services 26,348,700 2,35 1,986 14,187,069 
Transportation 2,616, 195 235,060 
Environmental protection 13,394,236 2,682,035 6,961 
Cultural and recreation 3,95 1,742 200,813 147,278 
Economic and physical development 7,6 16,623 1,058,732 2,428,282 
Education 42,982, 116 
Interest on long-term debt 4,6 16,769 
Total governmental activities 160,408,716 16,142,527 19,487,824 

Business-type Activities: 
Water 17,58 1,607 20,622,239 
Wastewater 16,822,230 41,665,426 
Total business-type activities 34,403,837 62,287,665 

Total primary government $ 194,81 2,553 $ 78,430, 192 $ 19,487,824 

Discretely presented component units $ 4, 156,450 $ 2,833,978 $ 2,755 

General Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes 
Local option sales taxes 
Deed stamp excise taxes and other taxes 
Sale of real property 
Investment earnings 
Total general revenues 

Change in net positon 

Net positon, beginning of year 

Net positon, end of year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Capital 
Grants and 

Contributions 

$ 

28,309 

1,998,505 

1,386,898 

3,4 13,712 

1,339,740 
1,181 ,493 
2 ,521 ,233 

$ 5,934,945 

$ 3,239,307 



Exhibit B 

Net (ExEense~ Revenue a nd Changes in Net Positon 
Primarx Government 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

$ (8,449,426) $ - $ (8,449,426) 
(25,618, 177) (25,618, 177) 
( 12,454,288) ( 12,454,288) 

(9,809,645) (9,809,645) 
(382,630) (382,630) 

( 10, 705,240) ( I 0, 705,240) 
(3,603,651) (3 ,603 ,651) 
(4,129,609) (4,129,609) 

(41 ,595,2 18) (4 1,595,2 18) 
{4,616,769) {4,616,769) 

( 121,364,653) ( 12 1 ,364,653) 

4,380,372 4,380,372 
26,024,689 261024,689 
30,405,06 1 30,405,061 

{121 ,364,653) 30,405,061 (90,959,592) 

1 09' 152,892 I 09, 152,892 
16,94 1,795 16,941 ,795 
3,484,388 3,484,388 

751 ,2 18 75 1,2 18 
168,330 83 ,874 252,204 

129,747,405 835,092 130,582,497 

8,382,752 3 1,240, 153 39,622,905 

80,029,632 239,6 10,439 319,640,071 

$ 88,412,384 $ 270,850,592 $ 359,262,976 

The accompunying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Com12onent Units 

Total 

$ 1,919,590 

I , 184,989 

I ,2 11 
1,186,200 

3, 105,790 

22,061 ,097 

$ 25,166,887 



Exbjbit C 

COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

BALANCESBEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2013 

Major Fu.ruls 

County Education Non Major Total 

Capital Capital Governmental Governmental 
General Project Project FlUidS F unds 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents/investments $ 63,285,847 $ 11 ,864,460 $ 9,424,452 $ 1,335,733 85,9 10,492 

Restricted cash and investments 812,039 377,491 1,189,530 
Interest receivable 94,915 15,940 11 ,812 1,578 124,245 
Ta.xes receivable- net 8,257,984 8,257,984 
Receivables - net 1,449,416 260.999 1,7 10,415 
Other governmental agencies 5,164,366 70,603 255,555 5,490,524 
Due from other funds 687.820 687 820 

Total assets $ 79,064,567 $ 11 ,951,003 $ 10,501,575 $ 1,853.865 103,37 J,OLO 

Liabilities: 

A~:counts payable and other liabilities $ 3, 125,331 $ 324,413 $ s 395,972 $ 3,845,7 16 

Due to otJ1er funds 687,820 687,820 
Advances from grantors 76.739 76.739 

Total l iabil ities 3,813,151 324.4 13 472,71 I 4,610,275 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 8.572,959 28,309 8,601,268 

Fund Balances: 
Restricted: 

Stabilization by State Statute 6.485,799 518,132 7,003,931 

Restricted - other 4,221,591 377,491 1,185,383 5,784,465 
Commi tied 214,566 11 ,626,590 10. 124.084 21,965,240 

Assigned 649,053 649,053 

Unassigned 55.107,448 (350,670) 54,756,778 

Total fund balances 66.678,457 11 ,626.590 10,501,575 1,352,845 9UJ 59,467 

Total liabilities. deferred inflow of resources and fund $ 79,064.567 $ I 1,951,003 $ 10,501,575 $ 1,853.865 $ 103,371.0 I 0 
balances 

Reconciliation of Fund Ba lance as Reported in tbe Balance Sheet-
Governmental Funds with Net P ositon- Go\rernmental Aclivities: 

Fund balance as reported in the balance sheet- governmental funds 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net positon are different because: 

Change in internal service net positon, attributed to governmental activities 

Consolidation of intemal service fi.md 
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore are not reported in the funds 

Other assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are deterred in.Oows in tlle funds 

Long-tenn liabilities, including interest and compensated absences, are not due and payable in the current period and, 

tl1erefore, are not reported m the funds 

Net positon reported as governmental activities 

The accompanying 11otes are 011 integral pa11 of the fiNancial statements. 
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\10, 159,467 

1,147,430 
2,781,48 1 

12 1.382.046 
8.509,191 

( 135,567,23 1) 

88.412.384 



COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND 
BALANCES - GOVERN.M:ENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2t113 

Major Funds 

County 
Capital 

General Pro jed 

Revenues: 

Ad valorem taxes $ 108,945,817 $ -
Local option sales taxes 16,941 ,795 

Other la'>es and licenses 2,262,74 1 

Um·estricted intergovernmental revenues 1,133,188 

Restricted intergovernmental revenues 17,592,379 1,998,505 

Permits and fees 3,162,231 

Sales and services 9,275,461 

Invesbnent earnings 113,344 23,127 

Other 1,627.789 

Total revenues 16 1,054,745 2,021,632 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

General government 10, 107,141 

Public safety 3 1,793,924 1,789 

Central services I 1.664,103 

Human services 25,051,483 

Transportation 373,450 2,242,745 

Envirorunental protection 13,420,533 6,3-15 

Culture and recreation 3,621,142 199,165 

Economic and physical development 4,850,697 13.217 

Education 36,675,154 

Debt Service: 

Principal retirement 9,910,000 

Interest and fiscal charges 6,-192,027 

Total e>.-penditures 153,959,654 2,-163.261 

R~owenucs on:r (under) expe nditures 7,095,09 1 (44 1,629) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Payment to escrow agent for refunded debt ( 16,275,000) 

Transfers from other funds 827,3 13 100,000 

Transfers to other ti.mds (3,176,532) (5 I 3,300) 

Premiums on bonds issued 1,875,258 

Refunding bonds issued 16,620,000 

Total other Jinancing sources (uses) ( 128,961) (-11 3,300) 

Net changejn fund balance 6.966, 130 (85-1 ,929) 

Fund balance, beginning of year 59.712.327 12.481.519 

Fund balance, e nd of year $ 66,678.457 $ I 1.626,590 

The accompanying 11otes are an i11tegral pm1 ofthejillOIICia l statements. 
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Exhibit D 

Education Non Major Total 
Capital ~vernmental Govern men tal 
Project Fu.nds Ftmds 

$ - $ - $ 108,945,817 

16,941,795 
] ,221,647 3,484,388 

1,133,188 

1,386,898 1,186,831 22,164,613 
154,324 3,3 16,555 

9,275,46 1 

20,749 1,951 159, 171 
1,627,789 

1,407,647 2,564,753 167,048.777 

108,599 10,215.740 

657,715 32,453,428 

11,664,103 

25,051,483 

2,616,195 

13,426,878 

33,665 3,853,972 

1,569.073 6,432,987 
5,422,064 -12 ,097;118 

9,910,000 
6,-192,027 

5.422,064 2,369,052 164,2 14,03 1 

(4,0 14,4 17) 195,701 2,834,746 

t 16,275,000) 

2,985.039 91 ,-193 4,003,845 
(3 14,0 13) (4,003,845) 

1,875,258 
16,620.000 

2,671.026 91,493 2,220,258 

( I ,343.391 ) 287, 194 5.055,004 

11 ,844,966 1,065,65 1 85 104,463 

$ 10.501.575 $ I .352.845 $ 90.159,467 



COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

RECONCrLIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN:O CHANGES 
lN FUND BALANCES- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR EN:OED JUNE 30, 2013 

Net change in fund balances- total governmental funds (Exhibit D) 

Exhibit D reports revenues using a current fmancial resources bas is, which generally means revenue 
is recognized when collected or is expected to be collected within 60 days of year end. Exhibit B reports 
revenues when the earning process is complete, regardless of when it is collected. This measurement 
difference causes timing of revenue recognition differences for the following revenue types: 

Property taxes 
Emergency services revenues 
Grant receivable 
Public Health revenues 

Expenses related to other post-employment benefits, compensated absences and law enforcement officers 
separation allowance that do not require current financial resources are not reported as expenditures 
in the governmental fund statement. 

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in the governmenta l fund statement. However, in 
the statement of activities, capita l outlay is not an expense, rather it is an increase in capital assets. 

The sale of capital assets is reported as a revenue in the governmental fund statements without 
subtracting the net book value of the capital assets sold. 

Depreciation expense allocates the costs of capital assets over their useful lives. It is not 
reported as an expenditure in the governmental fund statements. 

Unamortized outflow of resources related to refunding of debt. 

Principal repayments are reported as expenditures in the governmental fund statement. 
However, in the statement of activities, these transactions are not an expense, rather 
they are a decrease in liabilities. 

Change in closure/post closure liability estimate. Expenses are reported as incurred in the funds. 

Change in internal service net positon, attributed to governmental activities 

Proceeds from issuance of debt are reported as revenues in the governmental fund statement. 
However, in the statement of activities, it is not a revenue, rather it is an increase in liabilities. 

Change in net positon of governmental activities per Exhibit 8 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthejinancial statements. 
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Exhibit E 

$ 5,055,004 

207,075 
77,634 
28,309 

(82,728) 

(5,009,903) 

2,886.725 

(48,323) 

(6,217,9 10) 

742,770 

26, 185,000 

31,669 

1.1 47.430 

(16,620,000) 

$ 8,382,752 



co NTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLLNA Exhibit f 

STATEMENT OF R EVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES LN FU D BALANCES-

BUDGET AND A CT UAL - GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

General Fund 

Variance 

Original Final Pos itive 
Budget Budget Actual ~Negative} 

'RPvenue.~: 

Ad valorem ta.'<es $ 105, 111 .3 12 $ 106,757,682 $ 108.945,817 $ 2. 188, 135 
Local opuon sales ta'<es 15.66 1,80 1 15.697.347 16,941.795 1,244,448 
Other ta.xes and licenses 2,004,000 2.139,000 2,262,741 123.74 1 
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues 1.298,489 1.293.880 1.133. 188 (160,692) 
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 14.762,3 17 16,464,845 17,592,379 1, 127,534 
Permits and fees 2,494,2 14 2,724,504 3, 162,23 1 437,727 
Sales and services 7,293.504 8,479,216 9,275.461 796,245 
Investment earnings 56, 100 56.100 11 3.344 57,244 
Other 1,094,77 1 1,262,595 1.627,789 365, 194 

Total revenues 149,776.508 I 54.875, I 69 161.054,745 6, 179,576 

Expenditures: 

Current : 

General government 9.626.100 10.693. 189 10. 107,14 1 586.048 
Central services 12,520,684 13.035,299 11 .664.1 03 1.37 1.196 
Public safety 29,456,958 32,972.023 3 1,793,924 1,178,099 
Transportation 138,390 373.450 373,450 
Environmental protection 13.52 1,914 13.527,395 13,420.533 106,862 
Economic and physical development 4,859,835 5.090,681 4,850.697 239,984 
Human services 24,4 19.341 26,209.291 25.05 1.483 1.157,808 
Education 36.675. 154 36.675, 154 36,675, 154 
Culture and recreation 3,735,204 3.777,237 3.62 1.142 156.095 
Debt Service: 

Principal retirement 9,910.000 9,910,000 9,910.000 
Interest and fiscal charges 4.265. 190 6.500,448 6,492.027 8,42 1 

Total expenditures I 49.128.770 158.764.167 153.959,654 4.804 513 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 647.738 (3.888.998) 7 095 09 1 10 984 089 

Other Financing Sources ( ses); 

Refunding bonds issued 16,620,000 16,620.000 
Refunded bond escrow agent ( I 6.275.000) ( J 6.27 5.000) 
Premiums on bonds 1.875,258 1.875.258 
Transfers from other funds 5 13.300 827.313 827.3 13 
Transfers to other funds (2.009. 158) (3.176,533) (3.176.532) 
Conungency (400.000) ( 18,899) 18.899 
Appropriated fund balance 1,248, 120 4.036,859 { 4.036.859) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (647,738) 3.888 998 ( 128,96 1) (4.017.959) 

Net cha nge in fund balances $ - $ 6.966. 130 $ 6.966, 130 

Fund balance. beginning Of )ear 59.712.327 

Fund balance. end of year $ 66.678.457 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Exhibit G 

C O UNTY OF BRUNSWIC K , N ORT H CAROLINA 

STAT EMENT O F FUND NET POSITION- PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
J UNE 30, 2013 

Business-!XEe Activities 
E nter(!rise Funds 

Internal 
Water Wastewate r Total Services 

Assets: 
C urrent Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents/investments $ 28,346,609 $ 18,1 15,243 $ 46,461 ,852 $ 4,632,942 
Restricted cash and investments 3,244,268 6,992,35 1 10,236,619 
Interest receivable 39,221 10,312 49,533 5,091 
Receivables and special assessments, net 2,533,883 12,104,576 14,638,459 201 ,704 
Other governmental agencies 395,755 676,810 1,072,565 
Inventories 1,636,030 288,273 1,924,303 
Total current assets 36, 195,766 38,187,565 74,383,33 1 4,839,737 
Capital Assets: 
Non-depreciable capital assets 13,890,474 20,505,587 34,396,06 1 
Depreciable capital assets. net I 19,176,863 207,728,328 326,905,19 1 

Total capital assets 133,067,337 228,233,9 15 361 ,30 I ,252 

Total assets 169,263, 103 266,42 1 ,480 435,684,583 4,839,737 

LiabiJities: 
C urrent Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1, 12 1,292 1,883,216 3,004,508 910,826 
Prepaid fees J,864,540 1,864,540 
Current portion of debt 919,756 8,390,245 9,310,001 
Payable From Restricted Assets: 
Customer Deposits 1,485!358 1,485,358 
Total current liabilities 3,526,406 12,138,00 I 15,664,407 910,826 
Noncurrent Liabili ties: 
Compensated absences 293,016 11 7,654 410,670 
Other post employment benefits 2,402,897 1,04 1,927 3,444,824 
Long-term debt 17,353,342 127,960,748 145,3 14,090 
TotaJ noncurrent liabilities 20!049,255 129, 120,329 149,169,584 
Total Liabilities 23,575,66 1 141,258,330 164,833,99 1 910,826 

Net Positon: 
Net investment in capital assets 116,577,881 98,882,541 215,460,422 
Unrestricted 29, 109,561 26,280,609 55,390, 170 3,928,911 

Total net positon $ 145,687,442 $ 125, 163,150 $ 270,850,592 $ 3,928,9 11 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Business-!II!£ Activities 
Enteq;!rise Funds 

Water 

Operating Rc,•cnues: 
User charges $ 19.9 10.194 $ 
Assessments 13,452 
Intergovernmental revenue 298.109 
Other 400,484 

Total operating revenues 20,622.239 

Operating Expenses: 
Salaries and employee benefits 5,700.648 
Operating expenses 6.235,979 
Repairs and maintenance 749,383 
Depreciation and amortization 4,032..t25 
Total operating expenses 16.718.435 

Operating income (loss) 3,903.80-1-

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses): 
lnvestnlent earnings 6 1.8-1-l 
Gain on sale of real propeny 
Interest e:.qx:nse {863. 172) 
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (80 I ,33 1) 

Income before transfers and capital contributions 3,102.-1-73 

Dedicated service Lines I ,339,7-lO 

Total transfers and capital contributions 1,339.740 

Lncrease (decrease) in net positon 4A42,213 

Net I>OSitoo, beginning of year 1-l-l ,2-t5.229 

Net J>OSi ton, end of year $ 145,687,-1---1-2 $ 

The accompanying no res are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Wastewater Total 

18,036.477 $ 37,946,67 1 
22,984.913 22,998,365 

560,744 858,853 
83,292 483,776 

41,665.426 62.287,665 

2,775,059 8,475,707 
2.635.-t ll 8,871,390 

82 1.499 1.570,882 
5.305.082 9.337,507 

ll ,537,051 28.255,486 

30. 128.375 34.032.179 

22.033 83,874 
75 1.2 18 751,218 

(5.285,179) (6.148.35 1) 
( -l,51 1.928) (5.313.259) 

25,616,-l47 28,718,920 

1,181,493 2,521,233 
1,181A93 2,521,233 

26,797,940 3 1,240,153 

98.365,210 239.610.-B9 

125.163.150 $ 270.850.592 

Exhibit 8 

Internal 
Senrices 

$ 11 ,100,282 

lJ , 100.282 

9.962.01 1 

9.962.011 

1.1 38,27 1 

9, 159 

9.159 

1 , 147,-l30 

1.147 .430 

2.781,-1-81 

$ 3.928.911 



COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH C AROLINA 

TATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY F NOS 
FOR T HE YEAR ENDED JU E 30, 2013 

Business-type Acti itjes 
En terprise Funds 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppliers for goods and senices 
Payments to or on behal f of employees 

et cash provided by (used in ) operating acti vities 

N Cash From Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Acquis ition and construction o f capita l assets 
Interest paid 
Proceeds from issuance o f long-tem1 debt 

Principal payments on long-term debt 

ale of real proper!) 

et cash provided (used) in 

capita l and related financing activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities: 
Interest on ill\estments 

et increase (decrease) m cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents. beginning of )ear 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of )ear 

Reconciliation of Operuting Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Provided (Used} by Operating Activities: 

Operating income (loss) 

Adjustment ro reconcile operating income (loss) 
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amonization 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in sales ta~ refund receivabh: 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable/accrued e.\penses 
Increase {decrease) in deferred re,enue 
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating acti,i tie:. 

Supplemental Disclosures of Noncash Transactions 
Dedicated service lines 

Water 

$20,544.715 
(6.677, 156) 
{5,208,332) 
8,659,227 

(5.292.380) 
( 1.1 74.484) 

(755.376) 

(7,222,240) 

59.879 

1.496,866 

30,094.011 

31.590,877 

3.903,804 

4,032,425 
34.395 

( 120, 09) 
165,501 

(295.865) 
896.49 1 

43.285 

$ !;.659.227 

$ 1.339.740 

Tlte accompanying nole are an imegrol port of lite financial s/alement~. 
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\Vastcwalcr Total 

30,558,9 16 5 1.1 03.631 
(3.5 18,373) ( I 0, 195,529} 
{2.530.655) p.738,987) 
24,509.888 33, 1()9, 11 5 

( 19.10 1.690) (24,394,070) 
(5.285. 178) (6.459.662) 
6,327.750 6,327,750 

(7. 65.152) (8,620.528) 

75 1.2 1 751.2 18 

(25, 17 3,052) (32,395.292) 

21 ,757 8 1.636 

(641 ,407) 855.459 

25,749,001 

25, 107.594 

30. 128.375 34,032. 179 

5,305,082 9.337.507 
52.935 7,330 

(8,453.697) (8,574,506) 
557,780 723.28 1 
(24,360) (320.225) 

(403,4 14) 493.077 
(2,652.8 13) (2.65 2,8 13) 

43.285 

24.509.888 

s 1.181,493 

$ 

Internal 
en• ices 

11.100,2 2 
( I 0,052, 929) 

1,047.353 

7.662 

1.055,015 

3,577,927 

4.632.942 

1,13 .27 1 

(90.918) 

1.047.353 

Exhibit I 



COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION- AGENCY FUNDS 
JUNE 30,2013 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents/ investments 
lnterest receivable 
Taxes receivable 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Due to other governmental agencies 

Other 

Total liabilities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the jinancial statements. 
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Exhibit J 

$ 1,653,052 
2,503 

28,280 

$ 1,683,835 

$ 1,602,884 

80,951 

$ I ,683,835 



COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

l. Description of the Unit 

A. Reporting Entity 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Brunswick County is one of 2 1 coasta l counties in North Carolina. A political subdivis ion of 
the State, it is one of 100 counties established under General Statute I 53 A-I 0. The County, 
which has a population of approximate ly 114,882, operates under a Commissioner-Manager 
form of government. 

The County is responsible for and maintains services inherent to the operation of a County 
government including general government, public safety, human services, education, 
environmental protection, cultural and recreational, economic and physical development and 
debt service. The County also operates a water and wastewater utility system. 

B. Component Units 
As required by generally accepted accounting princ iples, these financial statements present 
the County and its component units, legally separate entities for which the County is 
financially accountable. Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate 
column in the County's government-wide financial statements in order to emphasize that they 
a re legally separate from the County. 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

Brunswick County Hospital Authority 
The Board of Commissioners organized the Brunswick County Hospital Authority and the 
County appoints and can remove all of the governing Board of the Authority. The County 
transferred title of its hospital facilities to the Authority. As of June 30, 20 13, the Board of 
commissioners voted to dissolve the Brunswick County Hospital Authori ty and the associated 
agency fund. The fund balance of $455,870 was transferred to the General Fund to establish a 
restricted fund balance to be used for health and wellness. 

Complete fmancial statements for the Brunswick County Hospita l Authority may be obtained 
by contacting the authori ty 's treasurer at P.O. Box 249, Bolivia, North Carolina 28422. 

Brunswick County Board of Alcoholic Control 
The County appoints all of the members of the governing board of the Brunswick County 
Board of Alcoholic Control ("ABC Board"). Ln addition, the ABC Board is required by State 
statute to distribute its surpluses to the General Fund of the County. The ABC Board, which has 
a June 30 year-end, is presented as a proprietruy fund. 

Complete financial statements for the Brunswick County ABC Board may be obtained at 
their administrative offices at 2567 Holden Beach Road, SW, Supply, North Carolina 28462. 

Brunswick County Economic Development Commission 
The Brunswick County Economic Development Commission ( .. EDC") operates within the 
County' s geographical boundaries and exists for the benefit of its residents. A ll of the 
members of the EDC governing board are appointed by the County and can be removed 
without cause. The County funds the annual budget of the Commission and employs the staff. 
The EDC, which has a June 30 year-end, has two funds - a governmental fund type and a 
proprietary fund type. 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROL1NA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

The EDC's financial statements include its blended component unit, the Brunswick County 
Economic Development Corporation, which is a non-profit organization, established to 
acquire, improve and convey property. Appropriations for the EDC totaled $392, 177 for the 
fiscal year ended June 30,2013. 

Complete financial statements for the Brunswick County Economic Development 
Commission may be obtained at the Commission's administrative offices at P .O. Box 158, 
Government Complex, Bolivia, North Carolina 28422. 

Brunswick County Tourism Development Authority 
The County, in conjunction with the Southport-Oak Island Chamber of Commerce and the 
South Brunswick Islands Chamber of Commerce. established the Brunswick County Tourism 
Development Authority (" TDA''). The County appoints five members of the TDA's ten 
member governing board. The other five members are nominated jointly by the two chamber of 
commerce organizations and then appointed by the County. The TDA, which provides a 
financial benefit to the County, was established to receive the proceeds of the room occupancy 
tax levied pursuant to Session Law 1997-364. The TDA is authorized to spend these proceeds 
to promote travel, tourism and conventions within the County. The TDA, which has a June 30 
year-end. is presented as a governmental type fund. 

Complete financial statements for the Brunswick County Tourism Development Authority may 
be obtained by contacting the Authority ' s Executive Director at P.O. Box 1186, Shallotte, 
North Carolina 28459. 

Brunswick County Airport Commission 
The County participates in the Brunswick County Airport Commission ("Airport" ) in 
conjunction with the municipalities adjoining the airport. The County appoints four members of 
the seven-member board. 

Appropriations to the Airport totaled $97,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The 
Airport, which also has a June 30 year-end, is presented as a governmental type fund . 

Complete financial statements for the Brunswick County Airport Commission may be obtained 
at their administrative offices at 380 Long Beach Road, Southport, North Carolina 28461. 

Other Component Unit 

Brunswick County Industrial Facility and Pollution Control Financing Authority 
Brunswick County Industrial Facility and Pollution Contro l Financing Authority exist to 
iss ue revenue bond debt of private businesses for economic development purposes. A seven­
member board, a ll of whom are appointed by the County, governs the Authority. The County 
can remove any commissioner of the Authority w ith or wit110ut cause. The Authority has no 
financial transactions or account balances and does not issue financial statements; therefore, 
it is not presented in the government-wide financia l statements . 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

C. Summary of Significant Account Policies 

Basis ofReporting 
The accounting policies of Brunswick County and its component units, as reflected in the 
fmancial statements for the year ended June 30, 2013, conform to generaJiy accepted 
accounting principles applicable to governments. 

Basis of Presentation - Government-wide and .F'und Financial Statements 

Government-wide Statements- The statement of net position and the statement of activities 
display information about the primary government (the County) and its component units. 
These statements include all of the financial activities of the overall government, except for 
fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal 
activities except for interfund services provided and used which are not eliminated in the 
process of consolidation. These statements distinguish between the governmental and 
business-type activities of the County. Governmental activities generally are financed 
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business­
type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are specifically 
associated with a program or function and, therefore, are c learly identifiable to a particular 
function. Program revenues inc lude (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or 
serv ices offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational requirements of a particular program or (c) capital grants and 
contributions which are program specific. Revenues that are not classified as program 
revenues, inc luding all taxes, are presented as general revenues including multipurpose grants 
that do not provide for specific identification of a program. 

Fund Financial Statements - The fund financial statements provide information about the 
County's funds, including its fiduciary funds and blended component unit. Separate 
statements for each fund category -governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented 
even though the fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. 
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, 
each displayed in a separate column. AJI remaining governm ental and enterprise funds are 
aggregated and reported as non-major funds . 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange 
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund . Exchange transactions are 
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating 
revenues, such as subsidies, result from non-exchange transactions. Other non-operating 
items such as investment earnings are ancillary activities. 

The County reports the following major governmental funds: 

GeneraJ Fund - This is the general operating fund of the County. It is used to account for all 
financia l resources except those required to be accounted for in another fu nd. The primary 
revenue sources are ad Valorem taxes, sales taxes, and federal and State grants. The primary 
expenditures are for genera l government services, public safety, human services, central 
services, environmental protection and education. 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Education Capital Project Fund - This fund is used to account for the additions and 
improvements to Brunswick County Public Schools and Brunswick Community College 
which are fmanced by transfers from the general fund, bond proceeds, and financ ing 
agreements. 

County Capital Project Fund - This fund is used to account for the additions and 
improvements of major County facilities which are financed by transfers from the general 
fund, bond proceeds, and financing agreements. 

The County reports tbe fo llowing major enterprise funds: 

Water Fund - This fund is used to account for the County's water operations. The Water 
Fund includes activity from the Water Capital Proj ect Fund. The Water Capital Project Fund 
is used to account for additions and improvements of major water enterprise fac ilities which 
are financed by transfers from the water fund, bond proceeds, and financing agreements. 

Wastewater Fund - This fund is used to account for the County' s wastewater operations. 
The Wastewater Fund includes activity from the Wastewater Capital Proj ect Fund. The 
Wastewater Capital Project fund is used to account for additions and improvements of major 
wastewater facilities which are financed by transfers from the wastewater fund, bond 
proceeds, and financing agreements. 

The County reports the following internal service funds: 

Workers' Compensation Internal service fund - This fund is used to account for risk 
management operations o f the County for the financing of workers' compensation self­
insurance costs incurred . 

Healtb Insurance Internal service fund - This fund is used to account for health operations 
of the County for the financing of employees' medical and dental costs incurred. 

Agency Funds- These funds are custodial in nature (assets equa l liabilities) and do not involve 
measurement of operating results. Agency funds are used to account for assets the County holds 
on behalf of others. 

Tbe County maintains eight Agency Funds: the Social Services Fund which accounts for 
monies deposited with the Social Services Department for the benefit of certain individuals; the 
Smithville Township Fund which accounts for the Township hospital district ad Valorem taxes 
collected, payment of bond debt service and payments to Dosher Hospital; the 
Intergovernmental Collections Fund which accounts for the proceeds of the motor vehicle and 
other ad Valorem taxes that are collected by the County on behalf of the municipalities within 
the County and fines and forfeitures collected and remitted to Brunswick County Schools; the 
Sheriff Department Trust Fund which accounts for the proceeds of court ordered property sales 
necessary to satisfy a debt; the Brunswick County Hospital Authority which accounts for 
monies held by Brunswick County on behalf of the Brunswick County Hospital Authori ty; the 
Tnlet Commjttee: Save Our Sands. an inter-local government lobbying entity for beach 
sediment management for which the County acts as fiscal agent; the Inmate Trust Fund which 
accounts for personal funds of the inmates in the detention center; and the 3% Lnterest Payable 
to the State Fund which accounts for motor vehicle tax interest fees collected by the County 
that are assessed by and remitted to the State. 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting -In accordance with North Carolina General 
Statutes, all funds of the County are maintained during the year using the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. 

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements - The 
government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund frnancia l statements are reported using the 
economic resources measurement focus, except for the agency funds which have no 
measurement focus, and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded at the t ime liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the re lated 
cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) 
vaJue without directly receiving (or giving) equaJ vaJue in exchange, inc lude property taxes, 
grants, entitlements and donations. Property tax revenue is recognized in the fiscal year for 
which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, donations and similar items is 
recognized in the fiscal year in which all e ligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for 
goods, services, special assessments or privileges provided 2) operating grants and 
contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Interna lly dedicated resources are 
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues 
include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operat ing revenues and expenses generaJly result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund ' s principal ongoing operations. The 
principal operating revenues of the County enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales 
and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sa les and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the 
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and availabJe. Expenditures 
are generally recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for princ ipal and 
interest on general long-term debt; accrued compensated absences; pension benefi t 
obligations; and accrued landfill closures and post closure costs which are recognized as 
expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported 
as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of gtmeral long-term debt and acquisitions 
under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

The County recognizes assets of non-exchange transactions in the period when the underlying 
transactions occur when enforceable legal claim has arisen, or when a ll eligibility requirements 
are met. Revenues are recognized on the modified accrual basis of accounting when they are 
measurable and available. Non-exchange transactions occur when one government provides 
(or receives) value to (from) another party without receiving (or giving) equal or nearly equaJ 
value in return. State shared revenues, sales tax., property taxes, federal grants funding federaJ 
mandates, and most donations are examples of non-exchange transactions. 

The County considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year­
end, except for property taxes. Ad Valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as revenue 
because the amow1t is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are materia lly 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTESTOFINANCIALSTATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the 
current year. Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the procedures for the assessment 
and collection of property taxes on registered vehic les in North Carol ina. Effective with this 
change, Brunswick County is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on 
registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the 
County. For registered motor vehicles, property taxes are due the first day of the fourth 
month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in 
which they become due. Therefore, taxes tor vehicles registered in Brunswick County from 
March 20 12 through February 20 l3 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 20 l3 . Uncollected 
taxes which were billed during this period are shown as receivables on these financial 
statements and are offset by deferred inflows of resources. 

Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the County are recognized 
as revenue. 1ntergovernrnental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual 
because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Expenditure driven grants are 
recognized as revenue if cash is received within 60 days of year-end. 

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of 
specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when 
program expenses are incurred, they are both restricted and unrestricted net position available 
to finance the program. It is the County's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant 
resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues. 

Budgetary Data 
The County's budgets are adopted as required by North Carolina General Statutes. An annual 
budget is adopted for the General, the Special Revenue (excluding the grant projects) and the 
Enterprise funds. AJI annual appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end. Project ordinances are 
adopted for all capital project funds. All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis 
of accounting which is consistent with the accounting system used to record transactions. The 
budget ordinance must be adopted by July I of the fiscal year or the governing board must 
adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted. 

Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level for the General 
Fund, Special Revenue, Enterprise Funds, and Capital Projects Funds. The County budget 
officer is authorized by the budget ordinance to transfer appropriations between departmental 
areas within a fund up to $5,000; however, any revisions that alter total expenditures of any 
fund or that change departmental appropriations by more than $5,000 must be approved by 
the governing board. During the year, several amendments to the original budget were 
necessary. As a result, appropriated fund balance increased in the General Fund by 
$2,788,739 which was largely the result of an employee merit increase and prior year 
conunitrnents to the current fiscal year. 

Deposits and Investments 
All deposits of the County, and each of its discretely presented component units, are made in 
board-designated official depositories and are secured as required by G.S. 159-31 . Any bank or 
savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina may be designated as an 
official depositoty. Also, the County and its discretely presented component units may establish 
time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts and 
certificates of deposit. 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the County, and each of its discretely presented 
component units, to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations fully guaranteed 
both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State ofNorth Carolina; 
bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of 
certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commerciaJ paper and 
bankers' acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust ('·NCCMT'), an SEC­
registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund. 

The investments of tl1e County and its discretely presented component units that have a 
maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non-money market investments are carried 
at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The securities of the NCCMT Cash 
Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund , are valued at fair value, which 
is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio' s securities are valued at fair 
value. Money market investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of 
one year or less and non-participating interest earnings and investment contracts are reported 
at amortized costs. 

Casb and Cash Equivalents 
The County pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to 
maximize investment income. Cash and investments are essentiaJiy demand deposits and are 
considered cash and cash equivalents by the County. 

Restricted Assets 
The unexpended proceeds of general obligation bonds, revenue bonds and certificates of 
participation issued by the County are classified as restricted assets because their use is 
restricted to that purpose for which the bonds and certificates were originally issued. The 
amount restricted for the use in providing healtl1 and wellness grants set up from dissolving the 
Brunswick County Hospital Authority. The amount budgeted by the Board of Commissioners 
for revaluation included in the General Fund Balance-Committed is restricted assets per North 
Carolina General Statute I 53 A-I SO. 

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 
In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the County levies ad Valorem 
taxes on property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The 
taxes are due on September I; however, penalties and interest do not accrue until the following 
January 6. The taxes are based on the assessed values as of January I (lien date). 

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts 
All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an 
allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of 
receivables that were written off in prior years. 

Due To/From Other Funds and Internal Balances 
Amounts reported at June 30, 2013 as due to/from other funds, generally represent short-term 
advances between funds. Such amounts reported at year-end are not available for appropriation 
and are not an expendable available financial resource 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Inventory 
The inventories of the County, the ABC Board and the Airport Commission are valued at cost 
(first-in, first-out), which approximates market. The inventory of the County's Enterprise Funds 
as well as those of the ABC Board and Airport Commission consists of materials and supplies 
held for consumption. The cost of the inventory carried in the County's Enterprise Funds and 
that of the ABC Board and the Airport Commission is recorded as an expense as it is 
consumed. 

Capital Assets 
Capital assets, which include land, buildings, operating plants, land improvements, water tanks, 
water and wastewater lines, wells, taps, pumping stations, equipment and vehicles, are reported 
in the County's government-wide and proprietary financial statements. The County's 
capitalization threshold for capital outlay items is $5,000. 

Capital assets of the County are recorded at original cost at the time of acquisition. Certain 
items acquired before July I, 1970 are recorded at an estimated original cost. Donated assets 
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

The County has elected not to capitalize interest costs which are incurred during the 
construction period of capital assets used in governmental funds. Any interest incurred during 
the construction phase of business type assets is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset 
constructed. 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the assets' estimated useful 
lives. These assets are reported in the County's basic financial statements net of accumulated 
deprec iation. 

T he estimated useful lives for the County's capital assets are as follows: 

Building, Operating Plants and improvements 
Enterprise Distribution and Collection Systems 
Equipment and vehicles 

Deferred Outflowsflnflows ofResources 

20-40 years 
40-60 years 

5-15 years 

ln addition to assets, the statement of financial pos ition wi ll sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financ ia l statement e lement, 
Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a consumption o f net position that applies to a 
future period and so will not be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The 
county has deferred costs from the advanced refunding of debt. In addition to liabil ities the 
statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows 
of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
represents an acquisition o f net position that applies to a future period and so will not be 
recognized as revenue unti l then. The county has prepaid taxes and receivables in the 
governmental funds and prepaid wastewater capacity in the wastewater fund . 
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Long-Term Debt 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

ln the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund 
fmancial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabili6es. 
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds 
using the straight-line method that approximates the effective interest method. Bond issuance 
cost, except for prepaid insurance costs, are expensed in the reporting period in which they are 
incurred. Prepaid insurance costs are expensed over the life of the debt. 

For governmental fund types, bond issuance costs, bond premiums and discounts, are 
recognized during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
fmancing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources 
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether 
or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures. 

The County's long-term debt for water and wastewater purposes is carried in the Water and 
Wastewater Funds. The debt service requirements for the water and wastewater debt are being 
met by water and wastewater revenues. However, the taxing power was pledged to make 
general obligation payments in the water fund if water revenues were not sufficient. At the end 
of the fiscal year, there was$ 3,760,000 water general obligation debt outstanding. 
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Fund Balances 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications 
designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent. 

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 

Non-spendable Fund Balance-This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because 
they are e ither (a) not in spendable fonn or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact. 

Restricted Fund Balance-This classification includes amounts from sources that are restricted to 
specific purposes externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law. Restricted fund balance is 
summarized as fo llows: 

General Capital Special 

Fund Projects Revenue Total 
Restricted for Stabil.ization ofState Statute-
portion of fund balance that is restricted by State 
Statute [GS. 159-8{a)]. $ 6,485,799 $ $ 518,132 $ 7,003,931 

Restricted for Public Housing·portion of fund 
balance that is restricted by revenue source fo r 
section 8 expenditures. $ 141 ,566 $ $ $ 141,566 
Restricted for Hurmn SeJVices Health Program-
portion of fund balance that is restricted by 
revenue source for health expenditures. 3,624,155 3,624,155 

Restricted for G::neral GlVemment-portion of 
fund balance tbat is restricted fu r heahh and 
wellness grants set up !Tom dissolving the 
Brunswick County Hospital A utority. 455,870 455.870 
Restricted for Public Safety-portion of fund 

balance that is restricted by revenue source for 
E91 1 expenditures. 452.597 452,597 

Restricted for Register of Deed;-portion of fund 
balance that is restricted by re"enue source fo r 
technology for the Register of Deeds oftice. 732,786 732,786 
Restricted for Education-portion of fund balance 
that is restricted by revenue source or unspent 
debt proceeds for Public School and Communit} 
CoUege Capital needs. 377,491 377,491 
Total restricted fund balance (Exhibit C) $ 4.221,591 $ 377.491 $ 1.1853 83 $ 5,784,465 
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Committed Fund Balance-portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purpose 
determined by a forma l action of the governments highest level of decision making authority. 
The Brunswick County governing body is the highest level of decis ion making authority for the 
government that can by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit 
fund balance. Once adopted the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a 
similar action is taken to remove or revise the limitation. Committed fund balance ts 
summarized as follows: 

Committed for Cfneral Cbvemment-portion of 
fund balance that can only be used for general 
government 
Committed for Cfneral Cbvemment-portion of 
fund balance that is restricted for a legally 
budgeted Ta;x Revaluation 

Committed for Public Safety-portion of fund 
baJaoce that can only be used for environmental 
protection 
Committed for Environmental Protection-portion 
of fund balance that can only be used for 
environmental protection 
Committed for Economic Devebpment-portion of 
fund balance that can only be used for economic 

$ 

General 

Fund 

214,566 

$ 

Capital 

Projects 

235,710 $ 

478,211 

3,817,092 

development 3,898,060 
Committed for Culture & Recreation-portion of 
fund balance that can only be used for culture 
and recreation 3,184,295 

Committed for Transportation-portion of fund 
balance that can only be used for transportation 13,222 
Committed for Education-portion of fund balance 

that can only be used for education 10,124,084 

Special 

Rewnue 

Total committed fund balance $ 214,566 $ 21,750,674 =$==== 

Total 

$ 235,710 

214,566 

478,21 I 

3,817,092 

3,898,060 

3,184,295 

13,222 

10,124,084 

$ 21,%5,240 

Assigned Fund Balance is the pottion of fund balance that the Brunswick County intends to use 
for specific purposes. The County' s governing body has the authority to assign fund balance. 
The Manager and Director of Fiscal Operations, as granted in the officially adopted budget 
ordinance, have been granted limited authori ty to assign fund balance. Assigned Fund Balance­
portion of fund balance that the Brunswick County management has budgeted or earmarked is 
summarized as follows: 

Subsequent year's e>.:penditures-portion of fund 
balance that is appropriated in the next year's 
budget that is not already classified in restricted 

General 

Fund 

Capital 

Projects 

or committed. $ 649.053 $ 
===== 
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Unassigned Fund Balance-portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or 
assigned to specific purposes or other funds. 

Unassigned portion of fund balance that has not 
been restricted, committed, or assigned to 

General 

Fund 

Capital 

Projects 

Special 

Re\oenue Total 

specific purposes or other funds $55,107,448 $ $ (350,670) $ 54.756,778 
==== 

Fund Balance Remaining for Appropriation-The following schedule provides management and 
citizens with information on the portion of General Fund balance that is available for 
appropriation: 

Total fund balance-General Fund 
Less: 
Stabilization by State Statute 
Restricted 

Committed 
Assigned 

Fund balance remaining 

$66,678,457 

(6,485,799) 
(4,221,591) 

(214,566) 
(649,053) 

$55,107,448 

Brunswick County has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with 
multiple revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the foiJowing hierarchy: 
bond proceeds, federal funds, State funds, local non-County funds and County funds. For 
purposes of fund balance classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance 
fust, followed in-order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned 
fund balance. The Finance Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it' s in the best 
interest of the County. The County has not adopted a formal fund balance policy. 

Inter-fund Transfers 
The principal purpose for inter-fund transfers is to distribute local resources between funds. 
Typically, the General Fund provides the basis of local resources for other funds. These 
transactions are recorded as "Transfers - out" in the paying fund and "Transfers - in" in the 
receiving fund . 

Other Resources 
The County's General Fund also provides funds to the Economic Development Commission 
and the Airport Commission to fund their rumual budgets. In addition, when profits are 
available, the ABC Board wi ll make quarterly payments to the County's Genera l Fund. These 
payments represent the County's portion of the ABC Board's surpluses which the ABC Board is 
required by State statute to distribute to the County. 

Compensated Absences 
The vacation policy of the County provides for the accumulation of up to thirty days earned 
vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. Ln the event of termination. an 
employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation days up to a maximum of thirty days. All 
vacation pay is accrued when earned in the government-wide and proprietary fund fmancial 
statements. Compensated absences are reported in governmental funds only if matured . 
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T he sick leave policy of the County provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick 
leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement 
may be used in the detennination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the 
County has no obligation for accumulated sick leave until it is actuaJiy taken, no accrual for 
s ick leave has been made by the County. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
Significant areas where estimates are made are: a llowance for doubtful accounts and 
depreciation lives. 

2. Cash, Cash Equjvalents and Investments 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments of the County as of June 30, 2013 inc lude the fo llowing : 

Cash on Hand 

Deposits - NOW , Sup erN OW, MMDA and 

Certificates of Deposit 

Inves tments: 

North Caro lina Capital Management Trust 

Total 

A. Deposits 

Reported at 

Fair Value 

$ 4,366 

138,337,749 

11 ,742,372 

$ 150,084,487 

All of the deposits o f the County are either insured or collateralized by using one of two 
methods. Under the Dedicated Method, a ll deposits that exceed the federal depository 
insurance coverage level are collatera lized with securities held by the depositor in the 
depositor 's names. U nder the Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, a ll uninsured 
deposits are collateral ized with securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of 
the State Treasurer. 

S ince the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the depositor, these deposits are 
considered to be held by their agents in each of the entities' names. The amount of the 
pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits 
and the actual current balance fo r interest-bearing deposits. Depositories us ing the Pooling 
M ethod report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of the ir pooled collateral covering 
uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this info rmation with the County 
and its component units o r w ith the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the 
exact amount of collateral pledged for the County and its component units under the Pooling 
M ethod. the potential e~ists for under collateralization and this risk may increase in periods of 
high cash flows. However, the State T reasurer of North Carolina enforces stric t standards of 
financial stability for each depository that collateralizes publ ic deposits under the Pooling 
Method. 
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The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method 
financial institutions. The County relies on the State Treasurer to monitor those financial 
institutions. The County analyzes the financial soundness of any other financ ial institution 
used by the County. The County complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when 
designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are properly secured. The County 
does not have a policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits. 

At June 30,2013, the deposits of the County had a reported value of$138,337,749 and bank 
balances of $ 138,583,104. Of the bank balances, $6,449,445 was covered by federal 
depository insurance and $132,133,659 was covered by collateral held under the Pooling 
Method. Cash on hand at June 30,2013 was $4,366. 

B. Investments 
As of June 30, 2013, the County had the following investments and maturities: 

Less Than 
Investment Tn~e Fair Value 6 Months 6- 12Months l- 3 Years 

North Carolina Capital 
Management Trust: 

Cash Portfolio $ 8,370,772 n/a n/a n/a 
Term Portfolio• 3,371.600 3,371,600 n/a n/a 

Total $ 11 ,742,372 $ 3,371,600 $ $ 

*Because the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfo lio had a duration of 0.3 years, it was 
presented as an investment with a maturity of less than 6 months. 

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising 
interest rates, the County 's investment policy limits at least 75% of the County's investment 
portfolio to maturities of less than 12 months. Also, the County's investment policy requires 
purchases of securities to be laddered with staggered maturity dates and limits all securities to 
a final maturity of no more than three years. 

Credit Risk. The County's investment policy limits investments to the provisions of G.S. 
159-30 and restricts the purchase of securities to the highest possible ratings whenever 
particular types of securities are rated. State law limits investments in commercial paper to 
the top rating issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs). As 
of June 30, 2013, the County had no investments in commercial paper. The County's 
investments in the NC Capital Management Trust Cash Portfolio carried a credit rating of 
AAAm by Standard & Poor's as of June 30, 2013. The County's investment in the NC 
Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio is unrated. The Term Portfolio is authorized to 
invest in obligations of the US government and agencies, and in high grade money market 
instruments as permitted under North Carolina General Statutes I 59-30 as amended. The 
County had no other separate investments in US Government Agencies at June 30, 2013. 

Custodial Credit Risk. The County's formal policy indicates that the County shall utilize a 
third party custodial agent for book entry transactions, all of which shall be a trust department 
authorized to do trust work in North Carolina who has an account with the Federal Reserve. 
Certificated securities shall be in the custody of the Director of Finance. 
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Concentration of Credit Risk. The County places a limit of $5 million on the amount that the 
County may invest in any one issue of commercial paper with a maximum of 25% of the 
portfolio allowable to be invested in commercial paper. County policy limits the in itial 
investment in the NCCMT Tenn Portfolio to $3 million. 

The County a llocates investment earnings to funds based on the balances outstanding at the 
end of the prior month. 

Accounts Receivable 

Disaggregate Information 
Amount (Net of AJlow.mce) 

Gowrnmental Business-Type 
Type ofReceiwble Activities Activities Total 

Customer Billings $ 971 ,919 $ 3,902,502 $ 4,874,421 

Assessments 10,735,957 10.735,957 

Deposits receivable 200,300 200,300 

Miscellaneous 739,900 739,900 

$ 1.912.119 $ 14.638.459 $ 16,550,578 

The County's accounts receivable as of June 30, 2013 are presented net of allowance for 
doubtful accounts as follows: 

AJiowance for Doubtful Accounts 
Was tewater 

General Fund Water Fund Fund 

Ta\l:s Receivable $ 5,553,485 $ $ 

EMS Fees 936,278 

Health Fees 404,209 

User Charges 120,000 110,000 

$ 6,893.972 $ 120.000 $ 110.000 

Due from other governments owed to the County consists of the fo llowing: 

Go\~romeotal Business-Type 
Acthities Acti\ities Total 

Local option sales tax $ 2.775.932 $ $ 2.775,932 

Sales tax refunds 495,905 970,383 1,466,288 

Due from federal govemnJ::nt for grant assistance 153.848 153,848 

Due from State ofNorth Carolina for grant assistance 1.928,914 1,928,914 

&rergency telephone system 135,925 135,925 

Lower Cape Fear Water & Sewer Authority reumursen1::nt 46,020 46.020 

Town of avassa reimbursenl::ot 56,162 56. 162 

Total $ 5.490.524 s 1,072,565 $ 6,563,089 
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Property Ta:x- Use Value Assessment on Certain Lands 
In accordance with the general statutes, agriculture, horticulture, and forestland may be taxed by the 
County at the present-use value as opposed to market value. When the property loses its eligibility 
for use-value taxation, the property tax is recomputed at market value for the current year and the 
three preceding fiscal years, along with the accrued interest from the original due date. This tax is 
immediately due and payable. The following are property taxes that could become due if present 
use-value eligibility is lost. These amounts have not been recorded in the financial statements. 

Year Levied Tax fnterest Total 
2009 $ 2,926,063 $ 958,286 $ 3,884,349 
2010 3,0 19,109 707,038 3,726,147 
20 11 3,470,324 511,873 3,982,197 
2012 3,488,500 200,589 3,689,089 

Total $ 12,903,996 $ 2,377,786 $ 15,281 ,782 
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Capital Assets 

Governmental capital assets at June 30, 2013 are summarized as follows: 

Depreciation was charged to functional expenses on the Statement of Activities as follow: 

June 30,2012 Increases Decreas es June 30, 2013 

Non-Depreciable Ass ets: 

Land $ 11 ,007,892 $ 1,350 $ $ 11,009,242 

Construction in Progress 2,587,134 235,610 2,822,744 

Total non-depreciable assets 13.595,026 236,960 13,831,986 

Depreciable Assets 
Build ings and improvements 135,918,632 97,886 136,016,518 

Equ ipment and vehicles 29,082,348 2,551,879 975,520 30,658,707 

Tota l depreciable assets 165,000,980 2,649,765 975,520 166,675,225 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Buildings and improvements 30,826,657 4,049,580 34,876,237 

Equipment and vehicles 23,007,795 2,168,330 927,197 24,248,928 

Total accumulated depreciation 53.834,452 6,217,910 927,197 59,125,165 

Total depreciable assets, net 11 1, 166,528 (3,568, I 45) 48,323 107,550,060 

Total Capital Assets $ 124,761,554 $ (3,331 , 185) $ 48,323 $ 1:!1,382,046 

Depreciation was charged to functional expenses on the Statement of Activities as follows: 

Function 
<kneral govemment 

Public safety 
Central services 
Human s ervices 
Environmenta l protection 
Economic and p hysical deve lopmer 
Cultural and recreat ion 
Educat ion 

Total 

42 

Depreciation 
Elpense 

$ 738,779 

$ 

2,786,158 

337,917 
159,596 
21721 I 

102,339 
991,0 12 

884,898 

6,217,910 



COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Enterprise fund capital assets at June 30, 201 3 are summarized as follows: 

Water Fund June 30,2012 Increases Decreases June 30, 20 13 
Non-Depreciable Assets: 
Land $ 760, 138 $ $ $ 760.138 
Construct ion in Progress 11 .375,609 2,189.645 434,918 13,130,336 

Total non-depreciable assets 12,135.747 2,189,645 434.918 13.890,474 

Depreciable Assets 
Operating Plants, building; and improvements 34,690,724 37.140 34,653,584 
Distribution system 122.771.848 2,217,523 124.989,371 
Equipment and vehicles 9,946.056 2,659.870 27.786 12.578,140 

Total depreciable assets 167,408.628 4,877.393 64,926 172,221.095 

less accumulated depreciation 
Operating Plants, building; and improvements 15,998,3 19 856,112 2,745 16.85 1,686 
Distribution system 28.661,834 2.442.433 31,104,267 

Equipment and vehicles 4,382.185 733.880 27,786 5.088,279 

Total accumulated depreciation 49,042,338 4.032,425 30.531 53.044,232 

Total depreciable assets. net 118,366.290 844,968 34,395 11 9.176.863 

Total capital Assets $ 130.502,037 $ 3,034,613 $ 469,313 $ 133,067.337 

Wastewater Fund June 30, 20 12 Increases Decreases June30,2013 
Non-Depreciable Assets: 
Land $ 2,070,471 $ $ $ 2,070,471 

Construct ion in Progress 24,4 11 ,881 17,346.529 23,323,294 18.435, 116 

Total non-depreciable assets 26,482,352 17,346.529 23.323,294 20.505.587 

Depreciable Assets 
Operating Plants, building; and improvements 136,944.664 739,574 137,684,238 
Collection system 69.4 15.988 25.o.t6,556 94.462,544 

Equipment and vehicles 1.8 11.7 14 473.8 18 211.740 2,073,792 

Total depreciable assets 208.172.366 26,259,948 211,740 234.220,574 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Operating Plants. building; and improvements 14,816.759 3,469,330 18.286.089 
Collection system 5.3 12,617 1,643.928 6.956,545 
Equipment and vehicles 1.216.593 191,824 158.805 1.249.612 

Total accumulated depreciat ion 2 1.345,969 5,305.082 158.805 26.492.246 

Total depreciable assets. net 186,826,397 20,954.866 52.935 207.728,328 

Total capital Assets $ 213.308,749 $38.301.395 $23,376,229 $ 228,233,915 

Total Enterprise Fund Assets, Net $ 343.810.786 $ 361.301.252 
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Accounts Payable and Inter-fund Balances 

Accounts Payable Disaggregate Information 

Governmental Business-Type 

Type of Payable Acthities Acth1ties 

Trade Payables $ 3,068,151 $ 1,109,974 

Construction Costs Payable 324,413 1,833, 170 

Accrued Fringe Benefits 386,663 61 ,364 

Future claims for workers' compensation 

and employee health benefits 910,826 

Other depos its held by County 66,489 

Total $ 4,756,542 $ 3,004,508 

Inter-fund R eceivables I Payables 

Inter-fund Balances as of June 30, 2013 are as follows: 

Payable Fund 

Non-Major 
General Cbvemmental Total 

Total 

$ 4, 178,125 

2,157,583 

448,027 

9 10,826 

66,489 

$ 7,761,050 

Receiwble Fund 

Education capital projects 

Total 

687,820 

$ 687,820 =$=== 

687,820 

$ 687,820 

$687,820 represents amounts due to the Education Capital Project Fund from the Genera l 
Fund for local option sales tax receivable at fiscal year-end . 

Inter-fund Transfers 

The County· s General Fund transferred funds during fiscal year 20 13 to fund County and education 
capital improvements. 

County Capital Non Major Total 

General Capital Project Cbvemmenta Government 

To: Fund Project Fund Fund I Fund alFunds 

From: 

General $ $ I 00,000 $2,985,039 $ 91,493 $ 3,176,532 
Education Capital Projects 314,013 314,013 
County Capital Projects 513,300 513,300 

Totals $ 827,313 $ 100,000 $2,985,039 $ 91,493 $ 4,003,845 
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6. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

The amount of deferred outflows of resources is a change on refunding of debt of $742,770 for 
governmental activities. 

The balance in deferred inflows of resources at June 30, 2013 is composed of the following elements: 

GowrnmentaJ Fund<; 
Unavailable Unearned 

Rewnue Rewnue Total 

Prepaid Taxes, not yet earned $ $ 92,077 $ 92,077 

Taxes Receivable 8,257,984 8,257,984 

EMS Receivab le 187,258 187,258 

Chnt Receivable 28,309 28,309 

Health Department Receivable 35,640 35,640 

To tal $ 8,509, 191 $ 92,077 $ 8,601,268 

45 



COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

7. Long-Term Obligations 
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A. General Obligation Bonds 
General obligation bonds issued to finance the construction of facilities utilized in the 
operations of the water system are reported as long-term debt in the Water Fund. All general 
obligation bonds are collateralized by d1e full fai th, credit, and taxing power of the County. 
Revenue bonds are collateralized by the rate setting authority of the Wastewater Fund. 
Principal and interest requirements are appropriated when due. 

The County' s General Obligation Bonds consisted of the following at June 30,2013: 

Outstanding Balance 

Original Issue Payment Information Governmental Business-Type 

Date Rate Period Amount Activities Activities 

2003 3.50% Annual $1.000,000 $ $ 

2004 3.25% Annual $800,000 800.000 

2005 3.00%-4.00% Annual $845,000 - $870.000 1.705.000 

2005 3.75%- 4.50% Annual $ 125.000 250.000 

2007 4.00% - 5.00% Annual $160,000 - $280,000 1.010.000 

2007 4.00% - 5.00% Annual $1.270,000- $2,260,000 10.020,000 

2009 3.00%- 5.00% Annual $60.000- $2.465.000 18,725,000 

2012 3.00% Annual $1,660,000-$2.750.000 14,785.000 

2012 2.00%- 4.00% Annual $30,000 - $285,000 3.760.000 

2013 0.33% - 4.00% Annual $80.000- $3.475,000 16.620,000 

Total General Obligation Bonds 63.915.000 3.760,000 

Revenue Bonds 

2004 3.00%- 5.375% Annual $1 ,0 I 0.000- $1.055.000 1.055.000 

2004 4.25% Monthly $19.188 - $50.143 5,361.222 

2008 3.50%- 5.00% M onthly $1.395.000- $3.630.000 45,280,000 

2010 1.60%-6.10% Annual $465,000- $1,930,000 23.095.000 

2012 2.00"/o - 5.00% Annual $80,000- $2,050,000 23.145.000 

Total Revenue Bonds 97,936.222 

$ 63,915.000 $ I 0 I ,696,222 

The County issued General Obligation Bonds for which the County does not hold title to 
the capital assets. The bonds were issued for public school and community college 
construction and renovation projects. The amount of outstanding debt at June 30, 2013 
for which the County held no collateral totaled $61,5 12,804 and was comprised of the 
following issues: series 2004 $800,000, series 2005B refunding $ I ,705,000, Series 2009 
(200 I) school refunding $18,725,000, community college series 2005 $250,000, series 
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2007 $ 10,020,000, series 2012 school refunding of 2003 and 2004 $14 785,000, and 
series 20 13A school and community college refunding $15,227,804. 
The County has pledged future water and wastewater customer revenues, net of specified 
operating expenses, to repay $39.7 million in water and wastewater system revenue 
bonds issued in 2004, $52.8 million in wastewater system revenue bonds issued in 2008, 
$ 14.75 million in wastewater Build America revenue bonds issued in 2009, $25.81 
million in water and wastewater system revenue bond issued in 2010, $23.15 million in 
wastewater 2004A refunding revenue bonds in 2012 and $9.68 million series 2012B 
wastewater revenue bonds in 2012, and $6.33 million in 2012C revenue bonds in 2012. 
Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for the West Brunswick Regional Water 
Reclamation Plant Phases I and 2 and associated transmission lines, the Sea Trail 
Wastewater Treatment Plant, Northwest Water Plant expansion, Sunset Beach 
Wastewater Collection System and utility service lines. Annual principal and interest 
payments on the bonds are expected to require less than LO percent of net revenues. The 
total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $ 174,656,091 . Principal 
and interest paid for the current year and total operating revenues were $14,768,879 and 
$62,287,665, respectively. 

The County issued combined system enterprise revenue bonds for water and wastewater 
system improvements pursuant to a General Trust Indenture dated as of May I , 2004 and 
a series indenture, Number 3, dated as of January I, 2008 between the County and First­
C itizens Bank & Trust Company, as trustee. The indentures authorize and secure all 
outstanding revenue bonds of the County's water and wastewater system and contain 
several fmancial and operating covenants governing such matters as rates, additional 
bonds, reserve funds, annual budgets, maintenance of the system and insurance. The 
County was in compliance with all such covenants during the fiscal year ended June 30, 
20 13. 

The County has covenanted that it will maintain various debt service coverage ratios. The 
calculation for the various debt service coverage ratios for the year ended June 30, 2013 is 
as follows: 

Operating revenues and inves tment earnings 

Operating expense excluding OPEB (net of depreciation) 

Net revenue available for debt service 
Add: 200/o surplus account (expendable net posit on) 

Adjusted net revenues 

Senior debt service 

Subordinate debt service 

Total debt service 

Add: 200/o senior debt service 

Adjusted debt service 

Coverage Test I 
Adjusted net revenues/adjusted debt service 

Coverage Test 2 

Net revenues/tota l debt service 
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$ 62,371,539 

18,210.821 

44,160,718 

10,767,443 

$ 54,928, 16 1 

$ 12,127, 116 

2,641,763 

14,768,879 

2,425,423 

$ 17, 194,302 

3. 19 
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B. Limited Obligation Bonds 

c. 

The County participates in various lease purchase agreements through the Brunswick County 
Leasing Corporation to finance certain public improvements. Limited Obligation Bonds are 
issued in connection with these agreements. Since the corporation is considered a blended 
component unit of the County, the lease obligations are classified as certificates of participation 
in the County's long-term debt. The County' s Limited Obligation Bonds consisted of the 
following at June 30,2013: 

Issued 

2004 

2006 

2012 

Payment lnfonnation 

Period Amount Rate 

Balance 

Govemmenb l 

Activities Purpose and Collateral 

Annual $390,000 3.125% - 3.25% $ 

Construct law 

390,000 enforcement center 

Annual $75,000 - $ 1,005,000 3.00%- 4.25% 

A nnual $ 1,680.000 - $2,110,000 2.00%- 5.00% 

Refund portion of2000 

LOBS: County 

6.625,000 Court house 

Refund 2004 LOBS: Law 

Enforcement Center 

29,225,000 Refund 2008 IP Schools 

$ 36,240.000 

Installment Purchases and State Revolving Fund Loans 

The County's Installment Purchase notes payable consisted of the following at June 30, 20 13: 
Payment Lnformation Outstanding Balance 

Governmental Business-Type 

Issued Period Amoun t Rate Activities Acti\ities Collateral 
Wastewater 

2009 Annual $ I, 152,000 - $ I ,846.000 5.38% $ - $ 12.384,000 ystem 

201 0 Ann ual $70,000- $75,000 5. 18% 500,000 J.ihrary 

Wastewater 

20 10 Annual $ 100.000 0.00% 1,800.000 System 
Wastewater 

20 12 Annual $875.988- $ 1.065.008 2. 18% 8.804,0 12 System 

Wastewater 

2012 Annual $247,250 - $687,250 1.840% 6.327.750 System 

$ 500.000 $ 29.3 15.762 
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The County's State Revolving Fund Loans payable consisted of the following at June 30, 20 13: 

D. 

Payment Information Outstanding "Balance 
Governmental Business-Type 

Issued Period Amount Rate Activities Activi ties Collateral 
Wastewater 

1997 Atmual $75,160 3.04% $ - $ 375,800 System 
Wastewater 

2003 Annual $375,000 2.55% 2,737,026 System 
Wastewater 

2006 Annual $51 1.525 - $790,275 2.21% 6.500.000 System 
Wastewater 

2005 Annual $806,645-$1,220,552 2.21% 13,967,281 System 

$ $ 23,580, 107 

Totallnstallment 
Purchase & SRF Loans $ 500,000 $ 52,895,869 

Changes in Long-Term Debt 

The following is a summary of changes in governmental long-term debt for the year ended June 
30, 2013 for the County: 

Current 

Governmental Acti,ities June 30,2012 Additions Retirements June 30,2013 Maturities 

General oblig;11ion bonds $ 70,240,000 $ 16,620.000 $ 22,945.000 $ 63.915.000 $ 6.020.000 

Limited obli!lill ion bonds 39,405,000 3,165,000 36,240,000 3.120,000 

Installment purchases 575,000 75.000 500.000 75,000 

Compensated absences 3,079,818 3.285.886 3,216,021 3,149,683 275,000 

Pension benefit obli!lillion l.l15.991 182,813 1,298,804 

Other post-employment benefits 20,166,030 4,757,225 24.923,255 

Landfill closure & post-closure 6,3 14,928 31.669 6.283,259 215,562 

Total $ 140,896,767 $ 24,845.924 $ 29.432,690 $ 136,31 0,00 I $ 9.705,562 

Note: The general fund is typically used to liquidate the compensated abst:nces and pt:nsiun 
liabilities. The total of other debt not issued for capital is $35,655,001 which is comprised of 
compensated absences of $3,149,683, pension benefit obligation of $1,298,804, other post­
employment benefits of$24,923,255 and landfill closure and post-closure of$6,283,259. 
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The following is a summary of changes in business-type long-tenn debt for the year ended June 30, 
2013 for the County: 

C urrent 

Business-Type Acthities June 30, 2012 Additions Retirements June 30, 2013 Maturities 

Revenue bonds $ 102,529, 14 1 $ $ 4,592,919 $ 97,936,222 $ 4,8 13,4 14 

General obligation bonds 3,790,000 30,000 3,760,000 155,000 

Installment purchases 25, 178,000 6.327, 750 2,189.988 29,3 15.762 2,52 1,238 

State Revolving fund Loans 25,387,728 1.807,621 23,580, 107 I ,788.349 

Compensated absences 413, 108 504.449 474,887 442,670 32.000 

Other post -employment benefits 2,737,666 707.158 3.444,824 

Total $ 160,035.643 $ 7,539.357 $ 9.095,415 $ 158.479,585 $ 9.310.001 

The total of other debt not issued for capital is $3,887,494 which is comprised of compensated 
absences of $442,670 and other post-employment benefits of $3,444,824. 

E. Maturities of Long-Term Debt 
The annual requirements to retjre a ll debt outstanding, other than compensated absences, 
pension benefit obligation, and landfill closure costs, at June 30, 2013, including interest, are 
as follows: 

General Obligat ion Bonds Lim ited Obligat ion Bonds Installment Purchases 
Governmental 

Activities P rincipal Inte rest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

20 14 $ 6.020,000 $ 2,381 ,775 s 3. 120,000 $ 1,346.200 $ 75.000 $ 25.900 

20 15 7,280.000 2, I 08,184 3,085.000 1,259.325 75.000 22.0 15 

2016 7,800,000 1,803,988 3.050,000 1.157.024 70.000 18. 130 

20 17 7.675.000 1.559,707 3.0 10.000 1.055,925 70.000 14,504 

20 18 7.6 15.000 1.270,074 3,000.000 935,525 70.000 10.878 

20 19-2023 27, 145,000 2.505.640 12. 115,000 2.999.956 140,000 10.878 

2024-2028 380.000 11 .400 8.860.000 870.400 

T otals $63.9 15.000 $ 11.640.768 $36.240,000 $ 9,624,355 $ 500.000 $ 102.305 

General Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds Slate Revolving Loans Installment Purchases 

Business-Type 
Activities Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

20 14 $ 155.000 $ 137.775 $ 4,813,414 $ 4,453.822 $ 1.788,349 $ 532,503 $ 2,521.238 $ 935,204 

20 15 160,000 134,675 4,970,030 4,277,818 1,809,065 491 ,502 2.957,958 867.356 

20 16 165,000 129.875 5,127,025 4.095.839 1.830,237 450.044 3.06 1,908 772,972 

::!0 17 170,000 125,900 5.320.762 3.886.589 1,851 .876 408,119 3,168,028 664,856 

2018 175.000 120,150 5,469,324 3,694.727 I ,873,993 365,7 17 3,281.378 552.031 

::!0 19-2023 960,000 510,350 29,389.555 14,721.435 9.3-13,361 1.197,918 13.201 .322 988.036 

202-1-2028 1,160,000 31 :uoo 28,426. 112 7,965,920 5,083,226 225,319 823,930 2.980 

2029-2033 815.000 68.100 14,420,000 1.324.524 300.000 

Totals $ 3,760,000 $ 1.539.025 $97,936.222 $44,420,674 $23,580. 107 $3,67 1,122 $29,315.762 $4.783,435 
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F. Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt 

G. 

The total invested in capita l assets, net of related debt at June 30, 201 3 is composed of the 
following elements: 

G>vemrrental Business-tn e Total 
Total capital assets (net of depreciation) $ 121,382.046 $ 361,301 ,252 $ 482,683,298 

Total debt, gross 136,310.001 158,479,585 294,789,586 
Less: 
Capital related deferred outflows of resources 742,770 742,770 
Education debt for which the County does not hold title 61,512,804 61,512,804 
Other debt not issued for capital 35,655,001 3,887,494 39542.495 
Unexpended proceeds 8,751,261 8,751,261 

Total capital debt 38,399,426 145,840,830 184,240,256 

Invested in capital assets. net of related debt $ 82,982,620 $ 215,460,422 $ 298,443,042 

Other Debt Disclosures 

At June 30,201 3, the County had a legal debt margin of $ 1.86 billion. 

Advanced Refundings: On April 18, 201 3, the County issued $ 12.680,000 series 201 3A 
general obligation advance re funding bonds to provide resources to purchase U.S. 
government securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of providing 
general resources for all future debt service payments of $ I 4,890, 792 of general obligation 
bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased. The liabilities for the 
debt were removed from the governmental activities column of the statement of net position 
in the fiscal year ending June 30, 201 3. The reacquisition price was higher than the net 
carrying amount of the old debt by $20,000. The amount was netted against the net debt 
and amortized over the life of the refunded debt, which is same as the life of the new issue. 
The advance refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next 
eleven years by $62 1,559 in a net economic gain of $575.45 1. 

On April 18, 201 3, the County issued $3,940,000 series 201 38 general obligation advance 
refunding bonds to provide resources to purchase U.S. government securities that were 
placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of providing general resources for a ll future 
debt service payments of $3,976,500 of general obligation bonds. As a result, the refunded 
bonds are considered to be defeased. The liabilities for the debt were removed from the 
governmental activities column of the statement of net position in the fiscal year ending June 
30, 20 13. The reacquisition price was higher than the net carrying amount of the o ld debt by 
$325,000. The amount was netted against the net debt and amortized over the life of the 
refunded debt, which is same as the life of the new issue. The advance refunding was 
undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next eleven years by $ 121,211 in a 
net economic gain of$ 11 9,787. 

8. Conduit Debt ObJjgations 

Brunswick County Industrial Facility and Pollution Control Authority issued industria l revenue bonds 
to provide financial assistance to private businesses for economic development purposes. These bonds 
are secured by the properties financed as well as letters of credit and are payable sole ly from payments 
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rece ived from the private businesses involved. Ownership of the acquired faci lities is in the name of 
the private business served by the bond issuance. Neitl1er the County, tl1e Authority, the State, nor any 
political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for the repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, 
the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financ ial statements. As of June 30, 2013, 
there are no industrial revenue bonds outstanding. 

9. Pension Plan Obligations 

A. Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System 

Plan Description 
The County contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System 
("LGERS"), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defmed benefit pension plan administered by 
the State of North Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan 
members and benefic iaries. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish 
and amend benefit provisions to tlle North Carolina General Assembly. The Local 
Governmental Employees' Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report for the State of North Carolina. The State's Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report inc ludes financial statements and required supplementary infom1ation for 
LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 
Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454. 

Funding Policy 
Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary. The 
County is required to contribute an actuarially detem1ined rate. For the County the current 
rate for non-Soc ial Service Department employees not engaged in law enforcement, for 
Social Services Department employees and for law enforcement officers is 6.74%, 6.74% and 
6.77%, respectively, of annual covered payroll. The County's contributions to LGERS for 
the years ended June 30, 201 3, 2012 and 20 1 ] were $2,827,370, $2,950,533 and $2,83 1,593 
respectively. The contributions made by the County equaled the required contributions for 
each year. 

B. Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance 

Plan Description 
The County administers a public employee retirement system (the "Separation J\ llowance"); a 
single-employer, defmed benefit pension plan tllat provides retirement benefits to the County's 
sworn law enforcement officers. Tbe Separation Allowance is equal to .85% of the annual 
equivalent of tlle base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the covered employee 
for eacb year of creditable service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in 
salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by the General Assembly. Artic le 120 
of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North 
Carolina General Assembly. The plan does not issue separate financial statements. 
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All full-time County law enforcement officers are covered by the Separation A llowance. At 
December 31, 2012, the Separation Allowance's membership consisted of: 

Retirees receiving benefits 

Active plan rrember 

Total 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Accounting 
The County has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go basis. Pension 
expenditures are made from the Genera l Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. Benefi ts are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
terms of the plan. 

Method Used to Value Investments 
No funds are set aside to pay future benefits and adm inistration costs. These expenditures are 
paid as they come due. 

Contributions 
The County is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits 
and has chosen to fund the benefit payments on a pay as you go basis through appropriations 
made in the General Fund operating budget. The County's obligation to contribute to this plan is 
established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. There were no 
contributions made by employees. 

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the 
December 3 1, 2011 actuarial valuation us ing the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. 
The actuarial assumptions inc luded (a) 5.00% investment rate of return (net of administrative 
expenses) and (b) proj ected salary increases of 4.25% to 7.85% per year. Both (a) and (b) 
included an inflation component of 3.0%. The assumptions did not include postretirement 
benefit increases. 

The actuarial value of assets was detennined using the market value of investments. The 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed 
basis. The remaining amortization period at December 3 1,2011 was 19 years. 

Annual Pension Costs and Net Pension Obligation 

T he County's annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Separat ion Allowance for 
the current year were as follows: 

Annual required contribution 

Interest on net pension obligation 

Adjustment to annual required contribution 

Ann ua l pen s ion cost 

Contributions made 

Increase in net pension, obligat ion 

Net pens ion obligation, beginning ofyear 

Net pens ion obligation, end of year 
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$ 

$ 

230.929 

55,800 

(69,449) 

2 17,280 

34,467 

182,813 

1.1 15,991 

1,298,804 
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Funded Status and Funding Progress 

Three Year Trend Information 
Annual 

Fiscal Year Pension Cost %ofAPC Net Pension 

Ended (APq Contributed Obligation 
20 11 $ 211 ,585 19.12% $ 962,705 
2012 199,999 23.36% 1,11 5,991 

201 3 217,280 15.86% 1,298,804 

As of December 3 I, 20 12, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was not funded . 
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
(UAAL) was $1,713,666. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered 
by the plan) was $7,141 ,765, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 23.99%. 
The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following 
the notes to the financial statements, presents muJtjyear trend information about whether the 
actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits. 

C. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers 

Plan Description 
The County contributes to the Supplemental Retjrement Income Plan C Pian"), a defined 
contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of 
Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the 
County. Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit 
provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income 
Plan for Law Enforcement Officers is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State' s CAFR includes the pension trust 
fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 40 I (k) plan that includes the 
Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That report may be 
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, 
North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (9 19) 981-5454. 

Funding Policy 
Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the County to contribute each month an amount 
equal to five percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested 
immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the 
plan . Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2013 were $497,329 which consisted of 
$369,644 from the County and $127,685 from the law enforcement officers. 

D. Deferred Compensation Plans 
The County also offers, to employees not engaged in law enforcement, a deferred 
compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 401 (k). 
Employee participation is discretionary and is limited to the amount allowable under the 
Internal Revenue Code. For each qualified employee, the County contributes 5% of the 
employee' s pretax annual compensation to the plan. Contributions for the year ended June 
30, 2013 were $2,544, 159 which consisted of$1,729,944 from the County and $814,215 from 
the employees. 
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E. Registers of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund 

Plan Description 
The County also contributes to the Registers of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund (''Fund"), a 
noncontributory, defined contribution plan administered by the North Carolina Department of 
State Treasurer. The Fund provides supplemental pension benefits to any County register of 
deeds that is retired under the Local Government Employees' Retirement System (' LGERS") or 
an equivalent locally sponsored plan. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 161 assigns the authority to 
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Registers 
of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for the Registers of Deeds' Supplemental 
Pension Fund. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 
1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (91 9) 98 1-5454. 

Funding Policy 
On a monthly basis, the County remits to the Department of State Treasurer an amount equal to 
one and one-half percent ( 1.5%) of the monthly receipts collected pursuant to Article 3 o f G.S. 
161 . Immediately following January I of each year, the Department of State Treasurer divides 
ninety-three percent (93%) of the amount in the Fund at the end of the preceding calendar year 
into equal shares to be disbursed as monthly benefits. The remaining seven percent (7%) of the 
Fund's assets may be used by the State Treasurer in admin istering the Fund. For the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2013, the County's required and actual contributions were $ 18,737. 

F. Other Employment Benefits 
The County has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit 
Plan for members of the Local Governmental Employees ' Retirement System ("Death Benefit 
Plan"), a multiple-employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term 
cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year of 
contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or 
termination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership service in the 
System at the time of death are eligible for deatb benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments 
to beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest month's salary in a row during the 24 
months prior to his/her death, but the benefit will be a minimum of $25,000 and wi ll not 
exceed $50,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan. The 
County has no liabi li ty beyond the payment of monthly contributions. Contributions are 
determined as a percentFtge of monthly payrolls, based upon rates established annually by the 
State. Separate rates are set for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law 
enforcement officers. Because the benefit payments are made by the Death Benefit Plan and 
not by the County, the County does not determine the number of eligible partic ipants. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, there were no County contributions to the State for 
death benefits. Due to a surplus, a decision was made temporarily to stop employer 
contributions beginning July I, 20 12. 

G. Other Post-Employment Benefits - Health Care Benefits 

Plan Description 
In addition to providing pension benefits the County has elected that an employee who retires 
from Brunswick County t hrough regular retirement with at least ten years of creditable 
service with the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System or the 
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North Carolina Law Enforcement Officers' Retirement System or who through disability 
retirement has five years of credi table service may continue health insurance coverage until 
age 65 at no cost to the retiree. Retired employees meeting the criteria discussed herein will 
be provided heaJth and dental insurance in the same manner as the active County employees. 
Once a retiree reaches their sixty-fifth birthday, the retiree will be provided coverage in the 
form of a Medicare supplement policy purchased by the County. The County pays the full 
cost of coverage for these benefits. Retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at 
the County' s group rates until the retiree reaches age sixty-five. Currently, 207 retirees are 
eligible for post-retirement health benefits. The plan is a single-employer defined benefit 
plan. A separate report is not issued for the plan. 

Membership of the plan consisted of the foUowiog at December 3 1,2012, the date of the 
latest actuaria l valuation: 

Retirees and dependents receiv ing benefits 
Terminated plan members entitled to but not 

yet receiving benefits 

Active plan members 

Total 

Funding Policy 

General 
Fmployees 

207 

756 

963 

Law Fnforcement 
Officers 

n/a 

135 

135 

The County pays the full cost of coverage for the health care benefi ts paid for qualified 
retirees. The County's pre-65 retiree members pay the current active employee rate for 
dependent coverage, if the retiree elects to purchase the coverage. The County has chosen to 
fund the health care benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

The current Annual Required Contribution rate is 16.38% of annual covered payroll. For the 
current fiscal year, the County contributed $ I ,205,552 or 2.6 1% of annual covered payro ll for 
retiree health premiums. The County is self-insured for pre-65 retirees and fully insured 
through a private Medicare and prescription supplement insurer for those retirees age 65 and 
above. There were no contributions made by retired employees, except for pre-65 retirees 
e lecting dependent coverage in the amount of $73,375. The County's obligation to contribute 
to the Plan is established and may be amended by the County Board. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
Post-employment expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and 
administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they come due. 
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Annual Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Cost and Net Obligation 
The County's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required 
contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially detem1ined in accordance with the 
parameters of GASB statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an 
ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded 
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The 
following table shows the components of the County's annual OPEB cost for the year, the 
amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the County's net OPEB obligation for 
the healthcare benefits: 

Annual required contribution 

Interes t on net pens ion obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 

Annual pension cost 
Contributions made 

Increase in net pens ion, obligation 

Net pensio n obligation, beginning ofyear 

Net pens io n o bligation, end of year 

$ 

$ 

6,628,993 

916, 148 

(875,206) 

6,669,935 
( 1,205,552) 

5,464,383 

22,903,6% 

28,368,079 

The County's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, 
and the net OPEB obligation for 201 3 were as follows: 

Percentage 
of Annual 

Fiscal Year AnnualOPEB OPEBCost Net OPEB 
Ended Cost Contributed Obligation 
2008 $ 5, 150,934 15.8"/o $ 4,336,198 

2009 5,648,091 17.0% 9,026,407 

2010 5,648,091 17.7% 13,677,608 

2011 5,884,343 22.5% 18,242,147 

2012 5,884,343 20.9% 22,903,6% 

2013 6,669,935 18.2% 28,368,079 

Fund Status and Funding Progress 
As of December 3 I, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was not funded. 
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the unfunded actuaria l accrued liability 
(UAAL) was $66,633,440. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered 
by the plan) was $40,456,870, and the ratio of the VAAL to the covered payroll was 164.7%. 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the va lue of reported amounts 
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples 
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and heaJth care trends. Amounts 
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of 
the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past 
expectations and new est imates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, 
presented as required supplementary information fo llowing the notes to the financial 
statements, presents multi-year trend infom1ation about whether the actuarial accrued 
liabilit ies for benefits. 
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the 
plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits 
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs 
between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term 
volatil ity in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value assets, consistent with the 
long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the December 31, 2012 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method 
was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.00 percent investment rate of return (net of 
adm inistrative expenses), which is the expected long-term investment returns on the 
employer' s own investments calculated based on the funded leve l of the plan at the valuation 
date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 8.50 to 5.00 percent annually. The rate 
included a 3.0 percent inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets, if any, was 
determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market 
value of investments over a 5 year period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level 
percentage of projected payrolls on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at 
December 31 ,2012, was 30 years. 

10. Landfill Closure and Post-closure Costs 

Federal and State laws and regulations provide the closure and post closure care requirements of the 
County's landfi lls. Although closure and post-c losure care costs will be paid on ly near or after the date 
that the C&D debris landfill stops accepting waste or certain portions obtain the final height, the 
County reports a portion of these closure and post-closure care costs as an operating expense in each 
period based on landfill capacity used as of the balance sheet date. 

Municipal Solid Waste LandftJJ 
The County operated a municipal solid waste landfill until December 1997 when it stopped accepting 
waste at the site. As required by federal and State Jaws and regulations, the County placed a final 
cover on this landfill in 1998 and is performing certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the 
site for thirty years after closure. 

Construction and Demolition Debris LaodfiJJ 
The Counly up~rates a multi-phase construction and demolition debris landfi ll. The North Carolina 
Department of Environment and Natural Resources (''NCDENR") has issued permits for 6 separate 
phases with a permit that extended to March 28, 20 14. The final phases of the landfill, Phases 6A, 
6B, and 6C, were permitted for 588,000 CY. It is estimated that approx imately 76% of Phase 6 has 
been used. The total permitted capacity of the C&D debris landfill is I, 146,000 cubic yards (CY). 
As of June 30, 20 13, the volume utilized has not exceeded the permitted capacity. 

The C&D debris tonnages continue to decline and the County continues to divert a portion of the 
C&D debris waste stream to Sandlands Landfill. It is anticipated that the life of the C&D debris 
landfill will extend to at least FY 2016-2017 based on a tonnage of25,000 tons/year, a flat growth 
rate, and no diversion of C&D debris. 

The County received a report from an engineering firm of comprehensive planning, management, and 
design services for its C&D debris services. The County purchased 259 acres adjacent to the existing 
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C&D landfi ll at a cost of $ 1,650,000 on June 3, 2010 for the expansion of the C&D landfi ll. included 
in the County's five year capital improvement plan are $550,490 in FY 201 5- 16 for expansion design 
fees and $4,750,000 in FY 20 16-1 7 for construction and design costs of expanding the C&D landfill. 
In addition, on July 16, 2007 the County entered into an agreement for temporary hauling and disposal 
of C&D debris outside the County and began a sorting and recycling program as means to extend the 
life of the existing landfill. 

Closure and Post-closure Care Cost 
The closure and post-closure care liability is computed based on the cumulative, estimated capacity of 
the landfill utilized as of June 30, 2013 which is 76%. It is estimated that closure of the C&D debris 
landfi ll will not occur until sometime around 2017. The MSW landfill was closed in 1997. At June 
30, 2013, the post-closure care cost for the MSW landfill is expected to be approximately $ 106,000 
annually. The post-closure care cost for the C&D debris landfill is expected to be approximately 
$110,000 annually after closure. At June 30, 2013, the combined closure and post-closure care costs 
for both landfills are expected to total $6,283,259 based on an escalation factor of2%. Of that amount, 
$6,283,259 has been accrued at June 30, 2013 and is included in the Long-Term Debt reported on the 
statement of net position. 

Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations. 
The County has elected to establish a reserve fund to accumulate resources for the payment of 
closure and post-closure care costs. A reserve for landfi ll closure and post-c losure care costs is 
included in the County Capital Project Fund in the amount of $3,707,67 1. The County expects to 
budget annua l transfers from the General Fund to the County Capital Reserve Fund based on the 
projected cost of closure and post-closure care costs. Future inflation costs are expected to be paid 
from the interest eamings on these annua l contributions. However, if interest eamtngs are 
inadequate, additional costs may be covered by future user charges or tax revenues. Additionally, 
the County incurred $6,345 of costs related to its landfill expansion during 2013. 

11. Risk Management 

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County participates in 
one self-funded risk-financing pool administered by the North Carolina Association of County 
Commissioners. Through the pool, the County obtains property coverage equal to replacement cost 
values of owned property subject to a limit of $200 million for any one occun·ence, general, auto, 
professional, and employment practices liabili ty coverage of $2 million per occurrence, auto physical 
damage coverage for owned autos at actual cash value, and crime coverage of $250,000 per 
occurrence. The pool is audited annually by certified public accountants, and the audited financial 
statements are available to the County upon request. The pool is reinsured through a multi-state 
public entity captive. The Pool's retentions are: $500,000 each occurrence for general liability, 
automobile liability, law enforcement liability and public officials' liability; $250,000 for each 
property, automobile physical damage and inland marine occurrence, subject to a 2% wind deductible. 

The County does not carry flood insurance through the National Flood lnsurance Plan (NFlP). 
Because the County owns property in areas of the State that have been mapped and designated as 
"AE" (high risk non-coastal) and " VE'' (coastal high risk), the County is e ligible to purchase coverage 
of $500,000 per structure through the NFLP. The County has chosen not to purchase flood insurance 
based on a determination that the assets located in flood prone areas consist mainly of underground 
utility piping and pump stations designed for the environment. 
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Commercial coverage for risks associated with emergency services provided by the County is carried 
by VFIS of North Carolina, Inc. There were no significant changes to the insurance coverage from 
the previous year and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past five fiscal years. 

Worker's compensation insurance is self-funded by the County with retention of $600,000 per 
occurrence for law enforcement and 500,000 per occurrence for all other employees. Specific excess 
and aggregate coverage up to the statutory limits is brokered through Wells Fargo Insurance Services 
with Safety National Casualty Corporation. The County contracts with a third party administrator to 
adj udicate claims and manage cost containment of medical billing. 

The County is self-funded for employee health insurance and contracted with Blue Cross and Blue 
Shield as a third party administrator to adjudicate claims and manage cost containment. To safeguard 
against catastrophic claims, the County has specific stop-loss coverage that occurs after $150,000 in 
claims per member. The specific stop loss is brokered through Blue Cross and Blue Shield. 

The Director of Fiscal Operations, Revenue Collector, Sheriff and Register of Deeds are each 
individually bonded for $250,000, $500,000, $25,000 and $ 10,000 respectively. In accordance with 
G.S. 159-29, the County adopted a system of $250,000 blanket faithful performance bonding as an 
altemative to individual bonds for all other employees that have access to funds. 

Liabi I ities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be 
reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have heen incurred hut not 
reported (IBN R's.) 
Changes in the balances in claims for workers ' compensation insurance during the last fiscal year are 
as follows: 

Unpaid c laims, beginning 

lncurred claims 

Claim payments 

Unpaid claims , e nding 

Workers ' Compensation 

2012 2013 
$ 193,350 $ 257,325 

632,565 477,679 

__ _,.(=..::56'-='8,=590:....:.) (549,516) 

$ 257,325 =$ ==='8==5,==48=8 

Changes in the balances in c laims for employee and dependent health insurance during the last fiscal 
year are as follows: 

Unpaid claims, beginning $ 

incurred c laims 

Claim payments 

2012 

9,278,105 

(8,573,882) 

704,223 Unpaid claims, ending $ =========== 

2013 
$ 704,226 

8,529,38 1 

(8,521 ,849) 

$ 711 ,758 

The County carries commercial coverage for aJI other risks of loss, inc luding property and liability 
for emergency service vehic les. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage 
from the previous year and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal 
years. 
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12. Claims and Judgments 

The County is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not 
presently determinable, in the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will not have 
a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the County. 

13. Joint Ventures 

Brunswick County Community College 
The County in conjunction with the State of North Carolina and the Brunswick County Board of 
Education participates in a j oint venture to operate the Brunswick County Community College 
("Community College"). Each of the three participants appoints four members of the thirteen-member 
board of trustees of the Community College. The president of the Community College's student 
government serves as an ex officio nonvoting member of the Community College's board of trustees. 
The Community College is included as a component unit of the State. The County has the basic 
responsibility for providing funding for the facilities of the Community College and also provides 
some financial support for the Community College's operations. In addition to providing annual 
appropriations for the facilities, the County periodically issues general obligation bonds to provide 
financing for new and restructured facilities. As of June 30, 2013, the amount of general obligation 
bonds issued for this purpose that was still outstanding was $21,557,804. The County made total debt 
service payments related to the bonds of $3,917,991 during the fiscal year. Of that total, $1 ,395,000 
was for principal and $2,522,991 was for interest. ln addition, the County has an ongoing financial 
responsibility for the Community College because of the statutory responsibilities to provide funding 
for the Community College's faci lities. The County contributed $3,657,105 to the Community 
College for operating purposes during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 

The participating governments do not have any equity interest in the joint venture; therefore, no equity 
interest has been reflected in the County's financial statements at June 30, 20 13. Complete financial 
statements for the Brunswick County Community College may be obtained from the Community 
College's administrative offices at U.S. Hwy. 17 N., Supply, North Carolina. 

CoastaiCare 
The County participates with Onslow, Carteret, Pender, and New Hanover Counties in a joint venture 
to operate the CoastalCare ("Center"), which is located in New Hanover County. The Center's Board 
consists of Lwt::nty members wbo are appointed under N.C. general statute. The Coastal Care Board is a 
County political subdivision of the State of North Carolina. Brunswick County contributed $703,383 
for operating purposes during the year ended June 30, 2013. ln addition, the County makes available 
to the Center operating facilities for which no rent is charged . The participating counties do not have 
any equity interest in the joint venture. Complete financial statements for CoastalCare may be 
obtained from the Center's administrative offices at Wilmington, North Carolina. 

14. Jointly Governed Organizations 

Cape Fear Council of Government 
The County, in conjunction with three other counties and forty-one municipalities, established the 
Cape Fear Counci l of Governments ("Council''). The participating governments established tl1e 
Counci l to coordinate certain funding received from federal and State agencies. Each participating 
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government appoints one member to the Council's governing board. The County paid membership 
fees of$25,327 to the Council during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority 
The County, in conjunction with four other counties and one municipality, established the Lower 
Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority ("Authority"). The Authority operates a 45 m gd raw water 
system, consisting of a raw water intake located above Lock & Dam # 1, Cape Fear River, a 45 mgd 
pump station and 13 miles of operating raw water main. The County appoints 4 members of the 
Authority's 13 member Board. The Authority supplies raw water under contracts at a rate that is 
periodically reset to reflect the Authority's cost of production. The Authority also receives an 
availability charge from a municipality until the municipality needs the raw water supply. The cost of 
the raw water acquired by Brunswick County from the Authority for the year ended June 30, 20 I 3 
was $1 ,074,242. 

In addition, the Authority made payments to the County during the fiscaJ year totaling $243,187 
pursuant to a maintenance contract. 

Northeast Brunswick Water Reclamation Facility 
The Facility is owned, operated and maintained by the County. The Town of Leland, Town of 
Navassa, H2GO, City ofNorthwest, and the County have entered into wastewater service agreements 
for a portion of the treatment capacity in the plant. The County has recently completed an expansion 
of the plant of 825,000 gpd to bring capacity to 2.475 mgd due to increased needs of the participants. 
Expansion costs to date are $10.8 million. Each participant is charged capacity service fees based on 
their share of the capacity in the plant. The County's share of capacity and related debt service is 
funded by the retail revenue of the County's customers. The participant capacity service fees are 
combined with the County's retail revenue to service the debt associated with the plant. Participants 
are also charged treatment service fees based on the metered flow they send to the plant. The 
participant fees and the costs allocation to the County for their customer flow are combined so that the 
operating and maintenance costs of the plant are recovered by County retail revenues and participant 
service fees on a proportional and break-even basis . The agreement and policies and regulations 
provide for an oversight committee to make budget and operating recommendations to the County 
Commissioners. 

West Brunswick Regional Water Reclamation Facility 
The Facility, which began operations in March of 2006 is owned, operated and maintained by the 
County. The County completed construction of the expansion of the West Brunswick Regional Water 
Reclamation Facility Phase 2 in January 20 I 0 which increased the plant capacity from 3 mgd to 6 
mgd and provided a transmission line to serve the Town of Oak Island. The total cost of the expanded 
facilities for both phases was $ 114.4 million . The sources of funding are revenue bonds, construction 
grants and loans funds, and grants. Each participant is charged capacity service fees based on their 
share of the capacity in the plant. The County's share of capacity and related debt service is funded 
by the retail revenue of the County's customers. The participant capacity service fees are combined 
with the County's retail revenue to service the debt associated with the plant. Participants are also 
charged treatment service fees based on the metered flow they send to the plant. The participant fees 
and the costs allocation to the County for their customer flow are combined so that the operating and 
maintenance costs of the plant are recovered by County retail revenues and participant service fees on 
a proportional and breakeven basis. The County also constructed a Southwest force ma in and pump 
station designed to transmit tlow from County retail sewer customers located in Southwest Brunswick 
County. The Southwest sewer force Main and Pump station was funded by revenue bonds. The 
revenue bonds will be serviced by County retail wastewater revenues. The wastewater service 
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agreement and policies and regulations provide for an oversight committee to make budget and 
operating recommendations to the County Commissioners. 

15. Benefit Payments issued by the State 

The amounts listed below were paid directly to individual recipients by the State from federal and 
State monies. County personnel are involved w ith certain functions, primarily t:ligibilily 
detenninations that cause benefit payments to be issued by the State. These amounts disclose this 
additional aid to County recipients. Because they are not revenues and expenditures of the County, 
they do not appear in the County's fmancial statements. 

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 

Links Transitional Fund 

Medicaid 

Housing Assistance Program 

Special Supplemental Food Program for 

Women, Infants, and Children 

Foster Care and Adoption Programs 
SLaLt:/County Special Assistance Domiciliary Care 

C WS Adoption Subsidy & Vendor 

State Foster Home 

SFHF Maximization 

Foster Care At Rjsk Maximization 

16. Commitments and Contingencies 

Unemployment Benefits 

$ 

Federal State 

58 1,280 $ (8 1) 

5,257 

72,643,867 40,285, 173 

2, 107,860 

1,923,878 

1, 143,516 336,544 
446, 140 

237,576 

81 ,224 

77,580 

5,382 

The County has e lected to pay the direct cost of employment security benefits in lieu of 
employment security taxes on the payroll. A liability for benefit payments could accrue in the year 
following discharge of employees. 

Construction Commitments 
The County had commitments, as shown be low, for construction contracts outstanding at June 30, 
2013. The projects are accounted for in the Government Capital Projects fund and Enterprise 
Capital Project Funds and are ma inly funded by debt proceeds: 

Pro ject 
Miscellaneous Water Line Projects 
Northeast Bruns wick Was tewater Treatment Plant 
Carolina Shores WWTP Upg rade 
Boiling Spring Lakes Transmission & Co llection 

Total 

63 

$ 

$ 

Balance of 
Contracts 

418,803 
2,805,022 

661,176 
200,589 

4,085.590 
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The County has received proceeds from several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these 
grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under 
grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant monies to the grantor agencies. At 
June 30, 2013, the County believes that any required refunds would be immaterial and therefore no 
provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant money 
received. 

17. Change in Accounting Principles 

The County implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 63 , 
Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net 
Position, and Statement 65, Hems Previously reported as Assets and Liabilities, in the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2013. In accordance with GASB Statement 63, the Statement of Net Assets has 
been replaced with the Statement of Net Position. Items on the Statement of Net Position are now 
classified in Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources 
and Net Position . Additionally, GASB Statement 65 requires that deferred costs from the refunding 
of debt, which were previously deferred and amortized, be presented as deferred outflows of 
resources. 
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This section. contains additional information required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board 

• Schedule of Funding Progress for the Law Enforcement Officers' Special 
Separation Allowance 

• Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Law Enforcement Officers~ 
Special Separation Allowance 

• Notes to the Required Schedules for the Law Enforcement Officer's Special 
Separation Allowance 

• Schedule of Funding Progress for the Other Post Employment Benefits 

• Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Other Post Employment Benefits 

• Notes to the Required Schedules for the Other Post Employment Benefits 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
FOR THE YEAR EN DED JUNE 30, 2013 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial 
Accrued 

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded 
Actuarial Value of -Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered 
Valuation Assets C redit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll 

Date A B 8-A A / B c 
12/31/2012 $ - $ 1.713,666 $ 1,713,666 0.00% $ 7,141 ,765 
12131/2011 1.635, 125 1,635, 125 0.00% 7.029,630 
12/3 1/2010 1.495,262 1.495,262 0.00% 6,654,662 
12/3112009 1.518,5 10 1,5 18,5 10 0.00% 6,48 1,914 
12/3 1/2008 1,159,480 1, 159,480 0.00% 6.5 13,142 
12131/2007 961.761 96 1,76 1 0.00% 5,030,787 
12/3 1/2006 706, 154 706.154 0.00% 4,126,694 
12/3 1/2005 686,980 686,980 0.00% 4,201,836 
12/3 1/2004 700.612 700,6 12 0.00% 3.554,883 
12/31/2003 61 1,561 6 11 ,561 0.00% 3. 100, 151 

Schedule of Emelol:er Contributions 

Annual 
Required Amount Percentage 

Year Ended Contribution Contributed of ARC 
June 30 (ARq Bf Em(!loyer Contributed 

2013 $ 230,929 $ 34,467 14.93% 

20 12 209.294 46,7 13 22.32% 

20 11 2 14,384 40,458 18.87% 

20 10 161. 165 43.098 26.74% 

2009 129.250 46,283 35.8 1% 

2008 100, 185 37,308 37.24% 

2007 99,949 30,673 30.69% 

2006 101.04 1 26.210 25.94% 

2005 86.2 11 12.977 15.05% 

2004 76.87 1 13,335 17.35% 

Notes to the Required Schedules: 

UAALasa 
Percentage 

Covered 
PayroiJ 

{B- A} /C 

23.99% 
23.26% 
22.47% 
23.43% 
17.80% 
19.12% 
17.11 % 
16.35% 
19.71% 
19.73% 

The information presented above was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the dates indicated. 
Additional information as of the latest valuation follows: 

Valuation date 
Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Remaining amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 
Investment rate of return * 
Projected salary increases • 
Cost of living adjustments 

12/3 1/2011 
Projected unit credit 
Level percent of pay closed 

19 years 
Market value 

5.00% • Includes inflation al 3.0% 
-U5-7.85% 

N/A 
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Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial 
Accrued 

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded 
Actuarial Value of -Projected Unit AAL Funded 
Valuation Assets Credit {VAAL} Ratio 

Date A B B-A A/8 

12/31 /2012 - $ 66,633,440 $ 66,633 ,440 0.00% 
12/31 /2010 62,955,399 62,955,399 0.00% 
12/31/2008 51,697,990 51 ,697,990 0.00% 
12/31/2006 49,458,857 49,458,857 0.00% 

Schedule of Em~loxer Contributions 

Annual 
Required Percentage 

Year Ended Contribution Amount of ARC 
June 30 {ARq Contributed Contributed 

20 13 $ 6,628,993 $ 1,205,552 18.2% 

2012 5,859,894 1,222,794 20.9% 

2011 5,859,894 1,319,804 22.5% 

2010 5,648,091 996,890 17.7% 

2009 5,648,091 957,882 17.0% 
2008 5,150,934 814,736 15.8% 

Notes to the Required Schedules: 

Covered 
Payroll 

c 
$40,456,870 

43,062,825 
33,371 , 151 
24,093,567 

UAAL as a 
Percentage 
Covered 
Payroll 

{B- A) /C 

164.7% 
146.2% 
154.9% 
205.3% 

The infonnation presented above was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the dates indicated. 
Additional information as of the latest valuation follows: 

Valuation date 
Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Remaining amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Actuarial assumptions: 
Investment rate of return * 
Medical cost trend rate 

Pre-Medicare trend rate 
Post-Medicare trend rate 

Year of ultimate trend rate 

*Includes inflation at 3.00% 

12/311201 2 
Projected unit credit 
Level percent of pay, open 

30 years 
Market value 

4.00% 

8.50%-5.00% 
6.25%-5.00% 

20 18 
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MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

GENERAL FUND - This fund is the principal fund of the County and is used to account 
for the receipt and expenditure of resources that are traditionally associated with local 
government and that are not required to be accounted for in other funds. 

COUNTY CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - This fund is used to account for additions ru1d 
improvements of major county faci lities which are fmanced by transfers from the general 
fund and capital reserve funds, bond proceeds, and financing agreements. 

EDUCATION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - This fund is used to account for the 
additions and improvements to Brunswick County Public Schools and Brunswick 
Community College which are financed by transfers from the general fund and capital 
reserve funds, bond proceeds, and financing agreements. 



CO U T\' OF BRUNSWIC K, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPE DITURE -BUDGET AND 
ACTUAL NO Cl-lANCES IN FUND BALANCE- GE ERAL FU D 

FOR T HE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNT FOR HIE YEAR ENDED J NE 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
Ad Valorem Taxes: 
Current year taxes 
Prior year taxes 
Penalties and interest 

Local Option ales Taxes: 
Article 39 and 44 ( I%) 
Arttcle 40 ( l /2%) 
Article 42 ( 1/2%) 

Otber T:ues and Licenses: 
Scrap tire disposal fee 
Deed stamp excise tax 
Solid waste tax 

White goods disJX>sal tax 

nrestricted Intergovernmental : 
Medicaid ho ld harmless 
Beer and wine l3.\ 

Jail fees 

Restricted lntergovernmeutaJ: 
tate and federal grant 

i\RRA federal grant 
Co urt facility fees 
Payments in lieu o f taxes 

BC education requirement 
ABC law enforceme nt sel"\1ces 
State drug tax 

Permits and Fees: 
Building pennits 
Recording Fees 
Inspection fees 
Concealed handgun permit 
Other permit and fees 

Sale and ervices: 
o lid waste fees 

School resource o fficer reimbursement 
Rents 
EMS Charges 
Food Services 
Public health user fees 

heriffanimal protective services fees 

Budget 

103.027,64 
3.030,034 

700,000 
106.757.682 

6.342,860 
4.783,956 
4.570,53 1 

15,697.347 

12 ,000 
1.935,000 

42.000 
34,000 

2. 139,000 

890.280 
234, 72 
16 .728 

1,293, 80 

16.249,704 
13,903 

140,000 
3.000 
6,000 
2,000 

50,238 
16,464,845 

728,500 
75 '.000 
118.000 
126.920 
993,084 

2,724,504 

1. 132,000 
1. 110,82< 

14. 128 
3.465.000 

702.063 
90.000 

Actual 

102.992,41! 
4,799,975 
I, 153,354 

I 08.945.8 17 

7,174,799 
5.034.320 
4,732.676 

16,94 1,795 

162.27 1 
2,003, 104 

43.976 
53.390 

2.262,741 

692,275 
234. 72 
206.04 1 

1, 133, 188 

17,359,943 
13.903 

143.1 56 
3,627 
5,691 
4 ,239 

6 1,820 
17,592,379 

1,023,864 
783, 126 
163.787 
143,595 

1,()47.859 
3,162,23 1 

1.402.235 
979,704 
127.624 

3,758.241 

67 

794.305 
99.067 

Variance 
Positive 

(~cgativc) 

(35. 160) 
1,769,941 

453.354 
2, 188. 135 

83 1,939 
250,364 
162. 145 

1,244.448 

34.27 1 
6 , 104 

1,976 
___ 19,390 

123,741 

( 198,005) 

37.3 13 
( 160.692) 

1, 11 0,239 

3, 156 
627 

(309) 
2,239 

11 ,582 
1, 127,534 

295.364 
25. 126 
45,787 
16.675 
54,775 

437.727 

270.235 
( 13 1, 124) 

11 3.496 
293.241 

92.242 
9,067 

2012 

10 1.51 7.545 
3.240,025 

702,548 
105.460. 11 ll 

6.683.940 
4, 62.026 
4,450,742 

15.996.708 

167,625 
1.751.70 

47, 124 
49.998 

2.0 16,455 

1,077,537 
248. 109 
188.852 

1,514.49 

17,739.63 1 
67.626 

143.957 
3.716 
1.656 
1, 183 

43, 1 5 
18,000,904 

8 12.456 
70 1,45 
139,595 
87,260 

1,060.94S 
2 0 1.7 17 

1,2 11 ,065 
75 1.300 

86. 145 
2,7 13,409 

444.294 
35,939 

Schedule A-I 
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C O UNTY OF BRU W I K, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF RE EN ES AND EXPENDITURES · BUDGET NO 
ACJ AL AND C HANGES IN FUND BALAJ"'JCE- GENERAL F ND 

FOR T HE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30. 2013 
WIT H COM PARAT IVE ACTUAL AMO UNTS FOR T HE YEAR ENDED JU E 30. 2012 

Variance 
Positive 

Budget ctua l (Negative) 2012 
Social services fees 52.800 54,439 1.639 53.248 
Publ ic housing fees 26,874 10,873 ( 16,001) 47.955 
Tax collection fees 205.000 227.149 22, 149 2 18,521 
Other sales and services 1,162.823 1,279.800 116.977 799,562 
Register of deeds 26 ,100 291.430 23.330 270,2 6 
Marriage licenses 52,800 49.781 (3,0 19) 58,871 
Recreation services 196.800 200.8 13 4,013 220,402 

8,479,216 9,275,461 796,245 7.710,997 

I nvcstment u rnings 56,100 11 3,344 57.244 217,74 

O ther : 
Tax refunds - sales and gas tax 500 33.5 18 33,0 18 1.099 
ABC bottles ta.xes 48,000 47,692 (30 ) 47,471 
County Board of Alcohol Control 24.000 24.000 24.000 
Contributions 3 1.247 45.280 1~.033 44.696 
Other revenues 1, 158, 48 I ,477,299 31 ·.~5 1 1,324,065 

1.262.595 1,627.789 365.194 1.441.331 

Total revenues 154,875,169 16 1,054,745 6,179,576 155.160,476 

Expenditures: 
Genera l Government: 
Go\ crning Body: 

alaries 241 ,490 237,555 3.935 267.850 
Fringe benefits 75,647 60,224 15,423 73,870 
Operaring costs 64.764 56,41 8 8,346 44.643 

38 1,901 354.197 27.704 3 6.363 
Count) Administration: 

a1aries 699.782 695.399 4.383 679.718 
Fringe benefits 214.32(; 206,530 7,796 2~, 1 04 

Operating costs 54,530 39,021 15.509 35,237 

968,638 940.950 27,68 9 19 05<l 

Finance: 
a I aries 599,74 1:1 584.717 15.03 1 626.671 

Fringe benefits 202,793 196,856 5.937 213,094 
Operating costs 384.428 325,476 58.952 305.152 

1, 1 6,969 1.107,049 79.920 1.144.917 
Tax dministrarion: 
Salaries 1.346.868 1.2 2,876 63.992 I ,323,8 9 
Fringe benefits 542,24 503.991 31:1.257 517.414 
Operating costs 912.396 842,41 8 69,97 436.50 

2,801.5 12 2.629~85 172,227 2,277,81 1 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, ORTH CAROLINA 

CHED U : OF REVEN ES AND EXPENDIT RES- BUDGET AND 
ACTUAL AND CHANCE IN FUND BALANCE- GENERAL F D 

FOR HIE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2013 
WITH COMP RATIVE ACTUAL MO 'T FOR THE YEAR ENDED J NE 30, 2012 

Rc~cnuc Collector. 
alaries 

Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 

Geographic Information: 
Salaries 
Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 

County Attorney: 
a I aries 

Fringe benefits 
Ope.r.ning costs 

Court Facilities: 
a I aries 

Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 

Board of Ell'ctions: 
Salaries 
Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 

Register of Deeds: 
alaries 

Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 

Total general goH•mn1en1 

CcntTal Services: 
Management Information Systems: 

a! aries 

Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 
Capital outlay 

ervice Center: 
a I aries 

Fringe benefi ts 
Operating costs 
Capital outlay 

Budget 

37 1,110 
174.400 
76.350 

62 1, 60 

373.720 
135,966 
79,170 

600.856 

289.039 
83,132 

279,633 
65 1,804 

10 ,8 5 
38,41 2 

I 7,39 1 
531 ,163 

393,745 
98,489 

149.756 
641 ,990 

623,2 12 
28 1, 08 

1.401.476 
2.306,496 

10.693, 1. 9 

Sb 1,247 

204.196 
727,3 17 

5,000 
1.577.760 

582.37 1 
233,524 
657.375 

35,750 
1.509.020 

69 

ariance 
Positive 

\ctual ('\'cgativc) 

365.303 5.807 
169,486 4,914 
62,562 IJ,788 

597.351 24,509 

373.670 50 
133,884 2,082 
52.727 26,443 

560.281 40.575 

289.00 1 38 
2.829 303 

272,684 6,949 
644.514 7.290 

100.195 3,690 
36,570 1.842 

161.625 25,766 
462,875 6 ,28 

372,016 21,729 
93. 11 0 5.379 
83.972 65.784 

549.098 92.892 

623,212 
28 1,703 105 

l.J~2.!:!2§ 44 50 
2,26 1,54 1 44.955 

10,107,14 1 5 6.04 

551 ,0U4 10.243 
I 9,77 1 14.425 
684,351 42,966 

73,895 11 , 105 
1.499.021 78,739 

58 1,260 1, 111 
228.368 5,156 
423.798 233,577 

32,012 3,738 
1 ~65.438 243.582 

2012 

397. 1 5 
170,082 
52.947 

620.2 14 

372.689 
134,264 
46,074 

553.027 

294,942 
96.043 

283.404 
674,389 

102,6 19 
35.750 

11 7,933 
256,302 

340. 143 
89.506 

123.33 
552.9 7 

684,620 
3 1 1.389 

I 2 17 144 
2.2 13.153 

572,010 

197.139 
297.609 

65 1 
1,075,409 

585,49 
229,052 
2 14,7 3 

23,790 
1,053, 123 

Schedule A-I 
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OUNTYOFBR SWJ K, ORTH AROLJNA 

CIIIWULE OF REVEN E AND EXPENDIT RE - BUDGET AND 

cr ALANDCH NCE I FU D BALANCE- GENERAL F D 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED J E 30. 2013 

L 1\10 NT FOR T H E YEAR E DEDJ NE 30. 2012 

ariancc 
Positive 

Budget Actual ~~$alive} 2012 

Engineering: 
Salaries 309.5 0 267.586 269,5 0 
Fringe benefits 105,535 89.907 91.637 
Operating costs 48.710 37.942 23.904 

463. 25 395.435 3 5.121 
Operation en ires: 

alaries I .884,555 1,838.3 16 46.239 1.956,694 
Fringe benefits 836,300 10. 196 26,1 04 8 14,274 
Operating costs 2,903,347 2,662.227 241.1 20 3.192.0 16 
Capital outlay 11 3 500 99.03 1 14 469 32.055 

5,737.702 5,409.770 327,932 5.995,039 

on·deparuncntal: 
Fringe bene fits 1.865.031 1.621.746 243.21!5 I.S!i6,7 5 
Operating costs I. 71.739 I ,462.473 409.266 1.73 1.869 
Capital outlay 9.465 

3.746.992 3.094,439 652.553 3.32 . I 19 

Food ervices: 
a I aries 304.496 

Fringe benefits 154,3 17 
Operating costs 76.259 

535,072 

1 otal central SCI'\ tees 13.035.299 I 1,664. 103 1,371,196 12,371 .883 

Public afet) : 
District Allornl') : 

a I aries I ,533 1,532 I 17.625 
Fringe benefits 62 
Operating costs 2.999 77.953 5.046 85,0 4 

4 532 79,485 5,047 202.77 1 

bcriff: 
a I aries 6,812,52 6.647.264 165.264 6.377.372 

fringe benefits 2.502.40 2,398,962 103.446 2,304.29 
Operating costs 2.3 0.599 2.254. 65 125.734 2. 174.41 9 
Capttal outlay 74 .59 1 741 ,644 6.947 523.268 

12,444,126 12,042.735 40 1,31) I 11 ,379,357 
Resource Center : 

a I aries 92.5 19 
Fringe benefits 36.047 
Operating costs 104.725 

233.291 
Detention Center : 
a I aries 3,7 7.774 3,707.7 4 79,990 3.5 4,007 

Fringe benefits 1,609.917 1,565.65 1 44.266 1,440,533 
Operating costs I. 76,68 1 1.770,1 94 106,487 2.044.725 
Capital outlay 3 ,5 19 34,690 3.829 

7,312 .• 91 7,078.3 19 234.572 7.069,265 
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OUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF REVEN ES AND EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND 

CT A L NO C HANCES IN FUND BALANCE- GENERAL F NO 
FOR T HE YEAR ENDED J NE 30,2013 
\VIH I CO IPARAT IVE ACTUAL Al\IO UNTS FOR T HE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 20 12 

Emcrgemcy l\lcdiClll: 
alaries 

Fringe bene fits 
Operating costs 
Capital o utlay 

Emt>rgency Management: 
Sa laries 
Fringe benefi ts 
Operating COStS 
Capital o utlay 

O ther gencics: 
Fire districts 
Rescue Squads 

Puhlic Inspections: 
alaries 

Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 

Coro ner: 
Operating costs 

Central Com munications: 
a I aries 

Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 
Capital outla) 

Animal J>rotectivc crvice : 
a I aries 

Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 

Total public safety 

Transportation: 
Cape Fear Regional Jetpon 
Odell Williamson Municipal Airpo n 
Cape Fear Transponation Authority 
BrunS\\ ick T ransit ystem 
Total transponation 

Budget 

3,926,034 
1.455.845 
1. 152,3 11 

5 11 ,403 
7,045.593 

379.09 1 
126.1 15 
301.5 2 
360, 41 

1, 167.629 

700.000 
262,200 
962.200 

4 7.796 
186,125 
'2,840 

756.76 1 

80.000 

1.300,9 1 
547, 00 
307.630 
139.800 

2,296, 148 

402.199 
168,058 
25 1. 86 
822, 143 

32.972,023 

97,000 
27,500 
13, 90 

235.060 
373.450 

Variance 
Positive 

ctual ! 'egative) 

3,92 1,175 4.859 
1.392.46 63,377 
1,124,51 9 27.792 

5 11.403 
6,949.565 96.02 

359,25 I 19, 40 
11 9.023 7,092 
20 1,539 100.043 
360.759 82 

1,040.572 127,057 

648,98 5 1,0 12 
246.3 7 15,813 
895,375 66. 25 

4 2.922 4. 74 
176,338 9,787 
60.855 2 1.985 

720, 11 5 36.646 

79,273 727 

1.2 17.747 83,17 1 
489.627 58.1 73 
268. 141 39.489 
139.7 12 88 

2, 11 5,227 180.92 1 

393.252 8.947 
159.225 8.833 
240,78 1 11 , 105 
793,258 2 • 85 

31,793,924 1. 17!3,099 

97.000 
27.500 
13,890 

235,060 
373.450 

71 

2012 

3. '38,062 
I, 08,379 

980.59 1 
242.8 18 

6.369.850 

375.429 
125.9 15 
250,594 

18.996 
770.934 

544.473 
202.434 

59.893 
806. 00 

92,589 

1,28 1.536 
508,672 
374,582 
396,94 

2,56 1,738 

41 2,6 3 
17 1.209 
176,408 
760,300 

30.715.599 

66.000 
27,500 

9.492 
24 1.707 
344.699 

chedule A-I 
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COUNTY OF BR SWI K , ORTH CAROI~INA 

HEDULE OF RE EN ES AND EXPENDITURES· BUDGET AND 
ACTUAL AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- GENERAL F NO 

FOR T HE E R ENDED JUNE 30, 201 3 
WlTH COMPARATf E ACTUAL AMO NTS FOR T HE YEAR ENDED J NE 30,2012 

Environmental Protection: 
olid Waste: 

Salaries 
Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 
Capttal outlay 

Other: 
Forestry sem ces 
Brunswick County Beach Consortium 

Total environmental protection 

Economic Development: 
Code Enforcement: 

alaries 
Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 

Plunning; 
a I aries 

Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 

Cooperative Extension: 
a I aries 

Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 

Soil and Water Conservation: 
alaries 

Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 

Puhlic I lousing cerion 8: 
a I aries 

Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 

Community Development: 
Operating costs 

Economic Development: 
Salaries 
Fringe benefits 
Operating cost!> 

Budget 

332.047 
136,557 

12.527.928 
2 5.322 

13.281' 54 

215.541 
30.000 

245,541 

13,527.395 

163.735 
67.877 
34,215 

265,827 

623.578 
232,6 14 
ISO 99 1 

1,007.183 

236,787 
96,636 

13 1.1 90 
464,613 

129.195 
52,150 
16,200 

197,545 

190. 159 
77. 101 

2.244,725 
2,5 11 .985 

125,034 

204,4 3 
67.U ll 

12 ,500 
399,994 

72 

Actua l 

329,267 
125,422 

12.436,395 
283.908 

13.174.992 

2 15,541 
30,000 

245,541 

13,420.533 

150.150 
60. 172 
24,385 

234,707 

601.460 
2 13.30 1 
125. 157 
939,9 18 

203,664 
69.533 

122.613 
395.8 10 

129.19-1 
52.020 
13,970 

195,184 

I 5,156 
7 1.471 

2.207.724 
2,464.35 1 

112.075 

200.95 1 
62.726 

12 ',500 
392,177 

Var iance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

2.780 
11 ,135 
9 1,533 

1.414 
106. 62 

10(1, 62 

13.585 
7.705 
9, 30 

3 1.1 20 

22. 11 
19.3 13 
25, 34 
67.265 

33, 123 
27. 103 

.577 
68,803 

I 
130 

2.230 
2.361 

5,003 
5.630 

37.001 
47,634 

12.959 

3.532 
4.285 

7,817 

2012 

339.5 19 
122.855 

12.750.939 
63.559 

13.276.872 

212. 1 5 
30.000 

242. 1 5 

13.51 9,057 

137.5 7 
54.635 
17,177 

209.399 

582.!1 17 

229, 167 
74,639 
99,123 

402,929 

129,966 
52,448 
10.507 

192.92 1 

182. 29 
71,3< 3 

2.260.< S3 
2.515.095 

3,457 

188,496 
62.7 18 

135.500 
386.7 14 

Schedule -1 
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CO NTY OF' BRU SWICK. NORTH CAROLINA 

CHEDULE OF REVEN ES AND EXPE DITURES · BUDGET AND 
ACTUAL AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE. GENERAL F NO 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J NE 30, 1013 
\ IHI COMPARATI E ACTUAL MO NT FOR T I-J E YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012 

O ther Economic Devt>lopmeot: 
Lockwood Folly & hallolle Dredging 
Dredging 

Total economic development 

Human , erviccs: 
Health: 

dministration: 
a I aries 

fringe benefits 
Operating costs 
Capital outlay 

Communicable Diseases: 
Operating costs 

Adult Health Maintenance: 
Operating costs 

oior Hcallb 
Salaries 
Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 

Maternal and C hild llealth: 
a I aries 

Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 
Capital o utlay 

Environmenta l Health: 
Salaries 
fringe benefits 
Operating costs 
Capital outlay 

rotal health 

cterans' Services: 
alaries 

Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 
Total \eterans' services 

Budget 

112,500 
6.000 

118.500 

5,090,6 I 

2,205,33 1 
899,618 
231.725 
49.297 

3,385.971 

310 546 

16 .704 
168.704 

173,345 
60,869 

232,2 2 
466.496 

366,699 
161,296 
670,877 

1. 198 872 

786,05 1 
289.743 
252,6 3 

19,000 
1,347.477 

6.87 .066 

'8,462 
34.540 
13,770 

136.772 

73 

Actual 

112.500 
3.975 

116.475 

4.850,697 

2, 150.640 
850,557 
199,022 

3,200.2 19 

296,3 17 

163,148 
163, 148 

171,9 17 
52.752 

195,654 
420,323 

366,2 16 
160,066 
565,010 

1,09 1,365 

767.028 
275,429 
225,454 

18.887 
1.2 6,798 

6.458,170 

88,459 
34,403 
11.729 

134,59 1 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

2.025 
2.025 

239.9ll4 

54.691 
49,06 1 
32.703 
49,297 

1ll5.752 

14 229 

5.556 
5,556 

1.428 
8,1 17 

36,628 
46, 173 

483 
1.230 

105,794 

107,507 

19,023 
14,3 14 
27.229 

11 3 
60.679 

419.896 

3 
137 

2.04 1 
2.1ll l 

2012 

-U95,592 

2.256,84 1 
33.412 

203.567 
23, 1 I 

3.317.001 

245,314 

80,699 
1!0.699 

179.507 
53,201 

2 18,616 
451,324 

370,495 
165, 72 
619, 130 

I, I 55.497 

753.389 
264.446 
230,872 

10, 194 
1.258,901 

6,508,736 

89.779 
34,285 
9,926 

133.990 

chedule A-I 
Page 7 of9 



COUNTY OF BRUNSWI K, NORTJ-1 CAROLI A 

CtiEDULE OF REVEN E AND EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND 

ACTUAL AND C HANGES IN FUND BALANCE- G E ERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED J NE 30, 201 3 
WIT H COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMO NTS FOR T HE YEAR E OED .1 NE 30, 2012 

Social crvices: 
Administra tion: 

alaries 
Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 

Community ltcrnalivc Program: 
alaries 

Fringe benefi ts 
Ope rating costs 

Tille lll-lo Home Care: 
Salaries 
Fringe benefi ts 
Ope rating costs 

O ther Operating Costs: 
Medical assistance 
Aid to the blind 
Adoption assistance 

pecial assistance to aged 
pecial assistance to disabled 

Foster care 
tate foster home 

Special assistance 
Day care 
Special child adopt ion assistance 

Total social services 

Other ~Iuman ervices: 
CoastaiCare 
Other human sen1ces 
Capital outlay 

Total human services 

Education: 
Public schools 
Public schools - capital outlay 
Community college 
Total education 

C ulture and Recreation: 
Parks and Recreation: 

alaries 
Fringe benefits 
O perating costs 
Capital o utlay 

Budget 

5.549.947 
2,351.28 1 
1.900.720 
9,801.948 

239,8 13 
136,278 
10 1, 100 
-177, 19 1 

30,000 
5,900 

280.000 
262,500 
262.500 
697,500 
364,500 

1,30() 
3,893.790 

9S, 46 

16. 175,975 

70-1,000 
2. 135.855 

178,623 
3,018,478 

26,209.29 1 

32.339,596 
678,453 

3.657.105 
36,675, 154 

1,200. 48 
409.099 

'4 ,283 
76,000 

2.570,230 

74 

ctual 

5.523. 166 
2. 197.622 
I . 75~.555 
9,479,343 

167,893 
103,220 
30.309 

301,422 

8.5 1) 
5,857 

266. 56 
240,296 
235,567 
697.393 
363,23 1 

685 
3.892,357 

2 ,723 

15,520.24 

703,383 
2,135,855 

99.236 
2,938,474 

25.05l.483 

32,339,596 
67 ,453 

3.657,105 
36,675, 154 

1.1 64, 120 
-101 .268 

34,640 
67.763 

2,467.791 

aria nee 
Positive 

(~egative) 

26.78 1 
I 53.659 
142.165 
322,605 

7 1.920 
33.05 
70,79 1 

175.769 

2 1.4 2 
43 

13, 144 
22.204 
26,933 

107 
1.269 

6 15 
1.433 

70. 123 
157,353 

655,727 

6 17 

79.387 
0.004 

1. 157,808 

36.728 
7,83 1 

-19,643 
8.237 

102.439 

20 12 

5.166.551 
2,0 12.5 1-1 
1.745.061 
8,924. 126 

232,27-1 
124,542 
32,449 

389,265 

188,398 
11 2,6 17 

41 5 
301.430 

13.723 
6,082 

264,592 
239,238 
260,370 
386.094 
25Q,927 

4.5 17,892 
37,852 

5,976,770 

15,591,59 1 

689,127 
2,205.5 13 

795,924 
3.690,564 

25,924,8 I 

3 1.293,2 19 
656,501 

3,538,906 
35,488,626 

1, 159,301 
405.522 
829,427 

1,080 
2.425,330 

chedulc A- I 
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COUNTY OF BR NSWJCK. NORT H CAROLIN 

CliEDUU: OF REVENUES AND EXPEND IT RES- BUDGET AND 

ACT ALAND C l-fANGES IN FUND BALANCE- GENERAL FUND 
FOR TliE YEAR ENDED J NE 30, 1013 
\VITI-I COMPARATIVE CTUAL AMO NTS FOR T HE YEAR E OED JUNE 30, lOll 

Brunswick County Library: 
a I aries 

Fringe benefits 
Operating costs 

Other Culture and Recreation: 
Contributions 

Total culture and recreation 

Dcht crvicc: 
Principal retirement 
Interest and fees 
To tal debt service 

Total expenditures 

Revenues OH'r (under) expenditures 

Other f inancing Sources (Uses): 
Issuance of long-tenn debt 
Premiums o n bonds 
Discounts o n bonds 
Payment to escro\\ agent for refunded dell 

Transfers From Other Funds: 
Transfer from school capital proj ect fund 
Transfer from county capital project fund 

Transfers To Other Funds: 
Transfer to county capital project fund 
Transfer to grant project funds 
Trans fer to emergency telephone system fu nd 
Transfer to school capital project funds 

Budgetary Financing Sources (Uses): 
Cont ingency 
Appropriated fund balance 

Total o ther financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of) car 

f und balance. cod of yea r 

lludgct 

640.041 
277,266 
2 9,700 

1.207,007 

3.777,237 

9,9 10,000 
6,500.448 

16.41 0 448 

15 ,764, 167 

(3,8 8,99 ) 

16,620,000 
1,875,258 

( 16,275.000) 
2.220.258 

3 14.013 
513,300 
27,3 13 

( 100,000) 
(60.000) 
t3 1.493) 

{2,985,040) 
tJ .I 76,533) 

( 18,899) 
4,036, 59 
4.017,960 

3,8 8,998 

ctual 

640.040 
274.509 
238.802 

1,1 53,351 

3,62 1.142 

9.9 10.000 
6,492.027 

16.402,027 

153,959,654 

7.095.09 1 

16,620,000 
1,875,25 

{ 16,275.000) 

75 

2,220.258 

3 14,0 13 
5 13.300 
27,3 13 

( 100.000) 
(60,000) 
(3 1,493) 

{2.985.039) 
p, l 76,532) 

( 128,96 1) 

6.966, 130 

59,7 12.327 

Variance 
Positive 

(\'ega live) 

2,757 
50. 9 
53.656 

156.095 

8.42 1 
8,42 1 

4,804,5 13 

10.984.089 

18,899 
(4.036. 59) 
(4,0 17.960) 

(4,017,959) 

6,966. 130 

2012 

632.440 
259.499 
257,753 

1, 149,692 

250.000 

3,825,022 

9,949. 167 
6.487!455 

16.436.622 

152. 20,203 

2.340.273 

45.827.136 
4,7 9.6 '8 
( 196.863) 

{48.226.667) 
2, 193,294 

160,000 
160,000 

(334.960) 
(36.586) 

( 1,960,049) 
(2.33 1.595) 

2 1,699 

2,361,972 

57.350.355 

59.712.327 

' t'hedull' A-1 
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Schedule A-2 

COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDJTURES 
AND CHANGES lN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET TO ACTUAL- COUNTY CAPJTAL PROJECTS FUND 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Actual 

Project Prior Current Total to 
Budget Years Year Date 

Revenues: 
Restricted intergovemmental-NC Department of Transportation $ 15.8 10,843 $ 11 .051 ,536 $ 1.998505 13,050,04 1 

Restricted intergovemmentaJ-NC Parks & Recreation Trust Fund 859,354 500,000 500.000 

Investment earnings 70.000 92.749 23, 127 115,876 

Performance bonds 4,368,251 4,368.250 4,368,250 

Otber 259.716 204.563 204,563 

Total revenues 2 1,368.164 16,2 17,098 2,02 1.632 18,238,730 

Expenditures: 
Capital Improvements: 

Public Safety: 
Sheriffs Firing Range 280,000 1,789 1.789 

280.000 1.789 1.789 

Environmental protection: 

C&D Landfill expansion 2,658.7 13 2,542.945 6,345 2,549,290 

Economic Development: 

Avalon 3,922,845 286.153 13,217 299,370 

Goose Marsh 154,530 154,530 154,530 

Springlake at Maritime Shores 274.585 

4,351.960 440.683 13.2 17 453,900 

Cultural and recreation: 
Ocean Isle Beach Park 3,145,750 3, 145.750 3, 145,750 

Town Creek Park Improvements 756.704 37,350 178.706 2 16.056 

Waccamaw Park Improvements 20.000 20.000 20.000 

Brunswick River boat ran1p 10,300 6,839 459 7.298 

3.932,754 3,189,939 199.165 3,389, 104 

Transportation: 
Airport Improvements 18,143,434 13,071 ,514 2.242.745 15.3 14.259 

Total expenditures 29,366.861 19.245,081 2.463.261 2 1.708,342 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (7.998,697) (3.027.983) (44 1.629) (3,469,612) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Appropriated fund balance 8,620.593 

Contingency for future capital projects (7,078,639) 

Transfer from general fund 8,358, 182 8,258, 182 I 00,000 8,358. 182 

Transfer to general fund ( 1,90 I ,439) ( 1.388. 139) (5 13,300) { 1.90 1.439) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 7.998,697 6.870,043 {4 13.300) 6.456.743 

Net change in fund balance $ - $ 3.842.060 (854,929) $ 2.987. 131 

Fund balance, beginning of year 12,48J,519 

Fund balance, end of year $ 11.626,590 
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Schedule A-3 

COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXP ENDITURES 
AND C HANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDG ET TO ACT UAL- EDUCATION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR TliE YEAR ENDED JUN E 30, 2013 

Actua l 

Proj ect Prior C urrent Tota l to 
Budget Years Year Date 

Revenues: 
NC PubUc Education Lottery $ 6,07 1, 142 $ 3,221 ,937 $ 1,386,898 $ 4,608,835 
lnvestment earnings 1, 199,342 1,286,052 18,862 1,304,914 
lnvestment earnings-debt proceeds 1,887 1,887 

Total revenues 7,270,484 4,507,989 1,407,647 5,915,636 

Expenditures: 
Brunswick County Schools capital projects 37,838,889 22,195,365 4,145,593 26,340,958 
Brunswick Community College 3 1,665,9 11 30,040,856 1,276,471 3 1,317,327 
Total expenditures 69,504,800 52,236,22 1 5,422,064 57,658,285 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (62,234,3 16) (47,728,232) (4,0 14,417) (51 ,742,649) 

Other Fina ncing Sources (Uses): 
Transfer from general fund 25,529,347 22,544,307 2,985,039 25,529,346 
Transfer to general fund (3 14,0 13) (314,013) (3 14,0 13) 
Premium on bonds issued 476,476 476,476 476,476 
Debt fmancing issued 30,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000 
Appropriated fund balance 6,542,506 
Total otner financing sources (uses) 62,234,316 53,020,783 2,671,026 55,691 ,809 

Net change in fund balance $ $ 5,292,551 (1 ,343,39 1) $ 3,949,160 

Fund balance, beginning of year 11 ,844,966 

Fund ba la nce, end of yea r $ 10,501 ,575 
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NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

OCCUPANCY TAX FUND - This fund is used to account for the proceeds of the room 
occupancy tax levied pursuant to Session Law 1997-364. The proceeds are transferred to the 
Brunswick County Tourism Development Authority, which is a discretely presented 
component unit of the County. 

EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM FUND - This fund accounts for the 911 
revenues received by the State 911 Board to enhance the State's 911 system. 

GRANT PROJECT FUND - This fund accounts for Grant funds received for certain 
economic development and public safety projects. 

REGISTER OF DEEDS TECHNOLOGY ENHANCEMENT FUND - This fund 
accounts for the fees collected by the Register of Deeds that North Carolina law requires be 
set aside and placed in a non-reverting automation enhancement and preservation fund. 



COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLJNA ScheduJe B-1 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2013 

Sped aJ Revenue F unds 

ROD-

Emergency Technology 

Occupancy Telephone Grant Enha ncement 
Tax Fund Sl:stem Fund Pro ject Fund TotaJ 

Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents/investments $ 69,914 $ 509,521 $ 22,980 $ 733,318 $ 1,335,733 

Interest receivable 645 933 1,578 

Receivables, net 260,999 260,999 

Other governmental agencies 135,925 119,630 255,555 

Total assets $ 330.913 $ 646,091 $ 142,610 $ 734,251 $ 1,853,865 

LiabiJities: 

Accounts payable and other liabil ities 330,913 28,6 15 35,912 532 395,972 

Advances from grantors 76,739 76,739 

Totalllabilitics 330,913 28,6 15 112,651 532 ~72,7 1 1 

Deferrell Inflows of Resources: 

Grant receivable 28.309 28,309 

F und Balance: 

tabilizalion by State Statute 260,999 136,570 119,630 933 518,132 

Restricted - other 452,597 732,786 1, 185,383 

Unassigned {260,999) {89,67 1) {350,670) 

Total fund balances 589,167 29,959 733.719 1,352,845 

Tota11iabili ties, deferred inflow of resources 
and fund balances 

$ 330,913 $ 646,091 $ 142,610 $ 734,25 1 $ 1,853,865 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND C HANGES JN FUND BALANCE 

NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL F NOS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2013 

Special R evenue Funds 

ROD~ 

Emergency Technology 
Occupancy Telerhone G rant Enhancement 
Tax Fund S~stem Fund Project Fund 

Revenues: 
Other taxes and licenses $ 1,221,647 $ - $ - $ -
Restricted intergovernmental 648,881 537,950 
Permits and fees 154.324 
Investment earnings 524 26 1 401 
Total revenues 1.221.647 649,405 537.976 155.725 

Expenditures: 
General government 108,599 

Public safety 440557 2 17.158 
Cultural and recreation 33,665 
Economic and physical development 1.22 1.647 347,426 

Total expenditures 1.22 1,647 440.557 598.249 108,599 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 208.848 (60,273) 47, 126 

Other Financing Sources: 
Transfers from general fund 31.493 60.000 

Net change in fund balances 240.34 1 (273) 47. 126 

Fund balance, beginning of year 348,826 30,232 686.593 

Fund balance, end of year $ - $ 589. 167 $ 29,959 $ 733,7 19 
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Schedule B-2 

Total 

$ 1,221 ,647 
1.186,83 I 

154.324 
1,951 

2,564,753 

108,599 
657,7 15 

33.665 
1,569,073 
2.369,052 

195,70 1 

9 1,493 

287,194 

1.065,65 1 

$ 1,352.845 



COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -BUDGET AND 

ACTUAL AND CHANGES fN FUND BALANCE-OCCUPANCY TAX FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Budget 

Revenues: 

Actual 

Variance 

Positive 
(Negative) 

chedule B-3 

2012 

Other taxes and licenses $ 1,224,374 $ 1,221,647 _:;_$ __ .>.....(2-'-',7 __ 2.;_,7) $ 1,147,266 

Expenditures: 
Economic and physical development 1,224,374 1,221.647 2 727 1,147,266 

Net change in fund balance $ - $ ;;;.....==== 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year $ $ 
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Schedule B-4 

COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -BUDGET AND 

ACTUAL AND CHANGES lN FUND BALANCE- EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Variance 

Positive 
Budget Actual {Negative} 2012 

Revenues: 

Restricted intergovernmental $ 882,350 $ 648,881 $ (233,469) $ 607,350 

91 I Center Consolidation Grant 2, 100.000 (2, I 00,000) 

Investment earnings 524 524 1,931 

Total revenues 2,982,350 649,405 {2,332,945) 609,28 1 

Expenditures: 

Telephone and furniture 362,55 1 177,659 184,892 6 14,967 

Computer software 108,928 48,713 60,215 50, 155 
Computer hardware 369,000 116,960 252,040 233.563 
Staff training 7,000 2,552 4,448 5, 162 
lmplemental functions 66,364 66,364 66,905 

Capital Outlay 91 I Center 2, 100,000 28,309 2,071 ,691 

S.L. 2010-1 58 expenditures 65 1W8 

Total expenditures 3,0 13,843 440,557 2,573,286 1,036,560 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (3 1 ,493) 208,848 240,341 (427,279) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Transfers from general fund 3 1,493 3 1,493 

Total other financing sources (uses) 3 1,493 3 1,493 

Net change in fund balance $ 240,341 $ 240,341 (427,279) 

FuJJd balance, beginning of year 348,826 776, 105 

Fund balance, end of year $ 589, 167 $ 348,826 
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Sched ule B-5 

C OUNTY OF BRl SWIC K , NORTH C AROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF REVE UES AND EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES rN FUND BALAJ'I/CE 

BUDGETTOACTUAL -GRANTPROJECTFUND 

FROM iNCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JU E 30, 2013 

Actual 

Project Prior C urrent Total to 
Authorization Years Year Date 

Revenues: 
Restricted intergovernmental - CDBG-Scattered Site 2009 $ 400,000 $ 400,000 $ - $ 400.000 

Restricted intergovernmental- CDBG-Scallered Site 20 12 225.000 

Restricted intergovernmental- CDBG-Technical Assistance Grant 2012 50,000 

Restricted intergovernmental - CDBG-Water Connection 2011 75,000 54,512 54,512 

Restricted intergovernmental - Urgent Repair 20 I 0 75,000 75,000 75,000 

Restricted intergovernmental - Urgent Repair 20 I I 75,000 37.500 37,500 75,000 

Restricted intergovernmental - Urgent Repair 201 2 75,000 37,500 37,500 

Restricted mtergovernmental- USDA I lousing Preservation 2012 89,148 0 

Restricted mtergovernmental- Single Family Rehab 2011 210,000 46,720 144,147 190,867 

Restricted intergovernmental- Sheriffs 557,516 334,375 27,613 361,988 

Restricted intergovernmental - ARRA Sheriff's 99,555 9 1,650 7 ,905 99,555 

Restricted intergovernmental - Emergency Services GrantS 1,899.667 1,652,006 125,861 1,777,867 

Restricted intergovernmental - Culture and Recreation 75,000 51,829 23, 17 1 75.000 

Restricted imergovernmental - Economic and Physical Development 119, 138 47,138 72,000 119.138 

Restricted intergovernmental - Environmental Protection 11,658 11 ,658 I 1,658 

Restricted intergovernmental- SOAR Governor's Crime Commission 89,999 7,741 7 ,741 

Investment earnings 26 72 26 98 

Total revenues 4,126,707 2,747,948 537,976 3,285,924 

Expenditures: 

CDBG- Scattered Site 2009 400,000 400.000 400,000 

CDBG- Scattered Site 2012 225.000 

CDBG- Water Connection 2011 75,000 54,513 54,513 

CDBG- Techmcal Assistance Grant2012 50.000 

Urgent Repair - 20 I 0 9 1,600 89, 160 89.160 

Urgent Repair - 20 I I 90,026 40,238 49,787 90,025 

Urgent Repair- 20 12 90,000 26,563 26,563 

USDA Housing Preservation (HPG)2012 134,148 416 416 

Single Family Rehabilitation- 2011 210,000 46.720 144.147 190.867 

ARRA Sheriffs Department 99,555 91,650 7,905 99,555 

Sheriffs Department 557,516 334,374 31,601 365.975 

Emergency Services- Pub I ic Safety 1.899,667 1,637,399 169,874 1.807,273 

SOAR Governor's Crime Commission 89,999 7.778 7.778 

Culture and Recreat•on 95,000 6 1,335 33,665 95,000 

General Economic and Phys1cal Development 11 9,138 47, 138 72,000 119,138 

Environmental Protection 14 408 14 408 14,408 

Total expenditures 4.241 ,057 2,762,47? 598,249 3.360,671 

Revenues over (under) expenditures ( 114,350) (14 ,47-l) (60,273) (74.747) 

O ther Financing Sources (Uses): 

Transfers from general fund 114,350 54.350 60,000 114.350 

Appropriated fund balance 

Total other financing sources (uses) 114,350 54,350 60,000 114.350 

Net change in fund balance $ - $ 39,876 (273) $ 39,603 

Fund balance, beginning of year 30.,232 

Fund balance, end of year $ 29,959 
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Schedule B-6 

COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND 

ACTUAL AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

REGISTER OF DEEDS TECHNOLOGY ENHANCEMENT FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JlJNE 30, 2013 

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Variance 

Positive 
Budget Actual (Negative} 2012 

Revenues: 

Permits and fees $ 102,000 $ 154,324 $ 52,324 $ 100,187 
investment earnings 1,200 1,40 1 201 2,218 

Total revenues 103,200 155,725 52,525 102,405 

Expenditures: 

General government 153,478 108,599 44,879 78,465 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (50,278) 47, 126 97,404 23,940 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Appropriated fund balance 50,278 (50,278) 

Net change in fund balance $ 47, 126 $ 47, 126 23,940 

Fund balance, beginning of year 686,593 662,653 

Fund balance, end of year $ 733,7 19 $ 686,593 
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is 
that the costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis be 
financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where the governing body has 
decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accountability 
purposes. 

MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS: 

WATER FUND -This fund is used to account for the County's water operations. 

WATER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND- This fund is used to account for additions and 
improvements of maj or water enterprise facilities which are financed by transfers from the 
water capital reserve funds, bond proceeds, and financing agreements. 

WASTEWATER FUND - This fund is used to account for the County's wastewater 
operations. 

WASTEWATER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - This fund is used lo a~.:counl for 
additions and improvements of maj or wastewater enterprise fac ilities which are financed by 
transfers from the wastewater capital reserve funds, bond proceeds, and financing 
agreements. 



Schedule C -1 

COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

COMBINING BALANC E SHEET - WATER FUND (NON-GAAP) 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Wa ter Water 
Fund Ca~ita l Projects Tota l 

C urrent Assets: 
Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 2 1,875, 147 $ 6,471,462 $ 28,346,609 
Restricted cash 2,859,047 385,22 1 3,244,268 
Interest receivable 31 ,071 8,150 39,221 
Receivables and special assessments, net 2,530,535 3,348 2,533,883 
Due from other governmental agencies 346,998 48,757 395,755 
Inventories 1,636,030 1,636,030 

Total current assets 29,278,828 6,9 16,938 36, 195,766 

C urrent Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 747,172 374, 120 1, 12 1,292 
Customer deposits 1,485,358 1,485,358 
Current portion of debt 9 19.756 919,756 
Total current liabilities 3, I 52.286 374, 120 3,526,406 

Expendable net positon 26, 126,542 6,542,818 32,669,360 

Noncurrent Items: 
Non-depreciable capital assets 13,890,474 13,890,474 
Depreciable capita l assets, net 119,176,863 I 19, 176,863 
Compensated absences (293,016) (293,0 16) 
Other post-employment benefits {2,402,897) (2,402,897) 
Non-current portion of debt { 17 ,3532342) {17,353,342) 
Total net positon $ 139,144,624 $ 6,542,818 $ 145,687,442 
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CO NTY OF BR NSWJCK, NORT J-1 CAROLINA 

SCHEDlJLE OF REVENUES A.J'ID EXPE DITURES - BUDGET AND ACT AL- \VATER SYSTEM 
OPERA 11 G F ND (NO -GAAP) 

FOR THE YEAR E DED JUNE 30, 2013 

WITH CO !I PARA TIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JU E 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
User charges $ 
ARRA interest subsidy 
lnvesunent earnings 

Other 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

Salaries 
Fringe benefits 
Operating e:<penditures 
Repairs and maintenance 

Capital outlay 

Debt Sen-ice: 
Principal 

Interest 
Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other Financing ources (llses): 
Long-term debt issued 

Premiums on debt issued 
Retirement of long term debt 

Transfer to water capital project fund 
Transfer from water capital project fund 

Appropriated net positon 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Revenues and other financing sources over 

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ 

Reconciliation From Budgetary Basis 

To Full Accrual Basis: 
Capital Project Related Items: 

Revenues from water capital projects 

Transfer from water fund to water capital project fund 
TrartSfer to water fund from water capital project fund 
Capital project expenditures 
Other Reconciling Item : 

Cl P additions from capital projects 
Capitalized capital outlay and CIP adjustment 

Change in vacation accrual 
Change in other post-employment benefits 
Change in inventory 

Retirement of long-term debt 

Loss on disposal of capital assets 

Contributed capital assets-Deeds of Dedication 

Depreciation 

Change in net positon - GAAP basis 

Budget 

19,438,898 $ 
298,109 

40,000 
395,034 

20.172,041 

3,869.1 87 
1.599,257 

7.529,040 

995, 147 

3,362,908 

755,376 
863, 172 

18.974,087 

1, 197,954 

(3,698.480) 
323.770 

2, 176.756 
( 1.1 97.954) 

$ 

85 

Actual 

19,9 10,194 
29R, I09 

49,070 
396,456 

20,653,829 

3.696.587 
1,5 I 1.745 

6,497,446 
749.383 

3,102.737 

755.376 
863.172 

17. 176.446 

3.'177.383 

(3.698.480) 
323,770 

(3.374.7 10) 

102.673 

30.25 1 
3.698.480 
(323,770) 

(2.189.645) 

2. 189,645 
3, 102,735 

(16.239) 
(476,077) 

295.864 

755.376 
(34.395) 

1.339.740 
(4.032,425) 
4.442,213 

$ 

$ 

Variance 
Positive 
egative) 

471.296 

9,070 
1.422 

481 788 

172,600 

87,5 12 
1,03 1,594 

245,764 
260. 17 1 

1.797,64 1 

2,279.429 

{2. 176,756) 
{2. 176.756) 

102.673 

2012 

$ 19,245.328 
303.325 

74,185 
451 .650 

20.074.488 

3.753.990 
1.543.793 
6,289,454 

840.6 10 
1.980.380 

7 I 5.528 
882.907 

16,006.662 

4,067,826 

3.790.000 
533.590 

(4.285,000) 
{2,668. 183) 

254.000 

(2.37 5.593) 

$ 1,692,233 
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chedule C-3 

COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES- BUDGET TO ACTUAL-

WATER CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS (NON-GAAP) 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Actual 

Project Prior Current Tota l to 
Budget Year Year Date 

Revenues: 

lnvesonent earnings $ - $ 42, 158 $ 12,509 $ 54,667 
lnvesnnent earnings-debt proceeds 262 262 
Assessments 26,043 13,452 39,495 
Penalties and interest assessments 7,5 10 4,028 11,538 

Total revenues 75,7 11 30,25 1 105,962 

Expenditures: 

Utility operations center 5,437,604 5,437,604 5,437,604 
Northwest water plant expansion 11 ,146,392 10,693,224 126,416 10,819,640 
Ocean Forest, Sea Castle line extension 385,600 385,450 150 385,600 
Brunswick Community College water main 434,767 433,792 975 434,767 
Mulligan's Way, Cox Landing, Smith, Old Ferry lines 604,404 11 7,323 358,062 475,385 
Stanley Road 2nd interconnect water extension 19,300 3,625 9,575 13,200 
Old Shallotte Rd. water extension 1,3 16,295 63,044 812,526 875,570 
Oak Island 2nd feed water line 600,000 64,600 496,03 1 560,631 
Sunny Point water line 38,500 38,500 38,500 
City of Northwest 2nd Feed Line 175,000 125,543 125,543 
Sunset Beach 2nd Feed Line 85,000 48,361 48,361 
Sandpiper Bay 2nd Feed Line 550,000 158, 186 158,186 
Water Mains FY 13 82,000 15,320 15,320 
Southeast Water Tank 65,000 

Total expenditures 20,939,862 17.198,662 2,189,645 19,388,307 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (20,939,862) (17, 122,951) (2, 159,394) ( 19,282,345) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Long term debt issued 11 , 146,392 11 , 146,392 11 , 146,392 
Transfers from water fund 13,469,060 9,770,581 3,698,480 13.469,061 
Transfers to water fund (577,770) (254,000) (323,770) (577,770) 
Contingency for future projects (4,881 ,317) 
Appropriated fund balance 1,783,497 

Total other financ ing sources (uses) 20.939,862 20,662,973 3,374,710 24,037,683 

Revenues a nd other financing sources over 

(under) expenditures and other financing uses s - $ 3,540,022 $ 1.2 15,3 16 $ 4,755,338 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET- WASTEWATER FUND (NON-GAAP) 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Wastewater 

Current Assets: Fund 

Cash and cash equivalents/investments $ 11 ,073,172 
Restricted cash 2,413,002 
Interest receivable 1,983 
Receivables and special assessments, net 12,048,665 
Due from other governmental agencies 162,963 
Lnventories 288,273 

Total current assets 25,988,058 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 424, 166 
Current portion of debt 8,390,245 

Total current liabilities 8,814,411 

Expendable net positon 17,173,647 

Noncurrent Items: 
Non-depreciable capital assets 20,505,587 
Depreciable capital assets. net 207,728,328 
Compensated absences (117,654) 
Other post-employment benefits ( 1,04 1,927) 
Deferred revenues ( 1,864,540) 
Non-current portion of debt ~ 127,960,748) 
Total net positon $ 114,422,693 
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Wastewater 
CaQital Projects Total 

$ 7,042,07 1 $ 18,1 15,243 
4,579,349 6,992,351 

8,329 10,312 
55,91 I 12, 104,576 

513,847 676,810 
288,273 

12, 199,507 38, 187,565 

1,459,050 1,883,2 16 
8,390,245 

1,459,050 10,273,461 

10,740,457 27,914,104 

20,505,587 
207,728,328 

(117,654) 
( 1,04 1,927) 
(I ,864,540) 

{127,960,748) 
$ 10,740,457 $ 125,163,150 



COUNTY OF BRliN WI K, NORTII CAROLINA 

SCI IEDliLE OF REVENUES A D EXPENDITURE - B DGET AND 

ACTUAL- WASTEWATER F D (NON-GAAP) 

FOR TI-LE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

WITH CO 1PARATIVE A CTUAL AI\IOU: TS FOR THE YEAR ENDED Jl.l1 E 30, 2012 

Revenues: 

User charges 
ARRA interest subsidy 

Special assessments 

Investment earnings 

Other 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

Salaries 
Fringe benefits 

Operating expenditures 

Repairs and maintenance 

Capital outlay 

Debt Service: 
Principal 

Interest 

Total expenditures 

Re,·cnues onr (under) expenditures 

Other Financi ng Sources (Uses): 

Issuance of long-term debt 

Premiums on bonds tssued 

Payments to escrow agent for refunded bonds 

Transfer to wastewater capital proJect fund 

Transfer from wastewater capital project fund 

Contingency 

Appropriated net positon 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Revenues and other fina ncing sources over 

(under ) ex penditures and other financing uses 

Reconciliation From Budgetary Basis 

To Full Accrual Basis: 
\llpitHl Project Activities: 

Revenues from wastewater capital prOJeCts 

Proceeds from Issuance of long- term debt 

Gain on sale of real property 

Tr:tnsfer from wastewater c:tp1tal proJects to wastewater fund 

Capital project expend itures 

O rhtr Reconciling Items: 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 

CIP additions from capital projects 

Cap1tahzed cap1tal outlay and CIP adJustment 

Change 10 vacat ion accrual 

Change 10 other post-employment benefits 

Contributed assets-Deeds of Dedication 

Change m inventory 

Loss on d1sposal of cap1tal assets 

Retirement oflong-term debt 

Depreciation 

Change in net posnon- GAA P bas 1s 

Budget 

s 17,117,887 
418,927 

2,8 14,243 

3,000 
22,920 

20,376,977 

1,9 15,138 

792,716 

2,956,342 

849,279 

1,898,3 13 

7,865,156 
5,305,068 

2 1,582,012 

( 1,205.035) 

1,365,743 
(487,490) 
326,782 

1.205,035 

$ 

Actual 

$ 18.036.477 $ 

409,981 

22,794,771 

3,446 
25,669 

41.270.344 

1,793,642 
737,0 13 

2 ,606,836 

82 1,499 

1,755, 16 1 

7,865, 152 
5,285. 179 

20,864,482 

20 405.862 

1,365,743 

1.365.743 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negath•e) 

9 18,590 
(8,946) 

19,980,528 

446 
2,749 

20,893,367 

12 1,496 
55,703 

349,506 
27,780 

143,152 

4 
19.889 

7 17,530 

21 .6 10.897 

487,490 
(326.782) 

160,708 

2012 

16,176,278 

298,206 
402,215. 

6,135 
7 1,096 

16.953,930 

1,713,980 
707,905 

2,601,3 14 

703,999 

6 16,719 

5.856,022 
7,7 18,746 

19,918,685 

(2,964.755) 

23,145,000 

3.813.04 1 
(24.185,000) 

(2,567.408) 

16 1,640 

367,273 

21 ,771,605 $ 21 .771.605 s (2.597,482) 

417,115 

6,327,750 

75 1,218 
( I ,365,743) 

( 17,346,529) 

(6,327,750) 

17,346,529 

1,755,16 1 

( 13.323) 

(23 1.081) 

1, 181,493 

24,360 

(52,935) 

7.865,152 
(5.305,082) 

$ 26.797,940 
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Schedule D-3 

COUNTY OF BRUNSWlCK, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPE DITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

WASTEWATER CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS (NON-GAAP) 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Actual 

Project Prior C urrent Total to 
Budget Years Year Date 

Revenues: 

Restricted intergovernmental revenue $ 65,967 $ 27,167 $ 38,800 $ 65,967 

Assessments 368,507 366,910 190, 142 557,052 

SAD interest and penalties 4,692 25,956 57,623 83,579 

ARRA grant 2,061,396 2,000,000 6 1,396 2,061,396 

ARRA interest subsidies 675,679 625,112 50,567 675,679 

Investment earn ings 172,076 204,605 11,053 2 15,658 

Investment earnings-debt proceeds 925 7,534 7,534 

Total revenues 3,349,242 3,249,750 417,11 5 3,666,865 

Expenditures: 

Sunset Beach Wastewater Collection System 23,326,118 2 1,917.418 1,405,876 23,323,294 

Nurlht!ast Brunswick Wastewater Treatment Plant Ph 2 13,797,908 I ,50 I ,531 8,996,851 I 0,498,382 

Carolina Shore Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade 4, 100,000 365,620 2,888,628 3,254,248 

Boiling Springs Lake Transmission 2,246.801 270,497 1,689,428 1,959,925 

Boiling Springs Lake Collection System SAD 3,027,027 208,897 2,335,202 2,544,099 

Ocean Ridge Pump Station/ Angel Trace Force Main 375,000 147,917 30,544 178,46 1 

Bricklanding SAD 804,719 804,719 804,719 

Total expenditures 47,677,573 25,216,599 17,346,529 42,563,128 

Revenues over (under) expendi1ures (44,328,331) (2 1 ,966,849) ( 16,929.414) (38,896,263) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Long term debt issued 40,486,839 34,159,090 6,327,750 40,486,840 

ARRA debt proceeds 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 

Gain on sale of real property 75 1,2 18 751.2 18 751,218 

Transfer from wastewater fund 2,887,496 3,440,82 1 3,440,82 1 

Transfer to wastewater fund (1,015,160) (202,741) (1,365.743) ( I ,568,484) 

Contingency for future projects (4,962,658) 

Appropriated fund balance 4, 180,596 

Total other financing sources (uses) 44,328,331 39,397. 170 5.713,225 45.110,395 

Revenues and other financing sources over 

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ - $ 17,430,32 1 $(11.2 16,189) $ 6.214,132 
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11\"TERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Lotemal service funds are used to account for the County's activities which are similar to 
those often found in the private sector. The measurement focus is on the flow of economic 
resources. 

WORKERS' COMPENSATION INTERNAL SERVICE FUND- This fund is used to 
account for risk management operations of the County and for the financing of workers' 
compensation self-insurance costs incurred. 

HEALTH INSURANCE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND- This fund is used to account 
for health operations of the County and for the tmancing of employees' medical and dental 
costs incurred. 



Schedule E- 1 

COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - FINANCIAL PLAN AND 
ACTUAL AND CHANGES lN NET POSITION - WORKERS' COMPENSATION INTERNAL SERVICE FUND (NON-GAAP) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JlJNE 30,2013 
WITH COMPARATTVEACTUALAMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2012 

Variance 
Financial Positive 

Plan Actual {Negative! 2012 

Revenues: 
Charges for services $ 1.041 ,998 $ 1,041,998 $ - $ 1,041 ,998 

Investment earnings 4.567 4,567 5,757 

Total revenues 1.041 ,998 1,046,565 4,567 1,047,755 

Expenditures: 

Premiums 1.041 ,998 549.516 492.482 568.590 

Revenues over (under) expenditures $ 497.049 $ 497.049 479. 165 

Net positon, beginning of year 1.745.584 1,266,419 

Net positon, end of year $ 2.242.633 $ 1.745,584 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES- FINANCIAL PLAN AND 
ACTUAL AND CHANCES IN NET POSITION- HEALTH INTERNAL SERVICE FUND (NON-CAAP) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012 

Revenues: 
Charges for services 
Investment earnings 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Premiums 
Adm inistration fees 

Total expendjtures 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 

Net po iton, beginning or year 

Net positon, end or year 

$ 

$ 

Financial 
Plan 

10,640,700 
1,300 

10!642,000 

9,732,000 
910,000 

10,642,000 

91 

Variance 
Actual Positive 

Year To Date (Negative) 

$ 10,058,284 $ (582,4 16) 
4,592 3,292 

10,062,876 {579,124) 

8,52 1,849 1,2 10, 151 
890,646 19,354 

9,412,495 1,229,505 

650,38 1 $ 650,381 

1.035,897 

$ 1,686,278 

2012 

$ 10,324,060 
3,869 

10,327,929 

8,573 ,882 
832,258 

9,406,140 

92 1,789 

I 14,108 

$ 1,035,897 



COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION- INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
JUNE 30,2013 

Workers' Health 
Com~ensation Lnsurance 

Current Assets: 
Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 2,438,877 $ 2,194,065 
Deposit receivable 200,300 
Recievable other 1,404 
lnterest receivable 2,824 2,267 

TotaJ current assets 2,441 701 2,398,036 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 199,068 711 ,758 
TotaJ current liabilities 199,068 7 11 ,758 

Net positon: 

Unrestricted 2,242,633 1,686,278 

Total net positon $ 2,242,633 $ 1,686.278 
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Total 

$ 4,632,942 
200,300 

1,404 
5,091 

4,839,737 

910,826 
910,826 

3,928,9 11 

$ 3,928.911 



COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANCES IN NET POSITJON -

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Workers' Health 
Com~ensation Insurance Total 

Operating Revenues: 

User charges $ 1,041 ,998 $ 10,058,284 $ 11 ,100,282 

Total operating reveneus 1,041 ,998 10,058,284 11 ,100,282 

Operating Expenses: 

Premiums 549,516 8,52 1,849 9,071,365 

Adminjstration fees 890,646 890,646 

Total operating expenses 549,5 16 9,412,495 9,962,011 

Operating income (loss) 492,482 645,789 1' 138,271 

Non-operating Revenues: 

Investment earnings 4,567 4,592 9,159 

Total non-operating revenues 4,567 4,592 9,159 

Increase (decrease) in net positou 497,049 650,381 1, 147,430 

Net positon, beginning of year 1,745,584 1,035,897 2,78 1,481 

Net positon, end of year $ 2,242,633 $ 1,686,278 $ 3,928,9 11 

93 

Schedule .E-4 



chedule E-5 

COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

COMBINTNG STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Workers' Health 
Com~ensation Insurance Total 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 
Receipts from chargers to users $ 1,041,998 $ I 0,058,284 $ 11 , 100,282 
Premiums (646,563) {9,406!366) {I 0,052,929) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 395,435 651,918 1,047,353 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities: 
lnterest on investments 4,077 3,585 7,662 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 399,5 12 655,503 1,055,0 15 

Cash and cash equiva lents, beginning of year 2,039,365 1,538,562 3,577,927 

Cash and cash equiva lents, end of year $ 2,438,877 $ 2, 194,065 $ 4,632,942 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 

Operating income (loss) $ 492,482 $ 645,789 $ I, 138,27 1 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable/accrued expenses (97,047) 6, 129 {90,918) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 395,435 $ 651 ,918 $ 1,047,353 
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AGENCY FUNDS 

Social Services Fund - This fund accounts for monies held by the Social Services 
Department for the benefit of certain individuals in the County. 

Smithville Township Fund - This fund accounts for the proceeds of the special hospital 
tax collected by the Cow1ty on behalf of the citizens of Smithville Township. 

Intergovernmental Collections Fund - This fund accounts for the proceeds of the motor 
vehicle taxes and other ad Valorem taxes that are collected by the County on behalf of the 
municipalities within the County and for fines and forfeitures collected by the Clerk of 
Court which are remitted to the Brunswick County Schools. 

Sheriff Department Trust Fund - This fund accounts for the proceeds of court ordered 
property sales necessary to satisfy a debt. 

Brunswick County Hospital Authority - This fund accounts for monies held by 
Brunswick County for the Brunswick County Hospital Authority. 

Save Our Sands: The Inlet Committee- This fund accounts for an inter-local government 
lobbying entity for beach sediment management for which the County acts as fiscal agent. 

Inmate Trust Fund - This fund accounts for monies held by Brunswick County on the 
behalf of inmates in the Brunswick County Detention Center. 

3% Interest Payable to State Fund - This fund accow1ts for monies due to the State of 
North Carolina collected as a late payment penalty on delinquent motor vehicle taxes. 



chedule F- 1 
CO UNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA Page I of2 

COMBIN ING STATEMENT OF CHA NGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES-

AGENCY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Ba lance Balance 
2012 Additions Deductions 2013 

SOCIAL SERVICES F UND 

Assets: 

Cash. cash equivalents and investments $ 45,278 $ 124,472 $ 134,402 $ 35,348 
Interest receivable 65 34 49 50 

Total assets $ 45,343 $ 124,506 $ 134.45 1 $ 35.398 

Liabilities: 

Other $ 45,343 $ 286,050 $ 295,995 $ 35.398 

SMITHVILLE TOWNSHlP FUND 

Assets: 
Cash. cash equivalents and investments $ 1, 104.25 1 $ 2.661.603 $ 2,735,703 $ l ,030, I 51 
Interest receivable 2,55 1 1,723 1.82 1 2,453 

$ 1,106.802 $ 2,663,326 $ 2.737.524 $ 1.032.604 

L iabilities: 

Due to other governmental agencies 1.106.802 2, 115.438 2, 189,636 1.032.604 

Total liabil ities $ 1,106.802 $ 2, 115.438 $ 2.189,636 $ 1.032.604 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COLLECTIONS FUND 

Assets: 

Cash. cash equivalents and investments $ 9 12,36 1 $ 30,7 12,681 $ 3 1,083,042 $ 542.000 

Tm(es receivable. net 32. 186 28,280 32, 186 28.280 

Total assets $ 944,547 $ 30,740,961 $ 3 1. 115.228 $ 570.280 

Liabilities: 

Due to other governmental agencies $ 944.547 $ 3 1,042.453 $ 3 1.4 16,720 $ 570,280 

SHERIFF DEPARTMENT TRUST FUND 

Assets: 
Cash. cash equivalents and investments $ 3.705 $ 25 1,750 $ 249.559 $ 5.896 

Liabilities: 
Other $ 3.705 $ 25 1,750 $ 249.559 $ 5.896 

BRUNSWICK HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

Assets: 

Cash. cash equivalents and investments $ 464.408 $ 79 1 $ 465,199 $ 

Interest Receivable 853 282 l.l 35 

Total assets $ 465.261 $ 1.073 $ -166.334 $ 

Liabilities: 

Other $ -165.262 $ - $ 465.262 $ 

95 



Schedule F-1 
COUNTY OF BRUNSW1CK, NORTH CAROLINA Page 2 of2 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANG ES fN ASSETS AND LIABILITrES-
AGENCY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2013 

Balance Balance 
2012 Additions Deductions 2013 

INLET COM 1\in TTEE SAVE OUR SANDS 

Assets: 
Cash. cash equivalents and investments $ 1. 170 $ - $ 1, 170 $ 

Liabilities: 
Other $ 1. 170 $ - $ 1, 170 $ 

INMATE TRUST FUND 
Assets: 
Cash. cash equivalents and investments $ 46,290 $ 504,326 $ 513,237 $ 37.379 

Liabilities: 

Other $ 46,290 $ 504.326 $ 513,237 $ 37,379 

3% INTEREST PAYABLE TO STATE 
Assets: 
Cash. cash equivalents and investmenls $ 2,267 $ 33.424 $ 33.413 $ 2.278 

Liabilities: 
Other $ 2.267 $ 33.424 $ 33.4 13 $ 2,278 

COMBINING TOTALS 

Assets: 
Cash. cash equivalents and investments $ 2.579.730 $ 34.289.047 35,2 15,725 $ 1.653.052 
Interest receivable 3.469 2,039 3,005 2,503 
Taxes receivable. net 32.186 28.280 32.186 28.280 

Total assets $ 2,615,385 $ 34.3 19,366 $ 35.250,916 $ 1.683.835 

Liabilities: 
Due to other governmental agencies $ 2.05 1.349 $ 33.157.89 1 $ 33,606,356 $ 1,602,884 
Other 564,037 1,075.550 1.558.636 80,95 1 

Total liabilities $ 2.615.386 $ 34.233.44 1 $ 35.164.992 $ 1.683.835 
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SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA 

This section includes additional information on property taxes. 

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable- General Fund 

Analysis of Current Tax Levy - County-Wide Levy 



Schedule G-1 

COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE - GENERAL FUND 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Uncollected 
Balance 

Fiscal Year June 30,2012 

201 2-13 $ 
201 1-12 
20 I O-Il 
2009-10 
2008-09 
2007-08 
2006-07 
2005-06 
2004-05 
2003-04 
2002-03 

$ 

-
5,645,958 
3,468,387 
2,027,109 
1,035,983 

3 11 ,690 
243,471 
211 , 100 
167,341 
143,890 
176,296 

13,431,225 

Additions 

$ 109,045,695 

$ I 09,045,695 

Less: Allowance for uncollected taxes receivable 
General Fund 

Ad valorem taxes receivable (net) 

Reconciljation with Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes - General Fund 

Reconciling Items: 
Interest collected and penalties 
Releases on prior year tax 
Reimbursement of prior year's taxes collected 
Collection of taxes previously written off 

Total collections and credits 
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UncoJJected 
Collections Balance 
and Credits June 30, 2013 

$ 103,031,401 
2 ,558,658 
1,300,777 

824,444 
514,559 

78,863 
44,037 
58, 145 
49,794 
28,477 

176,296 

$ 108,665,451 

$ 6,014,294 
3,087,300 
2, 167,610 
1,202,665 

521,424 
232,827 
199,434 
152,955 
117,547 
115,41 3 

13,811,469 

5,553,485 

$ 8,257,984 

$ I 08,945,817 

(1 ,153,354) 
875,254 

3,960 
(6,226) 

$ I 08,665,451 



Schedule G-2 

COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY- COUNTY-WIDE LEVY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Property 
Coun!X-Wide Excluding Registered 

Property Amount Registered Motor 
Valua tion Rate of Levy Vehicles Vehicles 

Original levy: 
Property taxed at current year's rate $ 24,243,970,097 $ 0.4425 $ I 07,278,962 $ I 04,400,574 $ 2,878,388 
Motor vehicles taxed at prior year's rate 338,459,788 $ 0.4425 1,497,592 1,497,592 
Penalties 26,232 26,232 
Total 24,582,429,885 I 08,802,786 I 04,426,806 4,375,980 

Discoveries: 
Current and prior years' taxes 16, 150.265 406,709 406,709 
Penalties 2 1,118 21, 118 

Total l6,1 50.265 427,827 427,827 

Abatements (41 ,789,073) ( 184,917) ( 142,266) (42,651) 

Total property valuation $ 24,556,79 1,077 

Net levy I 09,045,695 104,7 12.367 4,333,328 

Less uncollected taxes at June 30, 20 13 6,014,294 5,442,308 571,986 

Current year's taxes collected $ 1 03,031 ,40 I $ 99,270,059 $ 3,761 ,342 

Current levy collection percentage 9448% ~ 86 80% 

Prior year levy collection percentage 94.71% ~ 85 88% 
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NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNIT FINANCIAL DATA 

Brunswick County Board of Alcoholic Control, a component unit of Brunswick County, 
is a legally separate entity for which the County is financ ially accountable. The Board 
issues separate financial statements. 

Brunswick County Airport Commission, a component unit of Bnmswick County, is a 
legally separate entity for which the County is financially accountable. The Board issues 
separate financial statements. 

Brunswick County Tourism Development Authority, a component unit of Brunswick 
County, is a legally separate entity for which the County is financially accountable. The 
Board issues separate fi nancial statements. 

Brunswick County Economic Development Commission, a component unit of 
Brunswick County, is a legally separate entity for which the County is financially 
accountable. The Board issues separate financial statements. 



Schedule H-1 

COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS 
JUNE 30,2013 

Brunswick Brunswick Brunswick 
County Brunswick County County 

Board of County Tourism Economic 
Alcoholic Airport Development Development 
Control Commission Authority Commission Totals 

Assets: 
Current Assets: 
Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 243.945 $ 143.979 $ 567,539 $ 120.998 $ 1.076.46 1 
Restricted cash and investments 4,550 4,550 
Receivables, net 18.695 18,695 
Due from primary government 324,535 324,535 
Due from other governments 1.522 1,522 
Inventory 187.1 28 17.724 204.852 
Prepaid items 13,85 1 6,965 20.816 

Total current assets 444,924 186,470 899,039 120.998 1.65 1.43 1 

Capital assets. net 1.402.548 22.807.107 4,302 12.903 24.226,860 

Total assets $ 1,847,472 $ 22,993,577 $ 903,341 $ 133,90 1 $ 25.878,29 1 

Liabilities and Net positon: 
Liabilities: 
Current Liabilities: 
Debt obligation - current portion $ 62,800 $ - $ - $ - $ 62,800 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 154.752 9.738 6,987 1.33 1 172,808 

Due to other governments 79,164 55,153 134,3 17 

Total current liabilities 296,716 64.891 6,987 1,33 1 369,925 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Debt obligation - long-term portion 335,600 5,879 341,479 

Total noncurrent liabilities 335,600 5.879 341.479 

Total liabilities 632.316 64.891 12,866 1.33 1 7 11 ,404 

Net positon: 
Invested in capital assets. net of related debt 1.00-t l48 22.807,107 4,302 12.903 23.828,460 
Restricted: 
Stablization by tate Statute 68,872 324.535 393.407 
For Toruism Promotion 56 1,638 561,638 

Unrestricted 142. 136 121.579 I 19.667 383.382 

Total net positon $ 1.2 15,156 $ 22.928.686 $ 890.475 $ 132.570 $ 25, 166,887 
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Schedule H-2 

COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

COMBTNlNG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -

NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNJTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Brunswick Brunswick Brunswick 
County Brunswick County County 

Board of County Tourism Econom ic 
Alcoholic Airport Development Development 
Control Commission Authorit~ Commission Totals 

Revenues 
Sales and services $ 1,790,685 $ 890,13 1 $ 29,775 $ 2,633 $ 2,71 3,224 
Room occupancy taxes I, 184,989 I, 184,989 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 97,000 97,000 
Operating grants 2,755 2,755 
Capital grants 128,500 128,500 
Other revenue 1,901 21,853 23,754 
Investment earnings 14 1 57 1,0 12 1,2 11 

Total revenues 1,792,727 1,009,04 1 1,2 15,776 133,889 4, 151,433 

Expenses 
Operating expenses 1,680, 179 1,225,950 1, 11 6,364 133,957 4, 156,450 

Capital contributions 3, 11 0,807 3, 11 0,807 

C hange in net positon 112,548 2,893,898 99,4 12 (68) 3, 105,790 

Net positon, beginning of year I, 102,608 20,034,788 79 1,063 132,638 22,061,097 

Net positon, end of year $ 1.2 15, 156 $ 22,928,686 $ 890,475 $ 132,570 $ 25, 166,887 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

This section includes detailed information as a context for understanding what the 
infonnation in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary 
information says about the County's overall financial health. 

Financial Trends - These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand 
how the County's :financial performance and well-being have changed over time: 

Net Assets by Components (unaudited) 
Changes in Net Assets (unaudited) 
Governmental Activities Tax Revenues by Source (unaudited) 
Fund Balance, Governmental Funds (unaudited) 
Changes in Fund Balance, Governmental Funds (unaudited) 

Revenue Capacity- These tables contain information to help the reader assess the factors 
affecting the County' s abil ity to generate its property taxes: 

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property (unaudited) 
Property Tax Rates-Direct and All Overlapping Governments (unaudited) 
Principal Property Taxpayers (unaudited) 
Property Tax Levies and Collections- Genera l Fund (w1audited) 

Debt Capacity - These tables present information to help the reader assess the 
affordability of the County's current levels of outstanding debt and the County' s ability to 
issue additional debt in the future: 

Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type (unaudited) 
Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Net Genera l 

Obligation Bonded Debt per Capita (unaudited) 
Direct and Underlying Governmental Activities Debt (unaudited) 
Legal Debt Margin Information (unaudited) 
Pledged-Revenue Coverage (unaudited) 

Demographic and Economic Information - These tables offer demographic and 
economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the 
County's :financ ial activities take place and to help make com pari sons over time and with 
other governments: 

Demographic Statistics (unaudited) 
Principal Employers (unaudited) 
Full-time Equivalent County Government Employees by Function (unaudited) 

Operating Information - These tables contain information about the County' s 
operations and resources to he lp the reader understand how the County's financial 
infonnation re lates to the services the County provides and the activities it performs: 

Operating Ind icators by Function/Program (unaudited) 
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program (unaudited) 



COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

Net Position by Component 
(accrua l basis of accounting) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year 
2004 2005 2006 2007 

Governmental activities 
Net investment in capital assets $ 48,903,970 $ 37,137,060 $ 54,279,043 $ 67, 118,730 
Restricted 23,334,978 23,334,978 
Unrestricted { 12,454,484) {2,843,693) 13, 102,857 12,669,940 

Total governmental activities net pos iton $ 59,784,464 $ 57,628,345 $ 67,38 1,900 $ 79,788,670 

Business-type activities 
Net investment in capital assets $ 80,543,952 $ 39,904,058 $ 93,748,105 $ 114,088,014 

Unrestricted 12,088,889 6 1,659,379 28,132,662 28,3 ]1 ,927 

Total business-type activities net positon $ 92,632,84 1 $ 101 ,563,437 $ 121,880,767 $ 142 ,399,941 

Primary Government 
Net investment in capital assets $ 129,447,922 $ 77,041 , 118 $ 148,027' 148 $ 181 .206, 744 

Restricted 23,334,978 23,334,978 
Unrestricted {365,595) 58,815,686 41 ,235,519 40,981 ,867 

Total primary government net positon $ 152,417,305 $ 159,19 1,782 $ 189,262,667 $ 222, 188,611 
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Table J 

Fiscal Year 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

$ 37.377,510 $ 80,832,411 $ 84,644,800 $ 87,280,988 $ 83,875,530 $ 82,982,620 
8,043,57 1 14,349,327 12,788,396 

31,112,73 1 {19,2 13,539) {2 1 !304, 189) { 14,326,518) {18, 195,225) {7,358,632) 

$ 68,490,24 1 $ 6 1,618,872 $ 63,340,6 11 $ 80.998,041 $ 80,029,632 $ 88,412,384 

$ I 04,963,579 $ 161 ,945,932 $ 187,205,988 $ 195,778,306 $ 207,222,0 12 $ 2 15,460,422 
65,985,290 34,144,461 24,907,050 32,047,202 32,388,427 55,390, 170 

$ 170,948,869 $ 196,090,393 $ 212, 113,038 $ 227,825,508 $ 239,6 10,439 $ 270,850,592 

$ 142,341 ,089 $ 242,778,343 $ 27 1,850,788 $ 283,059,294 $ 291,097,542 $ 298,443,042 
8,043,571 14,349,327 12,788,396 

97,098,021 14!930,922 3,602,861 17,720,684 14,193,202 48!031 ,538 

$ 239,439, II 0 $ 257,709,265 $ 275,453,649 $ 308,823,549 $ 319,640,071 $ 359,262,976 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTii CAROLINA 

C hanges in Net Position 
(accrual basis of accounting) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Expenses 
Governmental activities: 

General government 
Public safety 
Central services 
Human services 
Transportation 
Environmental protection 
Cultural and recreation 
Economic and physical development 
Education 
Revaluation Services 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Water 
Wastewater 

Total business-type activities 

rotal primary government expen;es 

Program Reven ues 
Governmental activities 
Charges for services: 

General government 
Public safety 
Central services 
Human services 
Environmental protection 
Cultura l and recreation 
Economic and physical development 
Education 

Operating grants and contributions: 
General government 
Public safety 
Central services 
Human services 
Transportation 
Environmental protection 
Cultural and recreation 
Economic and physical development 
Education 

200~ 

$ 9, 126,904 
14,90 1.2 14 
8.524.633 

19,498,577 
3.046.258 
9,412.246 
2,446.057 
5,26 1, 136 

4 1.780. 114 

4,297,354 

11 8.294,493 

9.847.383 
1.693.765 

11.541.1 48 

$ 129.835,641 

$ 2.486.888 
2.855,570 

758,966 
935.055 

1.391.467 

105.907 
453.89 1 

5 10,279 
683,683 

9.524.9 15 
1.985.0 15 

263, 178 
13 1.359 

2.486.436 

zoos 

$ 12.265.609 
16,6 13.15 1 
9,8 19.9 16 

2 1.705,607 
860,256 

9,737.74 I 
3.094.606 
5.800.337 

35.261.269 

6.0 16.632 

12 1.175. 124 

9.599,753 
3,541.858 

13, 141.61 I 

$ 134.3 16,735 

$ 2.344.425 
4.496.62 1 
1,304.404 
2. 199.295 
2.092.870 

285.906 
997.435 

84.566 
932.645 
128,72 1 

9.333.298 

22 1.070 
138.984 

2.584.52 1 
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Fisca l Year 
2006 2001 2008 

s 11 .650.297 $ 14,898.739 $ 25,786.285 
2 1.488,245 23,757,9 12 28.704.704 
11.4 15,044 I 1,661, 193 12,49 1,337 
24,449,640 26.746.227 30,203,435 

1.553, 193 1,005,75 1 2.258.368 
10,201,646 11 ,272,8 11 12,55 1,87 1 
2,932,943 1.060.589 4,449.488 
5,888,020 6.879,523 7.2 13.679 

40,347.613 38, 167,647 47.784,629 

4, 120.523 4,255, 1 16 4,294.959 

134.047. 164 139,705.508 175,738,755 

10.906.786 13.871.03 I 16.426.295 
2.937.0 19 9, 168.580 7,926.725 

13.843.805 23.039,61 1 24.353.020 

$ 147.890,969 $ 162,745,119 $ 200,091,775 

$ 3.445,947 $ 4,726.587 $ 1,480.767 
4.610.690 4,034.126 5.309.134 
1. 133.005 1,320.2 17 2.163,366 
1.450.075 2.770,323 1, 124,272 
2.3 15,762 1.928.085 

717.35 1 2.63 1.302 224.367 
8.397 1,224,383 

76,459 

7 10. 170 

15.222.947 17.047, 108 17,1 '58. 192 

1,228 
139.73 1 

2. 146 
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Table 2 

Fiscal Year 
2009 2010 20 11 2012 2013 

$ 10,824.875 $ 10,891,485 $ 10.525,533 $ 10.998,376 $ 10,934,466 
32,475,04 1 32.43 1.363 33.465,622 34,7 15,586 35,303,805 
12,874.270 12,032,434 4.3 16,359 13.455.405 12.644,064 
29,448.343 3 1,20 1, 132 26. 128,245 26,325,54 1 26,348,700 

2,3 15,776 4,292.392 3.742,434 3.736,588 2,6 16. 195 
14.390.242 7,362.499 13,812,863 13.876,612 13,394,236 
4.578.694 1.908. 173 4.214,605 4,169,2 18 3,951,742 
6,844.987 7.6 14.8 11 6.9 13,420 7,653,903 7,6 16.623 

50,907,860 42.39 1.583 39.853,5 17 39,852,618 42.982.1 16 

6.439,6 14 6,372.620 28,264 1,894,630 4,6 16.769 

17 1,099,702 156.498.492 143.000.862 156,678.477 160,408.7 16 

14.967.806 15.977.572 16,289,895 15.995,637 17.58 1.607 
9.775.273 11.656.776 4, 145,162 14,741.649 16,822.230 

24,743.079 27.634.348 20.435,057 30.737.286 34,403,837 

s 195l842.781 $ 184.1 32.840 $ 163.435,919 $ 187.415.763 $ 194.812.553 

$ 1.832,978 s 1.387,0 17 $ 1.475. 142 $ 1.481.028 s 1.771.496 
5.228.230 5.635,307 6,702,142 6,707,376 8.077.465 
2,139.967 1.535,7 16 444.294 444,294 

918,087 I ,335.443 1.060,04 1 2,670,338 2.35 1.986 
1,546.722 1.275,381 2,044,307 2,044,804 2,682,035 

194.681 188. 117 220,402 220,402 200.8 13 
U 47.627 1,254.385 1. 108.423 1, 108,903 1.058.732 

7 13.544 937,273 1.077,537 7 13.544 
1.405. 174 1.088.201 365,583 743,632 1.579.854 

18,693.7 12 19.082.23 1 17,47 1.434 18.392.79 1 14. 187,069 
235,060 235.060 

6,961 6,96 1 
147.278 5 1.829 147.278 

1.530. 140 946.91 2 2.428.282 
4.833 3,610 3.7 16 3.716 
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COU TV OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

C hanges in et Position 
(accrual basis of accounting) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Capital grants and contributions: 
General government 
Public sa fety 
Transportation 
Cultural and recreation 
Economic and physical development 
Education 

Total governmental activities program revenues 

Business-type activities: 
Charges for services: 

Water 
Wastewater 

Capital grants and contributions: 
Water 
Wastewater 

Total business-type activities program revenues 

Total primary government progran1 revenues 

Net (expense)/revenue 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Total primary government net (expense)/revenue 

2004 

42 1.823 
272. 142 

1,78 1,872 
33 1,223 

27.379.669 

13,461,240 
1,527.189 

1,708.819 
2,53 1,5 17 

19,228.765 

$ 46,608,434 

$ (90,9 14,824) 
7.687.6 17 

$ (83,227.207) 

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net positoo 
Govemmental activities: 

Ad Valorem taxes $ 67,7 17,3 15 

Local option taxes 16,636,2 15 

Other taxes 5.303.623 

Unrestricted Grants and contributions 
Investment earnings 921.742 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 
Transfers 4.29 1,705 

Total governmental activities 94,870,600 

Business-type activities: 
Investment earnings 183.11 3 

Transfers (4.29 1.705) 
Total business-type activities (4. 108.592) 

Total primary government $ 90,762.008 

2005 

3.556,280 

30.701.041 

12,729.168 
4.196,991 

1,206,673 
1,3 18.004 

19,450.836 

$ 50.151.877 

$ (90.474,083) 
6,309,225 

$ (84, 164,858) 

$ 73.327,947 
18.867,402 
7,061.892 

1.832.774 
( 10,909.492) 

( 1.862.584) 

88.317,939 

758,787 
1,862,584 
2.62 1,37 1 

$ 90.939.3 10 
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Fiscal Yea r 
2006 2007 2008 

1,337 

1,568,395 
100.000 (55.153) 

1.626,521 574.128 
548.439 

31.070.737 32,639.397 33,629,670 

15,985,038 18,085,844 19,502,863 
8.406.018 13,187,399 12.16 1. 118 

4.058,527 3,056,007 9.1 01,531 
4,355,512 7.963.239 9.994,682 

32,805,095 42,292,489 50,760, 194 

$ 63,875,832 $ 74.93 1,886 $ 84,389.864 

$( I 02.976,427) $( 107,066,111 ) $( 142, I 09,085) 
18.96 1,290 19,252.878 26 407.174 

$ (84.0 15.137) $ (87 ,8 13.233) $( 115.70 1.911) 

$ 78.767,616 $ 84.223.342 $ 97,218.426 
2 1,06 1.222 23,256. 105 23.06 1.392 

8,761,948 6,340,890 4.942.000 

4. 199.756 5.200.749 5,155.748 
489,997 

(60. 169) 451.795 (56,907) 

11 2,730,373 119,472.88 1 130.810.656 

1.295,870 1.718.088 2.084,847 
60.168 (45 1.795) 56,907 

1.356.038 1.266.293 2.141.754 

$ 11 4.086.4 11 $ 120.739. 174 $ 132.952.41 0 

Continued on next page 



Table 2 (Continued) 

Fiscal Year 
2009 20 10 2011 2012 2013 

28.309 
2,362.035 3,400,594 2.88 1.715 3.127,909 1,998,505 

7 13,193 
4 16,223 

189. 138 727.475 727.475 1,386,898 

38.133.602 38.424.895 35.441 ,947 38.802.034 38.854.287 

18.692.965 17.59 1,342 20,233.9 12 20.024,998 20,622,239 
10,9 14.375 12.044.395 17,332,864 18, 192,80 1 4 1.665.426 

4,890.763 3.448.505 2,026,8 10 1,135,642 1.339,740 
13.980,711 10.2 17.775 1.995,448 3.066.745 1.1 8 1.493 

48.478.8 14 43,302.017 4 1.589,034 42.420. 186 64.808.898 

$ 86,612.416 s 8 1,726.9 12 $ 77.030,981 s 81,222,220 s I 03.663, 185 

$( 132,966.1 00) $( 11 8,073.597) $( 107.558,915) $( 11 7,876,443) $ ( 12 1.554.429) 
23,735.735 15.667,669 2 1,153.977 11.682,900 30.405.061 

$( I 09,230.365) S( I 02.405.928) s ~86,404.938) $~ 1 06. 1 93.543) s (91, 149.368) 

s 10 1,088,129 $ I 01.876.707 $ I 06,878,322 $ I 06.878.322 s 109, 152,892 
19,741.137 15,061.747 14.87 1.122 15.996.708 16.94 1,795 
3.054,525 3,249.224 3, 161,359 3,163.720 3.484.388 

2,210.940 7 13.501 305.543 305.536 168.330 

{I) { I) 

126.094.73 1 120,90 I, 178 125,2 16,345 126.344.286 129,747.405 

1,405,789 354.975 128,414 127,494 83.874 

1.405.789 354.975 128..t l 4 127,494 83.874 

s 127.500.520 $ 121,256,153 $ 125,344.759 $ 126,471.780 $ 129.831.279 
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COUNTY OF BRUN WIC K, NORT H CAROLINA 

C hanges in et Position 
(accrual basis of accounting) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Cha nge in et Position 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Total primary government 

200-1 

$ 3,955.776 
3.579,025 

$ 7.534.80 1 

2005 

$ (2, 156, 144) 
8.930.596 

$ 6.774.452 
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Fisca l \'ear 
2006 2007 2008 

$ 9.753,946 $ 12,406.770 $ ( II ,298.429) 
20.3 17.328 20.519. 17 1 28,548.928 

$ 30.07 1,274 $ 32,925.941 $ 17.250.499 



Table 2 {Continued) 

Fiscal Year 
2009 2010 201l 2012 2013 

$ (6.87 1.369) s 2.827.581 $ 17.657.430 $ 8.467,843 s 8,192.976 
25, 141.524 16.022.644 2 1.282.391 11.810.394 30.488.935 

$ 18,270.155 $ 18.850.225 $ 38.939,821 $ 20,278,237 $ 38.681 ,9 11 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA Table 3 

Governmenta l Activities Tax Revenues By Source 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Video Alcoholic 
Fiscal P roperty Sales Franchise Programming Beverage 
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Total 

2004 68,478,690 16,636,215 194,982 209,433 85,5 19,320 
2005 74,520,219 18,867,402 218,647 220,257 93,826,525 
2006 79, 137,087 2 1,06 1,222 33 1,736 227,627 I 00,757,672 
2007 84,422,322 23,256,105 212,941 241,782 108, 133,1 50 
2008 96,940,721 23,061 ,392 4,785 424,364 240,565 120,67 1,827 
2009 98,948,961 19,741 ,137 6,768 451 ,989 244,224 11 9,393 ,079 
20 10 100,529,188 15,06 1,747 73,409 445,398 77,229 11 6,186,97 1 
2011 I 00,346,765 14,29 1.687 436,749 248,907 11 5,324, 108 
20 12 105,460, 11 8 15,996,708 438,980 248, 109 122, 143,915 
20 13 108,945,8 17 16,941 ,795 426,533 234.872 126,549,0 17 

Note: During FY 07-08, Franchise Fees were eliminated by the State and replaced by the Video Progran1ming Tax. 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWI CK, NORTH CAROLINA 

Fund Balance, Governmental Funds 
(modified accrua l basis of accounting) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

General Fund 
Reserved 
U nreserved 
Restricted 
Assigned 
Committed 
Unassigned 

Total General fund 

All Other Governmental Funds 
Reserved 

Unreserved, reported in: 
Special revenue funds 
Capital Project Funds. Designated for Subsequent years 

Restricted in Special Revenue Funds 
Restricted in Capital Project Funds 
Committed in Capital Project Funds 
Assigned in Special Revenue Funds 
Unassigned in Special Revenue Funds 

Total all other govenunental funds 

Fiscal Year 
2004 2005 2006 2007 

$ 10.054,303 $ 15.960.256 $ 11,427,160 $ 9,238.373 
44.440.752 37.742,809 50,2 19.523 55.277.531 

$ 54,495.055 $ 53.703.065 $ 61,646,683 $ 64,515.904 

$ 2.105,354 $ 1.090.505 $ 1,55 1,160 $ 17.026,010 

18,645.959 
26,812,610 

22.1 73,785 
23,406,3 10 

11 .323.483 
26,794,098 

14,984,776 
584. 11 2 

$ 47.563,923 $ 46,670.600 $ 39.668.741 $ 32,594,898 
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Table<1 

Fiscal Year 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

$ 10.255,753 $ 7.460.930 $ 7. 125.195 $ $ $ 
53,893,857 47,868,262 47,02 1,290 

4,365.639 10,533,677 10,707.390 
2.440,362 897,261 649.053 

2 14,566 214.566 
5 1.160,940 48,066.823 55. 107,448 

$ 64, 149.610 $ 55.329.192 $ 54.146,485 $ 57.966.94 1 $ 59.712,327 $ 66,678.457 

$ 29, 199,790 $ 7,742,400 $ 97.309 $ $ $ 

14.553,588 19.527.193 16.571 ,212 
584.112 14.170,398 10.277,992 

1.40 1.061 2. 168.093 1.703,515 
2.276.871 1,647,557 377,491 

23.5 13.880 22.678,928 21,750.674 
43.1 83 

(78r68) ( 1. 1 02,442) (3 0.670) 

$ 44.337.490 $ 41.439.991 $ 26.946.513 $ 26,45 1.427 $ 25.392.136 $ 23,48 1.0 I 0 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK. NORTH CAROLINA 

C hanges in Fund Balance, Governmental Funds 
(modified accrua l basis of accounting) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year 
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

Revenues 
Ad Valorem taxes $ 68,478,690 $ 74,520,219 $ 79, 137,087 $ 84,422,322 $ 96,940,72 1 
Special assessments 81 ,718 123,739 64,430 
Local option sales taxes 16,636,215 18,867,402 2 1,061,222 23,256,105 23 ,061.392 
Other taxes and licenses 5,303,623 7,149,284 8,889,952 6,340,890 4,942,000 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 239,433 244,257 25 1,627 265,782 70 1,489 
Restricted intergovernmental 17,022,785 I 5,562,908 17,655,444 18,597,043 19,912,197 
Pennits and fees 5,654,0 18 6,279,187 7,550,776 7,591,795 4,127,984 
Sales and services 3,367,844 4,045,435 4,92 1,912 5,217,986 8,379,989 
Investment earnings 921,742 1,832,774 4,199,756 5,200,749 5,155,748 
Other revenue 1,129,707 572,923 548,246 853,493 924,338 

Total revenues 11 8,835,775 129, 198,128 144,280,452 15 1,746,165 164,145,858 

Expenditures 
General government 8,586,235 11 , 199,360 10,869,890 11 ,168,979 9,864,403 
Public safety 15,906, 193 19,068,489 20,976,344 23,070,557 27,575,360 
Central services 9,2 19,309 10,022,451 12,348,752 11 ,276,503 11 ,867,248 
Human services 19.444,080 2 1.478,307 24,451,543 26,466,751 28,631 ,664 
Transportation 85,000 85,000 85,000 93,500 270,929 
Envi ronmental protection 9,563,180 9,932,288 10, 163,812 ] 1,069,839 12,522,556 
Culture and recreation 3,375,151 3,256,502 4,339,985 4,363,027 5,558,766 
Economic and physical development 5,823,286 5,678,048 5,765,438 6,802,35 1 6,947,6 15 
Education 23,088,975 24,540,416 25,624,225 27,987,072 32,098,564 
Capital Outlay 17,039,722 6,323,301 10,903,742 7,742,736 12,344,540 
Intergovernmental expenditures 7,548, 146 10,229,547 7,764,205 15,584,549 22,710,479 
Debt Service: 

Principal retirement 5,45 1, 17 1 6,609,797 6,372,162 6,697,377 7,975,5 12 
Interest and fi scal charges 4,360,746 6,116,632 4,620,523 4,255, 116 4,861,0 13 

Total expenditures 129,491 ,194 134,540,138 144,285,62 1 156,578,357 J 83,228,649 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (I 0,655,4 19) (5,342,0 I 0) (5,169) (4,832,192) ( 19,082.791 ) 

Other Financing Sou rces (Uses) 
Issuance of long-tenn debt 25,14R,765 22,674.694 1,007,492 175.770 65,300,000 
Premium on Bonds Issued 566,054 
Discounts on Bonds Issued 
Payment to escrow agent-refunded debt (3,275,000) ( 17,385,545) 
Sale of capital assets 119,366 230,106 489,997 
Transfer fTom other funds 20,162,719 24,449, 183 34,901,277 24,969,412 2 1,600,857 
Transfer to other funds (15,871.0 16) (26,3 11,766) (34,96 1,447) (24,5 1 7.6 17) (2 1,657.764) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 26,484,834 3,656,672 947,322 627,565 66,299, 144 

Net change in fund balances $ 15,829,4 15 $ ( 1,685,338) $ 942,153 $ (4,204,627) $ 47,216.353 

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital 8.7% 9.9% 8.2% 7.4% 7.5% 
expenditures 
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Table 5 

Fiscal Year 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

$ 98,948,96 I $ I 00,529, 188 $ I 00,346,765 $ 105,460,118 $ I 08,945,817 

19,741,137 15,061 ,747 14,291 ,687 15,996,708 16,94I ,795 
3,054,525 3,249,224 3,130,245 3,163,720 3,484,388 

735,680 549,711 1,536,54 1 1,658,455 1,133,188 
24, I67,893 24,368,907 22,912,749 23,406,593 22,164,613 
3,389.913 3,261,887 2,940,408 3,23 1,061 3,3 16,555 
8,133,848 7,559,876 7,263,926 7,41 6,0 17 9,275,461 
2,210,940 7 12, 175 403,06 1 295,9 10 159,171 
1,750,675 972,567 5,602,806 1,407, 154 1,627,789 

162,133,572 156,265,282 158,428,188 162,035,736 167,048,777 

9,826,801 9,613,675 9,302,160 9,676,687 10,2 15,740 
30,369,4 12 29,332,960 30,056.729 32,25 1,93 1 32,451,639 
12,100,908 11 ,699,222 10,697,137 12,37 1,883 11,664,103 
28,070,006 26,668,707 25,077,2 11 25,924,881 25,051 ,483 

256,739 280,466 26 1,930 3'14,699 373,450 
13,326,293 12,455, 13 1 13,087,467 13,5 19,057 13,420,533 
4,033,904 3,83 1,067 3,860,796 3,882,693 3,654,807 
6,479.048 6,699,963 6,827,513 6,305,436 6,4 19,770 

35,390,424 34,451,976 32,95 1,548 35,488,626 36,675,154 
14,918,421 10,416,650 4,453,0 15 3,980,519 4,998,600 
38,863.5 18 11 ,495,398 2,37 1,30 1 4,016,191 2,886,725 

9,6 16,456 10,041 ,528 10,099,775 9,949,167 9,910,000 
6,439,614 8, 162,795 5,367,8 12 6,487,455 6,492,027 

209,69 1 ,544 175,149,538 ] 54,4 14,394 164,199,225 164,2 14,03 1 

(47,557,972) ( 18,884,256) 4,01 3,794 (2, 163,489) 2,834,746 

24,715,000 45,795,000 16,620,000 
1.790,175 4,789,688 1,875,258 

(196,863) 
(23,500,000) ( 48,226.667) ( 16.275,000) 

202,895 
17,059.900 9,653,933 5,437,904 2,491 ,595 4,003,845 

(17,059,900) (9,653,933) (5,437,904) (2,491.595) ( 4.003,845) 

3,208,070 2,16 1.158 2,220,258 

$(47.557,972) $ ( 15.676, 186) $ 4,013.794 $ (2,33 1) $ 5,055,004 

8.2% 11.1% 10.3% 10.3% 10.3% 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
(amounts expressed in thousands) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal 
Year Real Pro~ertl: 

Ended Residential Commercial 
June 30 Propertl: Pro~erty 

2004 8,917,420 1,872,343 
2005 9,425,726 1,954,738 
2006 10,13 1,558 2,063,869 
2007 10,898,562 2,315.751 
2008 24, 137,625 5,539,507 
2009 25, 17 1,023 6,030,188 
20 10 25,61 1,680 6, 135,756 
2011 25,956,004 6,088,445 
20 12 18,204,062 4,270,088 
20 13 18,3 17,595 4,296,720 

Source: Annual County Report of Valuation and Property Tax Levies 

Note: 

Persona l Proeertl: 

Motor 
Vehicles Other 

670, 135 1,682,987 
737,823 1,690,560 
828,607 1,706,2 15 
899,654 1,698,7 14 
954,681 I ,785,364 
933,239 1,958,369 
872,773 1,982,727 
877,835 1,813 ,228 
933,0 11 2,005,369 
989,099 1,885,322 

A revalualion of real property is requ ired by the North Carolina General Statutes at least every eight years. 
Real property in Brunswick County is reassessed once every four years. The last revaluation was completed 
January 201 1. The estimated market value is calculated by dividing the assessed value by an assessment-to-sales 
ratio determined by the State Department of Revenue. The ratio is based on actual property sales which took 
place during the fiscal year. 
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Table 6 

Total Estimated Assessed 
Less: Total Taxable Direct Actual Value as a 

Tax Exempt Assessed Tax Taxable Percentage of 
Real Property Value Rate Value Actual Value 

235,475 12,907,4 10 0.00540 12,907,4 10 100.00% 
241,148 13,567,699 0.00540 15,527,236 87.38% 
240,038 14,490,2 11 0.00540 18, 112,764 80.00% 
287,626 15,525,055 0.00540 24,840,088 62.50% 
992,640 31,424,537 0.00305 3 1,649,247 99.29% 

1,007,602 33,085,217 0.00305 33,736,328 98.07% 
1,056,335 33,546,600 0.00305 32,9 11 ,4 10 101.93% 
1, 127,037 33,608,475 0.00305 29,587,530 113.59% 

883,952 24,528,578 0.00425 25,2 17,002 97.27% 
889,727 24,599,009 0.00425 23,857,055 103 . 11% 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

Property Tax Rates-Direct and All Overlapping Governments 
(Per $100 of Assessed Value) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2013 

County: 
Brunswick County-wide rate 

Municipality Rates: 
Village of Bald Head Island 

Village of Bald Head Island MSD Zone A (4) 
Vi llage of Bald Head Island MSD Zone B (4) 

Town of Belville 
City of Boiling Spring Lakes 
Town of Bolivia 
Town of Calabash 
Town of Carolina Shores 
Town of Caswell Beach 
Town ofHolden Beach 
Town of Leland 
Town ofNavassa 
City ofNorthwest 
Town of Oak Island 
Town of Ocean Isle Beach 
Town of Sandy Creek 
Town of Shallotte 
Town of St. James Plantation 
City of Southport 
Town of Sunset Beach 
Town of Varnamtown 

Other Districts: (3) 
North Brunswick Sanitary District 
Southeastern Brunswick Sanitary District 
Smithville Township 

Notes: 

$ 0.4425 

0.5910 
0.6718 
0.6416 
0.0683 
0.1700 
0.0500 
0.0875 
0.1016 
0.1700 
0.1270 
0.1515 
0.2000 
0.2 100 
0.2750 
0.1300 
0.3000 
0.3500 
0.0500 
0.2456 
0.1050 
0.0500 

na 
0.0000 
0.0400 

$ 

( I) Propt:rty was revalued in January 2003, January 2007 and January 20 l l. 

2012 

0.4425 

0.59 10 
0.6718 
0.64 16 
0.0683 
0.1700 
0.0500 
0.0875 
0.1016 
0.1700 
0. 1270 
0.1 515 
0.2000 
0.2100 
0.2750 
0.1300 
0.3000 
0.3500 
0.0500 
0.2456 
0.1050 
0.0500 

na 
0.0000 
0.0400 

$ 

201 J 

0.3050 

0.3275 
0.3825 
0.3625 
0.0683 
0. 1200 
0.0500 
0.0700 
0.0800 
0.1300 
0.0690 
0.1166 
0.2000 
0.1900 
0.1550 
0.0900 
0.3000 
0.2700 
0.0500 
0.1800 
0.0900 
0.0500 

na 
0.0000 
0.0225 

$ 

(2) The property tax rates for each of the governments listed above are based on unit-wide tax rates. For each 
government, certain motor vehicles were taxed at the preceding year's rate. 

(3) The North Brunswick Sanitary District has not enacted property taxes as of June 30, 2013. 
The Smithville Townsbjp is a hospital district. The levy collected is specific for debt retirement and 
capital improvements. 

(4) Municipal Service Districts created to fund beach re-nourishment. 

Source: Brunswick County Tax Department. 
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2010 

0.3050 

0.2700 
0.3100 
0.2900 
0.0911 
0.1200 
0.0500 
0.0700 
0.0800 
0.1300 
0.0690 
0.1166 
0.2000 
0 1700 
0.1400 
0.0900 
0.3000 
0.2700 
0.0500 
0.1 800 
0.0900 
0.0500 

na 
0.0000 
0.0225 



Table 7 

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 

$ 0.3050 $ 0.3050 $ 0.5400 $ 0.5400 $ 0.5400 $ 0.5200 

0.2600 0.2600 0.4650 0.4650 0.4650 0.4650 

* * * * * * 
* * * * * * 
0.091 1 0.09 11 0.1500 0.1500 0.1500 0.1500 
0.1200 0.1200 0.2500 0.2500 0.2500 0.2500 
0.0500 0.0500 0.0600 0.0600 0.0600 0.0600 
0.0700 0.0700 0.1000 0. 1000 0.1000 0 . .1 000 
0.0800 0.0800 0.0800 0.0800 0.0800 0.0800 
0.1500 0.1500 0.2200 0.2100 0.2200 0.2 100 
0.0690 0.0690 0. 1800 0.1800 0. 1800 0. 1800 
0. 1166 0.1166 0.1800 0.1800 0.1800 0.1800 
0.2000 0.2000 0.2700 0.2700 0.2700 0.2500 
0. 1700 0.1500 0.2000 0.2000 0.2000 0.2000 
0.1400 0.1245 0.3300 0.3300 0.3500 0.3650 
0.0900 0.0800 0.1400 0.1400 0.1500 0.1600 
0.3000 0.3000 0.3500 0.3500 0.3500 0.3500 
0.2700 0.2700 0.3200 0.3200 0.2900 0.2900 
0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0700 
0.1800 0.1500 0.2700 0.2700 0.3000 0.3300 
0.0900 0.1150 0. 1450 0.1300 0. 1300 0. 1200 
0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 

oa na oa na na na 
0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 
0.0225 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

Principal Proper ly Taxpayers 
Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

Taxpayer 

Duke Energy (formerly Progress Energy Carolinas, lnc.) 
N. C Fnstem Municipal Power Agency 
Brunswick Electric Membership Corp. 
DAK of America. LLC 
Archer Daniels Midland Company 
Bald Head Island Ltd 
Funston Land & Timber LLC 
Red Mountain Timberco LLC 
Wal-Mart Real Estate Bus iness Trust 
Andrew Bolnick Trustee 
Sea Trail Corporation 
Odell Williamson 
MAS Properties LLC 
Ocean Grand LLC 

Totals 

Suurce Bmnsv.;ck County Tax Department 

Type of 
Business 

Utility s 
Chemicals 
Utility 
Utility 
Chemicals 
Developer 
Timber 
Forestry 
Retail 
Developer 
Developer 
Developer 
Developer 
Developer 

$ 

Fi cal Year 2013 

Percentage 
20 12 of T otal 

Assessed Assessed 
Valuation Rank Valuation 

934, 128,814 I 3.80% 
184.838. 192 2 0.75% 
180.93 1,073 3 0.74% 
173,827.797 4 0.71 % 
131.391,864 5 0.53% 
128. 132,88 1 6 0.52% 
11 0,295,367 7 0.45% 
92,465,763 8 0.38% 
85,63 1,412 9 0.35% 
56.111 .4 12 10 0.23% 

n/a n/a n/a 
n/a n/a n/a 
n/a nla nla 
n/a n/a n/a 

2.077,754,575 8.45% 
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Table 8 

F iscal Year 2004 

Percentage 
2003 of Total 

Assessed Assessed 
Valuation Ra nk Valuation 

$ 864.758,916 I 8.09% 
132,520,368 3 1.24% 
181,963.869 2 1.70% 
I 03,480,622 4 0.97% 
92,303.643 6 0.86% 
99,170,070 5 0.93% 

n/a n/a n/a 
n/a n/a n/a 
n/a n/a n/a 
n/a n/a n/a 

45,606,640 7 0.43% 
42,308,290 8 0.40% 
30.426,490 9 028% 
25,151,300 10 0.24% 

s I ,617.690,208 15.14% 



COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA Table 9 

Property Tax Levies and Collections - Genera l Fund 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Collection Ratio of Ratio of 
Year Within Percent Collections in Tota l Tax O utsta nding Delinquent 

Ended Total Net Fiscal Year of Levy Subsequent Total Tax CoJJections Delinquent Taxes to 
June 30 Tax Levy of Levy Collected Years Collections to Tax Levy Taxes Tax Levy 

2004 67, 177,740 64,507,758 96.03% 2,554,569 67,062,327 99.8% 115,4 13 0.2% 
2005 72,980,743 70,81 0,206 97.03% 2,052,990 72,863,196 99.8% 117,547 0.2% 
2006 77,993,000 75,874,328 97.28% 1,965,717 77,840,045 99.8% 152,955 0.2% 
2007 83,653,779 81 ,622,970 97.57% I ,831,375 83,454,345 99.8% 199,434 0.2% 
2008 96,591,590 94,153,697 97.48% 2,205,066 96,358,763 99.8% 232,827 0.2% 
2009 I 00,905,188 96,284,992 95.42% 4,098,772 100,383,764 99.5% 52 1,424 0.5% 
20 10 10 1,769,536 96,713,452 95.03% 3,853,4 19 100,566,87 1 98.8% 1,202,665 1.2% 
2011 I 02,495,067 96,734,004 94.38% 3,593,453 I 00,327,457 97.9% 2,167,610 2. 1% 
20 12 107,167,357 101,52 1,399 94.73% 2.558,658 I 04,080,057 97.1% 3,087,300 2.9% 
20 13 109,045,695 103,03 1,401 94.48% I 03,03 1,40 I 94.5% 6,014,294 5.5% 

Note: This schedule includes data from only the General Fund countywide property tax levy. 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Governmental Activ ities 
Year General Limited 

Ended Obligation Obligation 
June 30 Bonded Bonded 

2004 80,818,576 25,075,000 
2005 81 ,484,694 23,935,000 
2006 77,290,352 21,865,000 
2007 73,080,454 19,755,000 
2008 97,465,000 17,625,000 
2009 91,020,000 16,355,000 
2010 84,560,000 15,080,000 
20 11 77,850,000 13,685,000 
2012 70,240,000 39,405,000 
2013 63,915,000 36,240,000 

Installment 
Loans 

1, 132,453 
285,687 

1, 185,359 
983,650 

36,053,592 
34, 152, 136 
33,060,608 
3 1.065,833 

575,000 
500,000 

Notes: Details regarding the county's outstanding debt can be found in the notes 
to the financial statements. 

( I) State Data Center; projection as of June 30,20 13; annual estimates previous 
nine years 
(2) Bureau of Economic Analysis; amounts are for prior calendar year 
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Table 10 

(2) 
Business-Type Activities Ratio 

General Limited SRF Debt & Total Debt to (1) 
Obligation Obligation Revenue Installment Primary Personal Per 

Bonded Bonded Bonds Loans Government Income Capita 

36,016,424 1,945,689 144,988, 142 7.9% 1,713 
2,525,306 39,447,389 25,622,555 J 73,300,63 I 8.9% 1,947 
1,754,648 32,779,3 19 36,502,809 17 1,377,487 7.8% 1,816 
1,009,546 38,084,416 34,223,830 167,136,896 6.8% 1,696 

295,000 89,757,733 32,468,604 273,664,929 8.8% 2,676 
87, 192,068 30,693,306 259,412,5 10 7.6% 2,465 

4,342,000 84,523,497 44, 131,98 1 265,698,086 7.9% 2,459 
4,285,000 I 07, I 00,902 43,925,5 18 277,912,253 8.0% 2,523 
3,790,000 102,529, 141 50,565,728 267, I 04,869 7.3% 2,380 
3,760,000 97,936,222 52,895,869 255,247,091 nla 2,222 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and 
Net General Obligation Bonded Debt per Capita 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Gross Less Debt Net 
Fiscal Genera l Payable General 
Year Assessed Obligation from Obligation 

Ended Value Bonded Enterprise Bonded 
June 30 (000 omitted) Debt Fund Debt 

2004 12,907,4 10 85,295,000 4,476,425 80,818,575 
2005 13,567,699 84,010,000 2,525,306 81 ,484,694 
2006 14,490,2 11 79,045,000 1,754,648 77,290,352 
2007 15,525,054 74,090,000 1,009,546 73,080,454 
2008 31,424,537 97,760,000 295,000 97,465,000 
2009 33,085,217 91,020,000 91,020,000 
2010 33,546,600 88,902,000 4,342,000 84,560,000 
20 11 33,608,476 82,135,000 4,285,000 77,850,000 
20 12 24,279,583 74,030,000 3,790,000 70,240,000 
2013 24,598,580 67,675,000 3,760,000 63,915,000 

Notes: 

Ratio 
Net General 
Obligation 

Bonded Debt to 
Assessed 

Value 

0.6% 
0.6% 
0.5% 
0.5% 
0.3% 
0.3% 
0.3% 
0.2% 
0.3% 
0.3% 

( I ) State Data Center; projection as of June 30, 20 13; annual estimates previous nine years 
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Table 1 J 

et General 
Obligation 

Bonded 
Debt 

( J) per 
Population Capita 

84,653 954.70 
89,009 9 15.47 
94,350 8 19.19 
98,557 741 .50 

102,275 952.97 
105,226 865.00 
108,07 1 782.45 
110,140 706.83 
11 2,2 10 625.97 
114,882 556.35 



COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

Direct and Underlying Governmental Activities Debt 
General Obligation Bonds 
June 30, 20 13 

Direct: 
Brunswick County 

Underlying Debt: 
Village of Bald Head Island 
City of Navassa 
City ofNorthwest 
Town of Sandy Creek 
City of Southport 
Smithville Township 
Southeast Brunswick Sanitary District 

Total Underlying Debt 

Tota l Direct and Underlying Debt 

$ 

$ 

General 
Obligation 

Bonded Debt 

67,675,000 

6,135,546 

607,000 
268,000 

13,500 
8,220,000 

965,000 

16,209,046 

83,884,046 

Percent 
Applicable 
To County 

100% $ 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

s 

Table 12 

Amount 
Applicable 
To County 

67,675,000 

6, 135,546 

607,000 
268,000 

13,500 
8,220,000 

965,000 

16,209,046 

83.884.046 

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the County 
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the 
residents and businesses of Brunswick County. This process recognizes that, when considering the government's 
ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken 
into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for 
repaying the debt, of each overlapping government. 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

Legal Debt Margin Information 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Debt limit 

Total net debt applicable to limit 

Legal margin 

Total net debt applicable to the limit 
as a percentage of debt limit 

$ 

$ 

2004 

I ,032,592,800 $ 

I 07.026,029 

925,566,771 $ 

10.4% 
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Fiscal Year 

2005 2006 2007 

I ,085,41 5,887 $ 1,159,2 16,908 $ I ,242,004,397 

105,705,3 81 99,155,352 94,828,650 

979,710,506 $ I ,060,061 ,556 $ 1,147, 175,747 

9.7% 8.6% 7.6% 



Table 13 

Fiscal Year 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

$2,5 I 3,962,929 $ 2,646,817,34 I $2,683,728,040 $2,688,678,046 $1,942,366,601 $ 1,967,886,412 

151 ,143,592 141 ,527, 136 137,042,608 126,885,833 I I 4,0 I 0,000 104,4 15,000 

$2,362,819,337 $2,505,290,205 $2,546,685,432 $2,561 ,792,213 $1,828,356,601 $ 1,863,471,412 

6.0% 5.3% 5.1% 

Calculation of Legal Debt Margin for Fiscal Year 2013: 

Assessed value of taxable property 

Debt limit- 8 percent of assessed value 

Gross debt: 
Total bonded debt 
Total limited obligation bonds 
Total installment purchases 

Gross debt 

4 .7% 

Less: Water and wastewater revenue bonds & installment purchases 

Total amount of debt applicable to debt limit (net debt) 

Legal debt margin 

5.9% 5.3% 

$24,598,580, 150 
X 0.08 

1,967,886,4 12 

165,61 1,222 
36,240,000 
53,395,869 

255,24 7,09 1 
150,832,091 

I 04,4 15,000 

$ 1,863,471 ,412 

Note: Under State finance law, Brunsw ick County's outstanding general obligation debt should not 
exceed 8 percent of total assessed property value. By law, the general obligation debt subject to the limitation 
may be offset by amounts set aside for repaying general obligation bonds. 
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CO NT\' OF BR NSWTCK. NORTH CAROLINA 

Pledged-Revenue Coverage 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Net Coverage: 

Enttrllrise funds 
Olleratin~: 

Fiscal Ex11cnses 
Year Olleratin~: Excludin~: 

Ended Revenue Plus OPEB ~et of 
.June 30 Interest De11reciation} 

2004 15,17 1,542 8,880,099 
2005 17,684,946 9,656,725 
2006 25,686,926 10.054,792 
2007 32,99 1,33 1 15,095,168 
2008 33,748.828 15.774,804 
2009 3 1,013,129 15,775,304 
20 10 29,990,7 12 17,063,506 
20 11 41 ,543,785 16,909,934 
2012 38,345.293 17,030,681 
2013 62,37 1,539 18,2 10,82 1 

Required Coverage: 

Fiscal 

Net 
Available 
Revenue 

6,29 1,443 
8,028,221 

15,632. 134 
17.896. 163 
17.974,024 
15,237,825 
12.927,206 
24,633,851 
2 1,3 14,6 12 
44.160.7 18 

All Enterprise Fund Debt Ser vice Enterprise Fund Par i tv Debt ervice 

Principal Interest Total Princillal Interest Tota l 

2,980,475 356,550 3,337,025 
2.376,969 1,405.014 3.78 1,983 2 17.611 285,6 17 503.228 
1,457,752 2.833,230 4.290.982 273,069 1,87 1,606 2, 144.675 
3,557.232 2.951 ,486 6,508.718 1,089,903 1,859,771 2,949,674 
3,553,881 2,657,87 1 6,21 1,752 1,126,683 1.823.84 1 2,950,524 
4,635,963 2.530.870 7, 166,833 2,565,666 1.782,885 4,348.55 1 
4.644,997 4,0 17,764 8,662,76 1 2,668,571 3.306, 11 6 5,974.687 
5,057,980 5,459,336 10,5 17.3 16 3.232.594 4,6 18.438 7,85 1,032 
6.571 ,550 8,60 1,653 15,173.203 4,683,761 7,852,928 12,536,689 
8.620.528 6,148.3 5I 14,768,879 6.255,074 5,444.209 11.699,283 

\'ear et 20% T otal Pa rity 20% Parity o' era~:,c 

Ended AvHilablc Unrestricted Debt Debt Debt 100% 120% 
.June 30 Revenue Net positon Service Service Ser vice Parity Pari tv 

2006 $ 15,632,134 $ 4.43 1,840 $ 4.290.982 $ 2,144,675 $ 428.935 3.64 4.25 
2007 17,896, 163 4. 77 1.794 6,508,7 18 2.949.67-t 589.935 2.75 3. 19 
2008 17,974.024 6.834.562 6,2 11,752 2,950,524 590, 105 2.89 3.65 
2009 15,237,825 5.427.576 7.166,833 4,348,551 869.710 2.13 2.57 
20 10 12,927,206 4,452,242 8.662,761 5.974,687 1.1 94.937 1.49 1.76 
20 11 24,633,85 1 6.347,304 10,5 17,3 16 7.85 1.032 1,570.206 2 34 2 .56 
20 12 2 1,3 14.612 7,062,297 15,173,203 12.536.689 2.507.338 1.40 1.60 
2013 44,160,7 18 10,767.443 14,768.879 12,127. 116 2.425.423 2 .99 3. 19 

Notes: 
( I) Water and Wastewater Revenues include investment earnings. 
(2) Operating expenses are exclusive ofOPEB and net of depreciation and mterest expense. 
(3) All water and wasle\\ater debt service includes interest and principal of General Obligation Bonds, Revenue Bonds, State loans and 

other instal lment debt. 
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Table U 

Net 
Covera~:e 

1.89 
212 
3.64 
2.75 
2.89 
2.13 
1.49 
2.34 
1.40 
2.99 



COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

Demographic Stat istics 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended ( I) 

(2) (2) 
Personal Per 
income Capita 

(I) (3) 
Median School 

June 30 Po~ulation {in thousands~ Income Age Enrollment 
2004 84,653 1,829,637 21 ,6 13 43.6 
2005 89,009 1,942,639 21 ,825 43.9 
2006 94,350 2,195,457 23,269 44. 1 
2007 98,557 2,440,703 24,764 44.7 
2008 102,275 3, 101,372 30,324 45.0 
2009 105,226 3,394,034 32,255 47.7 
20 10 108,071 3,347,269 30,973 47.7 
20 11 110,140 3,482,031 3 1,615 48.0 
20 12 112,210 3,674,444 32,746 48.4 
20 13 114,882 not available not available 48.8 

Notes: 
(I) State Data Center; projection as of June 30, 20 13; annual estimates previous nine years 
(2) Bureau of Economic Analysis; figures are for prior calendar year 
(3) Brunswick County School System (20th day ADM) 
(4) North Carolina Employment Security Commission 
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10,528 
10,789 
11 ,133 
11 ,505 
11 ,599 
11 ,841 
11 ,739 
11 ,899 
11 ,957 
12, 125 

Table 15 

(4) 
Unemployment 

R ate 
6.4% 
5.0% 
4.1% 
4.7% 
6.1% 

11 .0% 
10.2% 
103% 
10.8% 
9.8% 



COUNTY OF BR NSWJC K, NORTH CAROLINA T a ble 16 

Principal Employers 
Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

Fiscal Year 2013 Fiscal Year 200-1 
% % 

Total Total 
Type of County County 

arne of Employer Business Employees Ra nk Employment Employees Ra nk Employment 

Brunswick County Board of Education Education 1,933 I 3.77% 1,600 I 4.07% 
County of8runsw1ck Local Government 1,0 19 2 1.99% 900 3 2.29% 
Wal-Mart Associates Inc. Retail Chain 883 3 1 72% n/a nla nla 
Duke Energy (Formerly Progress Energy) Utility 865 4 1.69% 1,050 2 2.67% 
Brunswick Community College Education 5 17 9 1.01% nla nla nla 
Brunswick Novant Medical Medical Care Facility 500 6 0.98% 300 5 0.76% 
Food Lion LLC Grocery Chain 455 5 0.89% n/a nla nla 
OAK Americas Dacron Polyester Fiber 365 7 0.7 1% 750 4 L.91% 
Dosher Memorial Hospital Med•cal Care Facility 364 8 0.7 1% 260 7 0.66% 
Liberty Health care Group Tradeffransportation 285 10 0.56% n/a nla nla 
Sunny Point Military Terminal Military nla n/a nla 225 9 0.57% 
Rampage Yacht Manufacture nla n/a n/a 275 6 0.70% 
Victaulic Company of America Pipe Finings & Seals n!a nla n/a 250 8 0.64% 
Archer Daniels MjdJand Company Citric Acid n/a n/a nla ISO 10 0 

Totals 7. 186 14.03°o 5,760 14.64% 

Sourcl! NC Employment Security Commission: total county employment 
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COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK, NORTH CAROLINA 

Full-time Equivalent Coun ty Government E mployees by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2004 2005 2006 

Function: 
General government 84 87 98 
Public safety 20 1 221 224 
Central services 80 79 83 
Human services 253 234 264 
Environmental protection 9 10 12 
Cultural and recreation 39 44 45 
Economic and physicaJ development 42 33 30 
Utmties 66 78 86 

Total 774 786 842 

Source: County Finance Department 

Fiscal Year 

2007 2008 2009 

105.5 111.5 110.5 
275 340 340 

88 94 94 
244 253 244 

10 9 9 
45 46 46 
37 41 4 1 

98.5 109.5 109.5 

903 ~ 994 

Note: This schedule represents the number of approved permanent FTE's as of June 30. 2013. 
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Table 17 

2010 2011 2012 2013 

106.5 104.5 100.5 95.5 
340 336 338 339 

93 91 90 78 
232 230 220 2 18 

9 8 8 8 
46 42 39 39 
37 34 32 32 

116.5 115.5 117.5 118.5 

980 961 945 928 



C O UNTY OF BRL SWIC K. 'ORTH CAROLINA Table I ll 

Operating Indicators by Function/Program 
Last Nine F1scal Years 

Fisca I \'ear 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 20 11 20 12 2013 

General Go•emment 
Number of registered voters 58,222 61,9~2 65,71 I 69,930 74.096 75.815 77.204 79,635 81,954 
Number of maniage hcenses ISsued 752 901 975 ~7 824 875 927 1,0 14 864 
Number of tax bills 1ssued n/a n/a n/a n/a 258,9 11 258,839 261.533 260,676 252,480 

Law enforcement: 
Civil papers issued 9,278 9,025 7,761 9.312 9,921 17,570 11 ,552 9.040 8,863 

Offenses reported 10,026 9.977 8,956 10,070 10,663 15,054 2 1,630 15,3 15 5,~76 

Unifonn mileage 1,501 ,832 1,80 1,864 2,092,423 2, 159,680 2,526,651 2,295,43 1 2,227,127 2,411 ,854 2, 13 1,207 

Emergency Services: 
Fire Protection: 
Number of calls answered 7 0 18 7,893 8 ,879 9,323 9,742 10,168 10,879 10,761 12,364 
Number of inspecuons conducted 1,224 1,272 1,424 1,310 1.482 1,024 95 1 854 1,009 

Emergency Medical Sernces: 
Number of calls answered 10,049 12,053 13,175 13,371 13,367 13,503 13,595 14,489 17.2 14 
Number oftranspons 4.389 6,202 7,185 8,212 7,859 8,049 8,068 8,678 11 ,269 

Code enforcementlbuildmg penmts: 
Number of code vio lations 119 199 181 126 ~14 4 18 423 421 1, 124 
N umber of building penn its: 

Smgle-family 3.268 3,905 2.84 1 1,722 974 1,050 9 16 1.038 1.517 
Commercial 280 41 0 5 16 463 365 260 340 438 226 

Culture and Recreauon 
Number of athletic fields rented 60 75 7 1 8 30 34 115 85 61 
Youth recrea11on: 

Cen itied coaches 665 695 705 1.001 16 1 242 245 199 105 
Spon s teams 46 49 b l 62 69 81 98 100 103 
Participants 675 735 '175 ':IM I l , ll 'J 1,21'5 2,466 3,30b 3,330 

Adult recreation· 
SportS teams 4 1 45 49 53 86 48 63 57 55 
Participants 640 700 790 800 1,700 1,886 1,744 3,678 3.700 

Fitness program participants 1, 195 1,250 1,475 1,525 4.153 1,165 1,500 2,14 1 2.201 
Library system total c1rculauon 414,963 439,838 479.509 501,047 549.929 555,6 14 537,085 54 1,305 547,559 

Solid waste: 
Waste received (Ions per I ,000 populauon ) ),995 2.078 1,654 1.337 1, 147 1.200 I. IOb 980 864 
Ratio of recyclable to tollll waste rece1ved S.4~1t 6.2% 5.s•. 5.0% 4.8~. 4.6% 59~. 6.8% 8,0% 

J'ublic Utilities: 
Water customers 19,'14'1 22,4 12 2R.270 2'1.955 30,675 33,2 15 33,770 34.394 34.984 
Water average daJiy treatment (10 gallons) 12,350,000 12,910,000 13,750,000 13,6-10,000 13,571,000 12,82 1,890 13,487.920 13,545,000 13,385,000 
Wastewater customers 5,017 6,24 1 7,565 8,378 8,622 9.125 9,647 10,475 12,142 
Wastewater average druly treatment ( in gallons) 1,210,000 1,322,000 2,080,000 2,253.000 1,584.000 2.6-14,752 3, 146,983 3,504.000 4.250,000 

Education 
Number of teocher.; 727 731 752 756 788 812 742 758 822 
Number of students 10,789 11.133 II ,505 11 ,599 11 ,841 11,739 11,899 ) 1,957 12. 125 
Number of chaner students 277 340 396 443 ~83 563 636 688 725 

Sources· Various govemmenl departments. 

Note. Data not collected pnor to 2005 
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COUNTY OF BRLI SWICK. ORTH CAROLINA 

Capital Asset Sta tis tics by Function/Program 
Last Nme Foscal Years 

Fiscal Year 
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 

Law enforcement 
Shenff stallons 13 13 13 13 14 
Deputy patrol umts 30 33 44 47 51 
Detention center capa.coty 196 196 196 440 440 

Emergency services: 
Rescue stations 14 8 8 9 9 
EMS vehicles 27 12 12 13 13 

Culture and recreational 
Community centers 7 7 7 7 7 
Parks 10 11 II 12 13 
Libranes (branches) 5 5 5 5 s 

Public Utihlles. 
Moles of water mains 570 00 642 727 79.5 839 
Ma.xomum daoly water capacity ( in gallons) 30,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000 30.000,000 
Moles of wastewater mains 90.3 238 299 360 403 
Maximum daily wastewater capacoty (in gallons) 3,050,000 4 ,650,000 6, 11 5,000 6,115,000 6, 115,000 

( I) Education: 
Number of schools 16 16 17 17 17 
Number of charter schools I I 
Commumty colleges 

Sources V;onous go~emment ckpanmcnt~. 

Note: Data not collected pnor to 2005 

(I) Educatoon capotal assets are owned by the Board of Education, Charter School and Commuooty College woth the exception of 
Town Creek Elementaty and Cedar G rove Middle Schools which are owned and capitalized by the county. 
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Table 19 

2010 201 I 2012 2013 

15 15 15 15 
5 1 51 51 5 1 

440 440 440 440 

9 9 9 9 
13 13 13 15 

7 7 7 7 
13 13 13 13 
.5 s 5 5 

919 949 969 980 
30.000,000 30,000.000 30.000,000 30,000,000 

473 500 539 559 
9,080,000 9.180,000 9,080.000 10,130,000 

19 19 19 19 
I I 
I I 
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MARTIN •!• STARNES 
& ASSOCIATES , CPAs . P.A. 

".-I Pm.f~sional Asso,·iarion of Centfied P11blic Accoumams ,md .\lanagemem C onslllf<llll~" 

Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance And Other 
Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance 

With Govemment Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Board of Commissioners 
Brunswick County 
Bolvia, North Carolina 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financ ial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Brunswick County, North Carolina, as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related Notes to the Financial Statements, which 
collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 22,2013 . The financial statements of the Brunswick Economic Development Commission and 
the Brunswick County Board of Alcoholic Contro l were not audited in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Brunswick County's 
internal control over financial reporting (interna l control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the fmancial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Brunswick County' s internal 
contro l. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Brunswick County' s internal 
control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a contro l does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement o f the entity 's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of defic iencies, in interna l control 
that is Jess severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all defic iencies in interna l control that might be material 
weaknesses or s ignificant deficiencies. Given these limitations during our audit, we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However. material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

730 13th Avenue Drive SE • Hickory, North Carolina 28602 + Phone 828-327-2727 • Fax 828-328-2324 
13 South Center Street • Taylorsville. North Carolina 2868 1 • Phone 828-632-9025 + Fax 828-632-9085 

Toll Free Both Locations 1-800-948-0585 + Website: www.martinstames.com 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Brunswick County's financial statements are 
free from materia l misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and; accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instance of non-compliance or other matters that is 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is so lely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide and opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P. A. 
Hickory, NC 
October 22, 201 3 
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MARTIN •!• STARNES 
& AS SOCIATE S, CPAs, P.A. 

''.-! ProfessTonal.4ssoL'Talion ojCerrified Public .-J.ccoumams a11d .\lmwgemcnr Consn!ltlllls" 

Report On Compliance For Each Major Federal Program; Report On Internal Control 
Over Compliance; In accordance With OMB Circular A-133; 

And The State Single Audit Implementation Act 

Board of Commissioners 
Brunswick County 
Bolvia, North Caro lina 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Report On Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Brunswick County's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in 
the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in 
North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of Brunswick County's maj or Federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. 
Brunswick County' s major Federal programs are identified in the summary of audi tors' results section of 
the accompanying Schedule of Findings, Responses, and Questioned Costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Brunswick County's major Federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A- 133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, as described in the Audit Manual for Governmental 
Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, OMB 
Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obta in reasonable assurance about whether non-compliance w ith the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a maj or Federal program occurred. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Brunswick County's comp liance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each maj or 
Federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Brunswick County' s 
compliance. 

730 13th Avenue Drive SE +Hickory, North Carolina 28602 + Phone 828-327-2727 + Fax 828-328-2324 
13 South Center Street+ Taylorsville, North Carolina 2868 1 • Phone 828-632-9025 + Fax 828-612-9085 

Toll Free Both Locations 1-800-948-0585 + Website: www.martinstames.com 
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Opinion On Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Brunswick County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major Federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2013. 

Report On Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Brunswick County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
contro l over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Brunswick County's internal control over compliance 
with the requirements that cou ld have a direct and material effect on a major Federal program in order to 
determine our auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinion on compliance for each major Federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Brunswick County' s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perforn1ing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, non-compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
Federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is 
reasonable possibility that material non-compliance with a type of compliance req uirement of a Federal 
program wi ll not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a Federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A. 
Hickory, NC 
October 22, 2013 
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Report On Compliance For Each Major State Program; Report On Internal Control 
Over Compliance; In accordance With OMB Circular A-133; 

And The State Single Audit Implementation Act 

Board of Commissioners 
Brunswick County 
Bolvia, North Carolina 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Report On Compliance for Each Major State Program 

We have audited Brunswick County's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in 
the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government 
Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of Brunswick County's major State 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. Brunswick County' s major State programs are identified in 
the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings, Responses, and 
Questioned Costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its state programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compl iance for each of Brunswick County's major State 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and in applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, as described in the Audit Manual for 
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those 
standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether non-compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major State 
program occurred. An aud it includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Brunswick County's 
compliance with those requirements and perfonning such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major State 
program. However, our audit does not provide a lega l determination of Bnmswick County's compliance. 

730 13th Avenue Drive SE +Hickory, North Carolina 28602 +Phone 828-327-2727 t Fax 828-328-2324 
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Opinion On Each Major State Program 

In our opinion, Brunswick County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major State programs for the year ended 
June 30,2013. 

Report On Internal Control Over Compljance 

Management of Brunswick County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Brunswick County's internal control over compliance 
with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program in order to 
determine our auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinion on compliance for each major State program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Brunswick County's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, non-compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
State program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is reasonable 
possibility that material non-compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal conh·ol 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internaJ control over compliance 
with a type of compliance requirement of a State program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in intemaJ control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
OMB Circular A-1 33. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A. 
Hickory, NC 
October 22, 2013 
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BRUNSWICK COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS, RESPONSES, AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

1. Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued 

Internal control over fmancial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 

Significant deficiency(s) identified that 
are not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Non-compliance material to fmancial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major Federal programs: 

Material weakness (es) identified? 

Significant deficiency(s) identified that 
are not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance 
for major federal programs 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with Section 5 1 O(a) 
ofOMB Circular A-133? 

Identification of major Federal programs: 

Federal Program 

Medicaid Cluster 

Child Care Development Fund Cluster 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type B Programs 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

138 

Unmodified 

No 

None reported 

No 

No 

None reported 

Unmodified 

No 

CFDANumbcr 

93.778, 93.777, 93.775, 93.720 
93.575, 93.596 

$2 773 886 

N o 



BRUNSWICK COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS, RESPONSES, AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

1. Summary of Auditor's Results (continued) 

State Awards 

Jntemal control over major state programs: 

Material weakness (es) identified? 

Significant deficiency(s) identified that 
are not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance 
for major federal programs 

Any audit fmdings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with the State Single 
Audit Implementation Act? 

Identification of major State programs: 

State Aid to Airports 

Medicaid Cluster 

Subsidized Child Care Cluster 

I.W 

No 

None reported 

Unmodifie~ 

No 



BRUNSWICK COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS, RESPONSES, AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

2. Financial Statements Findings 

None reported 

3. Federal Award Findings, Responses, and Questioned Costs 

None reported 

4. State Award Findings, Responses, and Questioned Costs 

None reported 
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None 

BRUNSWICK COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

SUMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR'S AUDIT FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 



COU'ITY OF BRU;'<S\\ ICK. 'ORTII CAHOLINA 
C II EOULEOFEXPt: OlfLRESOFF'EOERALA 0 fATEA\\ARDS 

FOR TilE YEAR ENDED JU'\E 30. 2013 

Grantor/Pas,..through 
G rantor1J'mgram Title 

~ederal A"ards: 
U S Department of AlllJCul!u~ 

Rural Dcvclopmc:ntllow.mg P~rvauoo Grant 
Passed-through N.C' Dcpann>ent of Health and Hwnan ScMCes 

DlviSIOD of Social Scrv1ces. 
SNAP Cluster 

Supplemental Nutntion Assistance Program Admm!StraliOn 
Supplemental Nutntion Assistance Program E& T & Depend 
Supplemen~,l Nulntion A51l1Stancc Fraud Admmislr.ltion 

Total SNAP Cluster: 

DIVISIOn of PubliC Health 
AdmmiStrallon 

Spec~al Supplement Nutnllon Program for Won~n. 
lnfunts and Child~n 

Direct Benefit l'aymen!l. 
Special Supplemc:ntal food l'rogram for Women. 
Infants and C'llll~n 

Fo=t Serv1ce Schools and Road Cluster 
Schools and Roads. Grants to Counues 

Tollll Fo~t Sen-1Ce Schools and Road C!Ul>tcr 

rotall S Department of N;ncult= 

Dmanment oflmeoor 
B~u of Land MaMgernent 

Paymeru in Lieu ofT axes 

U S Deoarunenr of Ilea lUI and tluman Sen ices 
Admm!Slrai!On Og Aging 

Pas.ed-through Cape Fear Coune1l of Governments 
Passed·lhrough Brunswtcl. Senior Rc:soun:es 

Aging Clu<rer 
llome and Conunuml)- Care Blocr.. Grnnt 

Total Agmg Cluster 

Adminsltral!Qn for Children and raoul~ 

Passed·lhrough the N (' Department of Heahll and llumrtn Scrv•cc~ 

Dtvis1on of Social Serv.ces 
Pbysteal Acnvuy and Obes1ty rrP 80", 
1 cmoorarv Assistance for Ne..'lly [am1lies !TAND ( lu~Jcr 

TetDporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANI) 
Worl First AdmiO!SlratJon 
Work rirst ServiCe 
Special Chlld~n AdopLIOn-Di=t Beoefit Paymenll> 
TanfPayments and Penaltics·Dtreel Benefit Paym:n!s 

Total 1 ANr Cluster 

Uw1S1on ofSoc~al Serv1ucs 
Family Preservation 
IV-0 Administrntion 
low Income Home Energy Ass1stan<:c 
Low Income Energy Administrnuon 
CriSis ln.t~rvenuon Pa)mcn~' 
Pcrmaneocy PLannmg- pec1al 
Social Services Block Grant 
S~BG Other Serv~ees and Traming 
In-Home Servtces over b() 

In-Home ServiCes 
Lmks 

tate 
Federal Pass- through 
CFOA Grllotor's 

Number ------~~~u~n~lb~e~r ______ _ 

10.411 

10.561 
10.561 

10.561 

10 557 

10.557 

10.666 

15.226 

9J 54R 

93.558 
93.558 
93.55b 
9l 558 
93558 

93.556 
93 56J 
93.568 
'l3.568 
93.568 
93.645 
93.667 
93.667 
93.667 
93.667 
93.674 

2012 
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Fed. (Dirttt & 
Pass-through 
EJpendltures 

State 
ETpendilureJ 

s 55.200 s 

656.008 
13 

32.266 

688.287 

1.9H878 

10.757 

10.757 

19.6'4 

6,1)17 
103.050 
553.144 

10.000 
551.280 

1.244.09 1 

6.246 
956.728 
249.023 
75~'51 

561%2 
40.74l 

1!14,549 
6.009 
1,81.)() 

9,484 

(81) 

(81) 

1.69R 
500 

19.561 

2,371 



CO NTY OF DRL NS\\ ICK. ORTII CAROUM 
SCIIED LE 0 1· EXPENDIT URES OF FEDERAL AND STATE A WARDS 

FOR TilE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2013 

Grantor /Pass-through 
Crn!JorlProeram DUe 

Federal Awards: 
Eoster Care and Adoption Cluster: (Note 4 l 

Administration 
IV-E Adoption 
IV-E Adoption Training 
IV -E Adoption Ofl'Training 
IV-E Optional Adoption Traimng 
IV-E Adntin Foster Care 
IV-E Child Protective So,..iccs 
IV-E Foster Care Training 
IV-E Foster Care/Ofl'Training 
DUectBenefitPa~n~ 

IV-E Adoption Subsid} nod Vendor Payment 
Retro Adoption and Vendor Pa~nt 
TV-E Adntinistration County Paid to CCI 
IV-E Family Foster Care 
IV-E Foster Care 
IV-E Foster Care In Execs. 
IV-E Max Level Ill 
Foster Care 

TomJ Foster Care and Adoptton Cluster 

O.rect Benefit Payments 
Independent Living Transisrional 
AFDC Unemployed Parents 

Admjmstronon of Chtldren and Famtljes 
Passed-through lbe N.C Department of Heal~t and I Iuman Services 

Subsidtzed Child Care !Note 41 
Child Care Development fund Cluster 
Division of Social Services 

Child Care Development Fund-Administration 
Division of Child Development 

Child Care and Development Fund - DiscreUOnBI) 
Child Care and Development Fund- Mandatory 
Child Care and Development fund - Match 

Total Child C.are Fund Cluster 

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 
Social Security Block Grant 
Foster Care Title TV-E 
Sman Stan 
State Approprtauons 
TANF-MOE 

Total Subsidized Cluld Care Cluster 

Centers for Medicare and Medu:atd Seryjces 
Passed-through the N C Department of Health and Human Servtce' 

Divi!ion of Medical Assistance 
Medicaid Cluster: 
Admioistrauon: 

Adult Care I lome Case Management Special 
Medical Assislance Expansion 
Medical Assislancc Adrm01stration 
Med.ical Transportation Admuustralion 
Medical Transponation Service 

DtrectBenefitPaymcn~ 

Tille XIX Medicaid 
Total Medicaid Cluster 

Children's llcallh Insurance Progrnm-N.C llcallh Choke 

Cemers for D1sease Control and Prevention 
Passed-through the N.C. Deparunent of llealth and lluman Services 

Division of Public Health 
lmmunLn!tioo Grants 

tate 
Federal Pus-through 
C F'DA G riU1tor's 
~umber ___ __,N:..:'u"'m,bc=r ___ _ 

93.659 
93.659 
93.659 
93.659 
93.658 
9J.658 
93.658 
93.658 

93.659 
93 659 
93.658 
93.658 
93658 
93.658 
93.658 
93.658 

93.674 
93.560 

93.596 

93.575 
9l596 
93 5<l6 

93 558 
93.667 
9165R 

93.778 
'13.778 
93.778 
93.778 
93.778 

93.778 

93 767 

9U()S 
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Fed . (Oir~t & 
Pass-tllrougb 
Expenditures 

5.202 
3.201 

10.635 
19,076 

715 
1~3.522 

5.655 
346.272 

664.884 

156.297 
1.717 

228.33 1 
5.137 
9.540 

77.610 

1.677. 794 

5.257 
148) 

161,027 

1.202.715 
527.054 
576.862 

2.467.658 

698.802 
5.939 

28.464 

3.200.863 

34.521 
17.863 

I 122.871 
132.252 

15,941 

72.643.867 

73.967.315 

62 976 

17.485 

State 
Expenditures 

17.624 

18,917 

176.593 
(706) 

78.148 

60.246 
1,354 

20.909 

403.115 

221.176 

221.176 

13.595 
57.934 

lb9,l07 
340.310 
802,322 

10.019 
17.863 

8.670 

40,285.173 

40.321.725 

4,045 



COL ;TV OF BRU'- \\ ICK. 'ORTII CAROLII'IA 
SC II EOIJLE OF EXPEl'IOITLRES OF FEDEIUL A!'.D STATE AWARD 

FOR TilE YEAR E rDEO JlJNI:. 30.2013 

Stale 
Federal Pass-thl'(lugh Fed. (Direcl &. 

Cranror/Pa.s-through C FDA Grantor',- Pass-rhrough . r:~re 

CrE!Ior/f~ Ti!lr Numhu 'lumber E11!endilures E•!!!:nditures 

Federal Awards: 
l'ublic Health Emergen.:y Prepan:dness ~3.069 55.094 
Pre•ention ln~e. llglllllllh and Technical Asststnnce 93.28' 2.9'14 
PPIIF 2012 Breast and CeiVIC31 Cancer Scrcenmg Opportumi>C> 
for Slate>. r nbcs and Tern tones solely flllilnced by 2012 
PrcveoiJOo and Public Health funds 93.744 \.000 
Comprchens.-e Breast and Cervical Cancer l:.arly 
Detection Program 93 919 34.701 2'1.07() 
Statewid~ llealth and Pmmollon Program 9l.99 1 9.417 

ll~allll B~llll<l:~ m!lll ~I:YI!;~ Admmr~llill•l!o 
Passed-through N.C Department of Health and Human Se.-tce> 

HRSA-H~alth Care and Other Faciliues 93.887 t /6111'20341 247,500 
D"tSion of Public Health 

State Health Access t•rogrnm 9.U56 4,399 
Maternal and Chtld Health l>~rvice5 Blocl.. Gram 93.99-1 105.359 79.02'1 

Office of Populatioo AtfaiD 
J>asscd-OlrOUglt N.C Department of lleaiOt and Humau ScMccs 

Divi.~ion of Public llcalth 
Family Plruuung Services 93.217 \4.911 

1 otal U.S Department of llcalth and Human Servtces l!' QM ZJtl 41 ~11:!Z 

U !:! l&llil!l!OO!I 2f l:l!!!l•ioK all!l Ud:!an [k);~l!mm~:m 
Hou•mg Voucber Clyster 

AdtrunLS!rntion 
!lousing Chotec Voucher Program 14.871 197.880 

Direct Benefits 

llous~ Choice Voucher Program 14.871 ___1.107.860 

Total Housing Voucher Cluster 2.305.740 
Passcd-Utrough North Caro!Ulll llousmg Finance Agency 

! lome Investment Partnershtps Program-SFR 20 II 14 239 2011 Smgle Famil) Rehab 10.nr 
Passed-U~n>ugh North Carolma ~panmc:ot o f( omrncrce 

CQBG-Sta~ AdmmtsJ~!l:!l COIKi Cl~l;r 
CDBG-2011 lnfrasiiUCrun:-Water lloolrup 14 228 8-10-IX'-'7-{l()()J 22512 

Total CDBG- tate Adnurustercd C'DBG Cluster 22.512 

Toea! L .S. Departtneot of llousmg and Urban Development 2.ws.5n 

U.S. Deoartmen) of JU>tire 
State Crimin:ll Alien Assistance Program 16.606 SC' i\AP 11.507 
JAG Program Cluster 

ARRA FY2009 Ed-.ard Oyme Memorial JAG Progrnm lb 7'8 2009-DJ-OX-1088 7.905 
Passed-through N ( DeJ"lrlnl<'nt of Pubtic Safety 

Pas>ed-lhrough Go' emor's Crime Comnuss10n 
l:d-.ard Byme Memorial JAG Program-Brunswk:l.. SOAR 16 ''~' 2012-DJ-BX-%40 7,741 

Passed-through N C Department of Pub1tc Safety 

Passed-through Dept of Ju,eruic Justtce and Dehnq~ncy Pre,cntiun 

ARRA Ganl,! Awarcne<~ & Education JAG Progr:tm 16.~03 61065 1 500 

Total JAG Program Cluster 11>.146 
Passed-through Governor's Come CommiSsion 

ARRA STOP Violence agatnst Women-Filltng UIC Gap 16.588 0J(). J~K-3VA-AW-J44 23.743 

I 0L1lll S Department of Juslke 51.396 

U.S Deoanmcnt 2f Homebnd Secunl\ 
Pas.ed-lhrough N C Department uf Public l>afety. 

D"tSIOn of Emergency Marogcment 
llazard 1\.1 ttigauon Grant 97.039 HM PG-DR-180 1-0006 20.817 6.9W 
E-tnergeO<.-y Management Performance Grant 97.042 2012 EMPG 17.500 17.500 
Lmergency 1\.tana~emenl Performance Gralll 97.042 2012 EMPG Supplemental 7.439 7.4W 
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2010- S-T0-0075-1167 36.Sil 
2009 Port Security Gr:utt Program-llehcoptcr FUR 97.056 2009-PU-T9-K038-7002 2 17.016 
2009 Port Security Grant Program-K9 Umt 97.056 2009-PU-T9-K03P003 41.475 
20()9 Port Secunty Grant Program-HLS Transfer Project 97 056 2009-PU- f'I-K038-7004 2\6,250 
2009 Port Secunty Grant Program-SR r Umt 97.051! 2009-Pll-T9-K038-7005 50,(.94 
2009 Port Sccunl)' Grant Program-Wilmmgton Port '17.056 2009-PU- f'I-KOJS-7012 15.000 
2009 Port ~ecunty Grant Program-800 M II.- RJidtO>. 97.056 2009-Pll- f'l-11:038-7016 187.644 

l oL~I ll !> Department of llomeland Secunl) X'034K 31.!178 
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COU n • OF BRLI\SWICK, 1\0tn II C AROLII\A 
SCiiEDULE OF EXPE{';DITIJRES OF FEDERAL AI\D STAn: A WARDS 

FOR TilE YEAR ENDED JU ' E 31), 2013 

Gr2ntor/Pass-1hrough 
!;:r!!!_\2r[fnl~am Tillf 

Fooeral A"ards: 
Pcoonmcnt of Irnns0011auoo 

Passed-through N C Pcpanment on mnsportation 
Hjghway SafelY Clu:.tcr 

GIISP-Highu) Safe!} Project 
GHSP-IIighway Safe!} Project 

Tutal llighway Safety Cluster 
Passed-through N C Depanmcnt ofTmnsportation 

Parallel Tax1wa)' Land Acqu1s1tlon 
Design and B1d Pnmllcl Runv. ay 
Construction Parallel Runwa) 
llow1e I rank lin field 

Passed-through N.C Depanment of Environment 
And Natuml Rrsources 

Highway PlaMjng and Constucuon Cluster 
Recreation Tnuls Grant-Brunswick Nature Pari< 

Total Highway Plannmg and Construcuon CIU>tcr 
l otal lJ S Depanment ofT mnspcmauoo 

U.S EnvttOruncnl31 Protection AI!CDC) 
P&>Sed-through N.C. Depann>n~t of Pcpanm.:nt of Emnronmenl 
and Natural Re"'IUU"Ces 

ARRA-CapuaiJLallOn Grant for Clean Water 
'>tate Revolvmg funds (note 5) 

I ntal U.S IJJY<ronmcntal Protecuon Agency 

U S DeoarlJDCDI pf Defense-AmJv Corps of Engmeep. 
MOM!Utto Control Pmje.:t (AIWW Contract) 
Mosqu1to Cotttrol Project (AIWW Contract) 

I otal U.S Depanmcnt of Defense 

I o13ll edcml AssiStance 

~Uitt Gran IS: 

N C Department g(Admm!StcaUon 
Veterart> S.,rv,.;c 

N C Rural &onomJC Dnelopmem Center Inc 
Bwkhng Reuse & Restomi.K>n Progrnm-lnpa!Jent ll<»pk:e Care Cent.:r 

N C Uow.mg Trust fund 
PB.>S<:d thru N C llousmg rmanc:e Agency 
U[I!Cnl Repa" Grant 
Urgent Repa" Grant 

N C Deparuucot of !icahh antlllullllln Sen JCe> 
OIYJSion of Social Sen ices 

AdmliiiStratlon 
Energy A.o;sist Pnvatc Gran!!> 
Stale County Spec1al As•istancc for Adults 

OtreCt Benefit Payments 
CWS Adopt Subsidy & Vendor 
fC At RISk Ma."ITI37.aUon 
SC SA Domiciliary Care 
Sfllf Maxuruauon 
State Foster Home 

0MSJt>n of Pub he llealth 
rood and Lodgmg rees 
Ut'<ttOnmental Health 
Mo,;quno-Pubh~ Health Pesucxle 
Geneml A1d to Counues 
General Commun~table Disease Conuol 
Ri>k Reductio!\ llealth Promot100 
ESMM Commuruty Gmnt 
Wooten's Health Sen-ice fund 
Tuberculosis 
TB M cd1cal Service~ 
School Nu~ Funding lruuauvc 
l leal~1y Commumlles 

Total N.C. Department llfllealth and lluman Setvtee~ 

late 
Fffirral Pass·throu.gb 
CFOA Gr111tot's 
um~r ------~~u~m~~~r ______ _ 

20.601 
20 (>()( 

20.1llb 
20.100 
20 100 
20 100 

21l.219 

66451> 

12 107 
12 107 

K8-2012-C2-36 
1<1-201:_1-{)7-CS 

Jbl.17.45.1U.4 
36237.45.13.1 
36237.45.13.2 
16237 45.14.1 

.BII4 

2WH0811-04 

W912PM- 11-P-0042 
W\112PM-11-I'-0047 

FY2012-201' 

2011-lbCJ-60701-107 

20 II Urgent Repair 
lU 12 Urgent Repa1r 
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Foo. (Dir~t & 
Pan-through 
E:rpcndllure5 

59.216 
53.757 

112.973 

7 5'16 
I 36.907 

1.576,502 
41-'b 

75.000 
75JJOO 

1.913.214 

830.924 
830.924 

65.536 
121.445 
186.981 

92.462.869 

StJIIe 
Expenditure5 

41 .695.220 

I ~52 

72,000 

nsoo 
_,7,500 

49,29'.1 

14.011> 
2'7.576 

5.382 
446,140 

17.5RO 
~1.224 

16.165 
4,000 

26.584 
90.210 
13.292 
6.827 

19,950 
10,84(1 
3,066 
l,n9 

150.000 
2.839 

1.256.539 



Gnntor/P as<-through 
Granlor/ Program Till 

Sta te G rants: 

'CII EO 

N C Dcoaament of Environment an<l Natuml Resourees 
Sool and Wa1er Technical Assistance 
Soli and Waler- tate 1\od 
Recycling Gram 
Scrap rirc itc C'le.111-Up 
Whole Goods Oosposal 
Electronics Mana!,'Cment Program Rdmburscment 

r ota) N.C. Department uf l:.nviroruneru and Natural R~>OUIC~' 

N ( Department of Public Safety 
Juvenile Crime Prcvclltion Cow-.cil Programs 

N C [)ept of Public lnswction 
Public Schoollluildit\1; Capital runt! (l.oucry) 

'TATE GRA rs: (Contmucd) 

N C Dcpanment ofTmnsooontion 
Rum I Opem1ing Assistance J)l'()gram ( CDT AP) 
Rural Operaling Assismnce Progrnm (RGP) 
Wor~ firSt Program 
Navassa VFO Construelion ofOti vcway on R 1453 

tate to A11p0rts Project 
State Aid-Aircraft Apron E"Pansoon, 1\.:cess Road and Ta.,wnys 
State Aod-Runway Extension 
' tnc Aod-Mulu-purpose Op.:muonal afct) 13uilding 

I otal .C. Department of Transportation 

N.( Dcoarunem ofCulruml Resources 
Otv1510o of StJtc Library 

"-id to Publlc Libr:mcs 
I otal N.C. Dcparunem of Cultural Rc.oun:es 

I otal Stat~ Asso>tance 

l otal Assistance 

State 
Federa l P:.<~through 
C FOA Grantor 's 

"lumber ------'N,_,'_,u"'rn'-"bc=r ___ _ 

-1094 

362-14.58.51 
36244.58.6 I 
36244 58.7 I 
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Fed. (Dir<'Ct & 
Pass-through 
lhpcodlturcs 

btatc 
F.xpcnditurrs 

26,675 
3.600 

640 
162.271 
5J.39(1 

6.321 
252.897 

176.717 

1376.141 

92.390 
106,874 
35,79() 
15.000 

199.355 
260,216 

53.889 
7b9,520 

12-1,107 
124, 107 

4. 104.393 

s 92.462. b9 ~ 45,79'>.613 



G ranturiP•ss-through 
Granto~~!!Lii!h! 

COUNTY OF BR S\ l CK. ' ORTII CAROLI A 
SCI l EI) LE OF EXPENOil URE OF FEDERAL MD STATE AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR E '0£0 J E 30. 2013 

tate 
Federal 1':1ss-through 
C FDA Cnntor's 

Nuntber ------~~um~b~e~r ______ _ 

Notes to the Schedule of ~~ocnditures of fcdm! and State Financial Awards: 
1. B.1sjs of Prescm;ujon 

Fed. (Direct & 
!'ass-through 
Expenditures 

St~te 

•: xpenditures 

me accompanying schedule o f exp.:oditures of federal and state awaros include.. the federal and state grant ac tivity ofBnmswick Cou.nry and is 
presented on the modified accrual basi> ofaccoooting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance wiht the requirement> ofOMB 
Circular A- IJ.t Audits of. tales. Local Goverrunents, and Non-f'rofit Orgnniz.ations and the tate Single Audn Implementation Act Tht:refore. some 
amounts presented in schedule may dttfer from amounts presented m or used in the preparation ol tl1e basic fmnancial >taternents. IJencfit payments 
are paid directly 10 recipients and are not included in the basic financial statements. l lowever due to the county's involvement in dctcnnining 
eligibility. they are considered federal awards to the cooo!y and are included on Ibis schedule. 

Of tltc federal and tale expenditures presented in the schedule. Brunswick Coumy provided federal and • tate a\\ ards to subrectpicnt.s as fo llows: 

Brunswick Cooot) chools 
Public hool Building Capiwl fund 

Brunswic~ Interagency ·1 ransportation 
ROAP 

Coastal HoritOns 
t.n:ng!hemng Families 

Frunil) Emergency Te~n Shelter 
JJDP. Providence !tome 

Teen Court 13th District 
Teen Coun 
Peer Court 

RRA Community Based Gang Awareness & EducJtion Gram 

Navas.<.a Vouluntccr Fire Depanment Construction of Driveway 

Brunswick Coull!) Airpon 
SL11c Aid-Aircran Apron Expans ion. Access Ro.,d and Taxiway, 
• tate Aid-Runway ~~tension 

tate Atd-Multt-purpose Opcratio•ml Safe!) Building 
Parallel Ta'-tway Land Acquisition 
Des tgn and Bid Parallel Rooway 
ConstruCtion Parallel Runway 

llowic rmnklin Field 

f oL,I Passed ntrough 10 uh 1\.'"Cipients 

1<>.803 

20 106 
20 106 
20. 1()(, 
20 106 

b i06S I 

36244.58.5 I 
36244.58.6.1 
36244.58.7. 1 
Jb237.45.10.4 
36237.45.13. 1 
.16237 45.13.2 

3<>237.45.14. 1 

1.376.141 

199.164 

22. 11>9 

40.00\1 

52.'15(1 
10.000 

500 

15,()(X) 

199.155 
226.216 
53. 9 

7.596 
136.907 

).576.502 
4.236 

s 1.725.741 s 2. 194.984 

C'htstcr programs are cott~idcrcd as one program for dctcnnining major programs in accordance with OM 8 Circular -113. Also. tlte federal portion of 
c lu:.ter programs is included when identifying major prngrams for calculating tl"' percentage of coverage of federal awards expended. 

4 TIIC folio" mg are clustered by the C Depanment of llealth and lluman Services and are treated separate!) lo r \!!lie audit requirement purposes: 
Substdizcd Onld Care. Fostet Care and Adoollon. 

Loons Outstanding 
Coool) of Brunswick had the fo llowing loan balances ool5tanding at Juoc 30. 2013. These loan balances outstanding are also included 
on the fcxlcra l c:qx.-nditures presenk-d in the schedule. 

Program Title 
RRA - Capitalv.ation Grants for tate Revoh mg runds 

CrDA 
Nu!!!l!£.r 
66.45 

Gmntor's 

~ 
2W370 11-04 

147 

Amount 
Outstandong 

I. 00.000 
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